JOINT-STOCK COMPANY BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

B 4

In accordance with Article 53 of the Capital Market Act (Official Gazette of RS No. 31/2011,
112/2015 and 108/2016) and the Regulations on the content, form and manner of publication of
annual, semi-annual and quarterly reports of public companies (“Official Gazette of RS”,
No0.14/2012,5/2015 and 24/2017), Joint Stock Company Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport
announces:

THE QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE FIRST QUARTER,
WHICH CONTAINS DATA FOR THE FIRST THREE MONTHS
OF THE BUSINESS YEAR 2017



Content of the report:

Financial statements for I-lll 2017

Income Sheet for the period 01.01. to 31.03.2017

Balance Sheet on 31.03.2017

Report on other results for the period 01.01. to 31.03.2017
Statement on changes in capital for the period 01.01. to 31.03.2017
Cash Flow Statement for the period 01.01. to 31.03.2017

Notes to the financial statements on 31.03.2017.

Report on company operations for I-lll 2017

Statement
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017

INCOME SHEET
in the period from January 1 to March 31, 2017

for the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017
-in thousand RSD -

60 10 65, except ‘A, OPERATING REVENUES {1002 + 1009 + 1016 +
62 & 63 1017)

1001 1,959,085 1,759,693

60 | REVENUES FROM SALE OF GOODS (1003 + 1004 + 1002 5 306 21.749
1005 + 1006 + 1007+ 1008) '

1. Reve from sale of goods to parent
600 n.ues roms ec g : p . 1003
companies and subsidiaries in domestic market

2. Revenues from sale of goods to parent

1004
companies and subsidiaries in foreign markets

601

3. Revenues from sale of goods to otherrelated
602 L . 1005
parties in domestic market

4. Revenues fro te of goods to otherrelated
603 venues rom sa'e o 8 1006
parties in foreign markets

5. Revenues from sale of goods in domestic

604 1007 5 306 339
market

605 6. Revenues from sale of goods in foreign 1008 5 o 21,410
markets
{I REVENUES FROM SALE OF PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

61 1009 6,7; 8; 1,760,309 1,560,906

{1010 + 1011 + 1012 + 1013 + 1014 + 1015)

1. Revenues from sale of products and services to
610 NN R 1010
parent com.and subsidiaries in domestic market

2. Revenues from sale of products and services to
611 [N X o1
parent com.and subsidiaries in foreign markets

3. Revenues from sale of products and services to
612 L . 1012
other related parties in domestic market

4, Revenues from sale of products and services to
613 o . 1013
other related parties in foreign markets

614 5. Rever?ues from sale of products and services in 1014 6 755,417 644,734
domestic market

615 6. Rejvenues from sale of products and services in 1015 5 1,004,892 916,172
foreign markets

il REVENUES FROM PREMIUMS, SUBSIDIES,

101
64 GRANTS, DONATIONS ETC. 016 0 0

65 IV OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 1017 9 198,470 177,038




FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017

INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to March 31, 2017

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

for the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017

62 & 63

50

62

630

631

51 except 513

513

52

53

540

541 to 549

55

66

66 except 662,
663 & 664

660

661

665

669

662

50 to 55, except

8. OPERATING EXPENDITURES

{1019 ~ 1020 ~ 1021 + 1022 + 1023 + 1024 + 1025 +
1026 + 1027 + 1028+ 1029} 2 0

1. PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS

Il. revenues from activation of use of own
products and goods

111, INCREASE OF STOCK VALUE OF UNFINISHED AND
FINISHED PRODUCTS AND UNFINISHED SERVICES

V. DECREASE OF STOCK VALUE OF UNFINISHED AND
FINISHED PRODUCTS AND UNFINISHED SERVICES

V. COSTS OF MATERIALS

VI. COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY

Vil. COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS
AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES

VI, COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES
IX. AMORTISATION COSTS

X. COSTS OF LONG-TERM RESERVING
XI. INTANGIBLE COSTS

V. OPERATING PROFIT {1001~ 1018} 20
G. OPERATING LOSS {1018 ~1001) 20

D. FINANCIAL REVENUES (1033 + 1038 + 1039)

1. FINANCIAL REVENUES FROM RELATED PARTIES
AND OTHER FINANCIAL REVENUES {1034 + 1035 +
1036 + 1037)

1. Financial revenues from parent companyand
subsidiaries

2. Financial revenues from other related parties

3. Revenues from participation in profit of
associated tegal entities and joint ventures

4. Other financial revenues

11. INTEREST REVENUE (FROM THIRD PARTIES)

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

17

18

1,371,155

207

73,782

83,353

760,656

105,968

234,986

112,203

587,930

37,961

21,734

1,217,812

22,198

48,957

72,792

705,424

101,166

205,016

61,259

541,881

61,598

25,467




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017
INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to March 31, 2017

for the period from 01/01/2017 untit 31/03/2017

663 & 664 I1). FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS AND POS.EFFECTS OF 1039 19 16,227 26.131
CURRENCY CLAUSE (TOWARD THIRD PARTIES) . ’

56 . FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES (1041 + 1046 + 1047) 1040 19,045 26,422

I. FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES FROM RELATED

56 except 562,
PARTIES RELATION AND OTHER FIN.EXPENDITURES 1041 0 0

563 & 564
(1042 + 1043 + 1044 + 1045}

560 1. Finandial exp.enditures frz?m. revlation with 1042
parent companies and subsidiaries

561 2. Financdial expenAditures from reiation with 1043
other related parties

565 3. Expf:nditures from'pé rti cipa'fic‘m in the loss of 1044
associated fegal entities and joint ventures

566 & 569 4. Other financial expenditures 1045
11, INTEREST EXPENDITURES {TOWARD THIRD

562 PERSANS) 1046 20 8,865 10,090

563 & 564 {11, FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES AND NEG.EFFECTS 1047 21 10.180 16332
OF CURRENCY CLAUSE (TOWARD THIRD PARTIES) ’ ’

E. PROFIT FROM FINANCING(1032 — 1040) 1048 18,916 35,176
Z.10SS FROM FINANCING{1040 - 1032) 1049 0 0
Z. REVENUES FROM VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS OF

683 & 685 OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 1050 22 95 0
INCOME SHEET
I. EXPENDITURES FROM VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS

583 & 585 OF OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE 1051 23 25,158 7
THROUGH INCOME SHEET

67 & 68, except

. OTHER REVENUES .

683 & 685 1. OTHE 1052 24 4,874 1,694

57 & 58, except
K. OTHER EXPENDITURES 1053

583 & 585 (0] 05 25 6,585 3,547
1. DPERATING PROFIT BEFORE TAX
{1030 ~ 1031 + 1048 — 1049 + 1050 — 1051+ 1052 = 1054 580,072 575,197
1053)




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017

INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to March 31, 2017

for the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017
- in thousand RSD -

Li. OPERATING LOSS BEFORE TAX

(1031 — 1030 + 1049 — 1048 + 1051 — 1050 + 1053 — 1055
1052)
M. NET INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS,

69-59 THE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1056 26

AND CORRECTIONS FROM PREVIOUS PERIOD

N. NET LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS,
59-69 EXPENSES CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1057
CORRECTIONS FROM PREVIOUS PERIOD

NJ. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (1054 — 1055 + 1056 — 1057} 1058 26; 580,072 575,197
0. LOSS BEFORE TAX {1055 — 1054 + 1057 — 1056} 1059
P. PROFIT TAX
721 1. INCOME TAX EXPENDITURE 1060 26; 72,505 64,057
part 722 II. DEFERRED TAX EXPENDITURE 1061 27; 13,937
part 722 H1. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 1062 27; 2,671 0
723 R. EARNINGS PAID BY EMPLOYER 1063
5. NET PROFIT 1064 28 510,238 497,203}
{1058 ~ 1059 ~ 1060 ~ 1061 + 1062}
T. NET LOSS 1065
{1059 - 1058 + 1060 + 1061 ~ 1062)
I NET INCOME OF MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 1066
11 NETINCOME OF THE MAJORITY OWNER 1067 ¢
111 PROFIT PER SHARE
1. Basicearning pershare 1068 28
2. Reduced (diluted) earning per share 1069
8 TOTAL REVENUES 2,002,015 1,822,985
5 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,421,943 1,247,788




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017
BALANCE SHEET
On March 31, 2017

on 31/03 2017
- in thousand RSD -

0 A. NON-PAID UP SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL 1

B. FIXED ASSETS (0003 + 0010 + 0019 + 0024 + 0034) 2 24,375,131 23,895,702 0
1 I INTANGIBLE ASSETS (0004 + 0005 + 0006 + 0008 + 0009) 3 2 132,622 135,730 0
010 & part 019 1. investmentin development 4
011,012 2. Concessions, patents, licences, trade marks, software and 5 2 132,622 135,730

& part 019 otherrights

013 & part 019 3. Goodwill

014 & part 019 4. Otherintangibie assets

015 & part 019 S.Intangible assets in progress

w K NN

016 & part 019 6. Advances forintangible assets
11. REAL ESTATES, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT
2 10 29 24,016,333 23,535,062 0
{0011 + 0012 + 0013 + 0014 + 0015 + 0016 + 0017 + 0018)

020,021 & part

029 1. tand 11 29 9,416,290 9,416,290
022 & part 029 2. Buildings 12 29 10,119,444 9,678,995
023 & part 028 3. Plantand equipment 13 29 3,252,685 3,101,024
024 & part 029 Investment property 14 29 26,525 26,525
025 & part 029 5. Other property, plants and equipment 15 29 3,619 3,619
026 & part 029 6. Property, plants, equipmentin progress 16 28 1,131,919 1,188,102

027 & part 029 7.investments in some.eise’s property, plantand equipment 17

028 & part 029 8. Advances for property, plants and equipment 18 29 66,351 120,507
3 1. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES (0020 + 0021 + 0022 + 0023} 19 145 145 o}
030, 031 & part
- 031 & pa 1. Forests and perennial plants 20
039
032 & part 039 2. Livestock unit 21 29 145 145
037 & part 039 3. Biological resources in progress 22
038 & part 039 4. Advances for biological resources 23
1V. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESMENTS {0025 + 0026 + 0027 +
04. t 047 24
excep 0028 + 0029 + 0030 + 0031 + 0032 + 0033} Ln2 140,946 0
040 & part 049 1.Shares in subsidiaries 25
041 & part 049 2. Shares in associated companies and jointventures 26
3.Shares in other legal entities and other securities
042 & part 049 . 27 30 1 1
available forsale
part 043, part 4. Long-term investments to parent companies and 28
044 & part 049 subsidiaries
rt 043 rt
pa  pa 5. Long-term investments to other related parties 29
044 & part 049
&
part 045 6. long-term investments in the country 30
part 049
art 045 &
Zart049 7. long-term investments abroad 31
046 & part 049 8, Securities hold to maturity 32
048 & part 049 9. Other long-term financial investments 33 31 141,711 140,945




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017
BALANCE SHEET (continued)
On March 31, 2017

on 31/03 2017
- in thousand RSD -

V. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (0035 + 0036 + 0037 + 0038 + 0039 +

5 0040 + 0041) 34 83,819 83,319 0
050 & part 059 1. Receivables from parentcompany and subsidiaries 35

051 & part 059 2. Receivables from otherrelated parties 36

052 & part 059 3. Receivables from sale on trade credit 37

053 & part 059 4. Receivables from sale percontracts on financial leasing 38

054 & part 058 5.Receivables based on guarantees 39

055 & part 059 6. Disputed and doubtful receivables 40

056 & part 059 7. Other long-term receivables 41 31 83,819 83,819

288 V. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 42
G. TURNOVER ASSETS

43 6,369,380 6,455,664 o]
{0044 + 0051 + 0059 + D080 + 0061 + 0062 + D068 + 0069 + 0070)
Class 1 { STOCKS {0045 + 0046 + 0047 + 0048 + 0049 + 0050} 44 124,747 85,637 0
10 1. Material, spare parts, tools and small inventory 45 32 76,846 62,272
11 2. Unfinished production and unfinished services 46
12 3. Ready products 47
13 4. Goods 48 33 4,835 4,816
14 5. Non-current assets intended forsale 49
15 6. Advances paid for stock and services 50 34 43,066 18,549

1 RECEIVABLES FROM SALE
20 51 1,066,194 1,020,436 [

{0052 + 0053 + 0054 + 0055 + 0056 + 0057 + 0058)

200 & part 203 1. Buyers in the country - parentcompanies and subsidiaries 52

201 & part 209 2. Buyers abroad - parent companies and subsidiaries 53

202 & part 209 3. Buyer§ in the country - other related parties 54

203 & part 209 4. Buyers abroad - other related parties 585

204 & part 209 5. Buyers in the country 56 35 309,700 360,511
205 & part 209 6. Buyers abroad 57 36 756,494 659,925
206 & part 209 7. Otherreceivables from sale 58

21 {1 RECEIVABLES FROM SPECIFIC OPERATIONS 59

22 IV OTHER RECEIVABLES 60 37 442,455 388,411
236 V FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME SHEET 61

23 except 236 VI SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 62 3,963,961 3,985,447 0
& 237 (0063 + 0064 + 0065 + 0066 + 0067)

230 & part 239 :Slui::;f-at::: loans and invest.- parent companies and 63

231 & part 239 2. Short-term loans and invest.- otherrelated parties 64

232 & part 239 3, Short-term credits and loans in the country 65 38 26,227 50,953
233 & part 239 4. Short-term credits and [oans abroad 66

zitlt 22:;59' 2388 5. Othershort-term financial investments 67 39 3,937,734 3,934,494
24 VI CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 68 41 604,896 740,102
27 VI VALUE ADDED TAX 69 0
28 except 288 X PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME 42 167,137 235,631
88 b, OFF-BALANCE SHEET ASSETS 72 62 551,236 524,556



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017
BALANCE SHEET (continued)
On March 31, 2017

on 31/03 2017

-in thousand RSD -

A. CAPITAL (0402 + 0411 — 0412 + 0413 + 0414 + 0415 - 0416 + 0417

+ 0420 - 0421) 2 0 = {0071 ~ 0424 - 0441 - 0442) a0t 42 22,581,751 27,087,521 o

30 ! CORE CAPITAL 402 20,573,610 20,573,610
{0403 + 0404 + 0405 + 0406 + 0407 + 0408 + 0409 + 0410)

300 1. Share capital 403 44 20,573,610 20,573,610

301 2. Shares of limited liability companies 404

302 3. Stakes 405

303 4. State capital 406

304 5. Social capital 407

305 6. Cooperative capital 408

306 7. Share issue premium 409

308 8. Other core capital 410

31 I} NON-PAID UP SUSCRIBED CAPITAL 411

047 & 237 tH REPURCHASED OWN SHARES 412

32 |V RESERVES 413 45 4,120,259 4,120,259

330 V. REVALUATION RESERVES BASED ON THE REVALUATION OF 414 5 601813 601,827
INTANG!BLE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ! ’

Vi. NON-REALISED INCOMES FROM SECURITIES AND OTHER
33 except 330 COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPRIHENSIVE RESULTS (credit 415 45 16,590 16,590
balance of group account 33 except 330)
Vil. NON-REALISED LOSSES FROM SECURITIES AND OTHER
33 except 330 COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPRIHENSIVE RESULTS (debit 416
baiance of group account 33 except 330)

Viti NON-DISTRIBUTED PROFIT

34 417 46 2,285,485 1,775,235 0
(0418 + 0419)
340 1. Non-distributed profit of previous years 418 46 1,775,247 303
341 2. Non-distributed profit of the current year 419 46 510,238 1,774,932
IX. SHARE WITHOUT RIGHT OF CONTROL 420
35 X. LOSS (0422 + 0423) 421 0 0 [
350 1. Loss of previous years 422
351 2. Loss of the current year 423
B. LONG -TERM RESERVES AND LIABILITIES {0425 + 0432) 424 907,737 908,241 0

| LONG -TERM RESERVES
40 425 47,48 203,011 206,332 0

{0426 + 0427 + 0428 + 0429 + 0430 + 0431}

400 1. Reserves for cost within guarantee period 426
401 2. Reserves forrestoration of natural resources 427
403 3, Reserves for restructuring costs 428
404 4. Provisions for retirement and other employee benefits 429 47;48,49 122,515 125,836
405 5. Reserves forlitigations 430 47,48;49 80,496 80,496
402 & 409 6. Other long-term reserves 431

I} LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
41 432 704,726 701,908 0

{0433 + 0434 + 0435 + 0436 + 0437 + 0438 + 0439 + 0440)

410 1. Liabilities that maybe converted into capital 433
411 2. Liabilities toward parent companies and subsidiaries 434
412 3, Liabilities toward otherrelated parties 435




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017
BALANCE SHEET (continued)
On March 31, 2017

on 31/03 2017
- in thousand RSD -

413 4. Liabilities from securities for a period longer than one year 436
414 5. Long-term credits and loans in the country 437
415 6. Long-term credits and loans abroad 438 50;51 704,726 701,909
416 7. Liabilities based on financial leasing 439
419 8. Other long-term liabilities 440 o] 0 0
498 V. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 441 27 367,612 370,283
42 10 49 G. SHORTY-TERM LIABILITIES
° 442 1,871,415 1,985,321 0

(exceptd98) (0443 + 0450 + 0451 + 0459 + 0460 + 0461 + 0462)
¥ ¥
| SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS
42 443 90,898 102,919 o

{0444 + 0445 + 0446 + 0447 + 0448 + 0449)

420 1. Short-term loans from parent company and subsidiaries 444
421 2. Short-term loans from otherrelated parties 445
422 3, Short-term credits and foans in the country 446
423 4, Short-term credits and loans abroad 447

227 5. Liabilities on fixed assets and assets from discontinued 448
operations intended forsale

424,425,426 &

229 6. Other short-term financial obligations 449 52 90,898 102,819
430 11 RECEIVED PREPAYMENTS, DEPQSITS AND BAILS 450 53 83,191 82,663
43 except 430 H1 BUSINESS LIABILITIES (0452 + 0453 + 0454 + 0455 + 0456 + 0457 451 416,104 462,702 0
+0458)
431 1. Suppliers - parent comp. and subsidiaries in the country 452
432 2. Suppliers - parent comp. and subsidiaries abroad 453
433 3. Suppliers -other related in the country 454
434 4. Suppliers -other related abroad 455
435 5. Suppliers in the country 456 54 215,926 396,580
436 6. Suppliers abroad 457 55 178,906 51,240
438 7. Other liabilities from operation 458 56 21,272 14,882
44,45 & 46 IV OTHER SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES 459 57 1,141,387 1,138,394
47 V LIABILITIES FROM VALUE ADDED TAX 460 58 13,423 57,398
48 VI LIABILITIES FOR OTHER TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND FEES 461 59,60 1,614 1,936
49 except 498 VIl ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME 462 61 124,798 139,309
D. LOSS OVER CAPITAL (0412 + 0416 + 0421 ~ 0420 — 0417 — 0415 - 463 o o
0414 - 0413 ~ 0411 ~ 0402) 2 O = (0441 + 0424 + 0442~ 0071) 2 0
| .TOTALUABILITIES (04245 0442 » 0441 + . | sgmsn 3136 o
89 E. OFF-BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES 465 62 551,236 524,556




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017

REPORT ON OTHER RESULTS in the period from January 1 to March 31, 2017

for the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017

A. NET RESULTS FROM OPERATIONS

1. NET PROFIT {ADP 1064) 2001 28; 510,238 497,203
11, NET LOSS (ADP 1065) 2002
B. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFITS AND LOSS

a) ltems that wiil not be reclassified in income sheet n future periods

1. Changes in revaluation of intangible assets, property, plantand equipment

330 a)increase in revaluation reserves 2003 45

b) decrease in revaluation reserves 2004 45 o
2. Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans
331 a) gains 2005 45
b}losses 2006
3.Gains and losses on investment in equity capital instruments
332 a) gains 2007
b)losses 2008

4. Gains orlosses on shares in other comprehensive profitorlosses of

associated companies
33

w

a)gains 2009
b)losses 2010
a) items thatcan subsequently be reclassified in income sheet n future periods
1.Gains orlosses based on recalculation of financial statements of foreign
operations
334 a)gains 2011
k) losses 2012
2. Gains orlosses on hedging instruments of netinvestmentin a foreign
operation
335
a}gains 2013
b}losses 2014
3. Gains orlosses on risk hedging instruments of cash flow
338
a)gains 2015
b)iosses 2016
4.Gains oriosses on securities available forsale
337 a) gains 2017
b) losses 2018
1. OTHER GROSS COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT
(2003 + 2005 + 2007 + 2009 + 2011 + 2013 + 2015 + 2017) — (2004 + 2006 + 2008 + 2010 2019 o
+ 2012 + 2014 + 2016 + 2018) 2 0
it. OTHER GROSS COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(2004 + 2006 + 2008 + 2010 + 2012 + 2014 + 2016 + 2018) — (2003 + 2005 + 2007 + 2009 2020 0
+ 2011 + 2013 + 2015 + 2017) 20
*
{H. TAX ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT OF LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 2021 45
V. NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT
2022 45 o
{2019~ 2020~ 2021} 2 0
V. NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 2023 o
{2020 ~ 2019 +2021) 2 0
{. TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT
2024 510,238 497,203
(2001~ 2002 + 2022 ~ 2023} 2 0
t}, TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
2025 0 0]
{2002 — 2001 + 2023 ~ 2022} 2 0
G TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE P . -
: = 208 o ﬂi
1. Attributable to majority owners of capital 2027
2. Attributable to owners who do nothave control 2028
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period from 01/01 until 31/03/2017

in the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017
-in thousand RSD -

A. CASH FLOW FROM BUSINESS ACTIVITY

1. Cash inflow from business activities (1 to 3) 3001 2,174,595 2,037,581
1. Sale and received advance payments 3002 1,923,865 1,747,256,
2. Interest received from business activity 3003 3,985 2,023
3. Otherinflows from regular operations 3004 246,745 288,302
1. Cash outflow from business activities (1 to 5) 3005 1,491,062 1,232,009
1. Payments forsuppliers and given advance payments 3006 475,378 333,764
2. Salaries, salary compensations and other personal expenses 3007 761,265 595,570
3. Paid interest 3008 4,220 4,776
4. Income tax 3009 172,416 149,276
5. Payment from other public revenues 3010 77,783 148,623
Hl. Net cash inflow from business activities (1-11} 3011 683,533 805,572
1V. Net cash outflow from business activities (I1-) 3012

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

1. Cash inflow from investment activities {1 to 5) 3013 55,266 112,453
1. Sale of shares and portions {netinflows) 3014 0 0
2. Sale of intangible investments, properties, plants, equipment and 3015 25
biological agencies
3. Otherfinancial investments {netinflows) 3016 26,775 77,153
4. interestreceived from investment activity 3017 28,466 35,300
5. Dividend received 3018 0 0
I. Cash outflow from investment activities {1 to 3) 3019 863,490 194,422
1. Purchase of shares and portions (net outflows) 3020 0 0
2. Purchase of intangible investments, properties, plants, equipment and

- rures rang properties, p quip 3021 863,490 194,422
biological agencies
3. Other financial investments (net outflows) 3022 0
111, Cash netinflow from investment activities (1-11) 3023 0
IV. Cash net outflow from investment activities ({1-1} 3024 808,224 81,969
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (cont'd)
for the period from 01/01 until 31/03/2017

in the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017
-in thousand RSD -

V. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

1. Cash inflow from financing activities {1 to 5) 3025 0 0
1. Core capital increase 3026 o] 0]
2. Long-term foans (netinflows) 3027 0 0
3. Short-term loans (netinflows) 3028 4] 0
4. Otherlong-term liabilities 3029 0 0
5. Other short-term liabilities 3030 0 0
I1. Cash outflow from financing activities {1 to 6) 3031 g 12,429 y 262,308}
1. Redemption of own shares and portions 3032 0 0
2. Long-term loans {(outflows) 3033 12,429 12,308}
3. Short-term loans (outflows) 3034 [+] 0
4, Otherliabilities (outflows) 3035 0 0
5. Financial leasing 3036 0 0
6. Paid-up dividends 3037 o] 250,000,
tl. Cash netinflow from financing activities {I-11) 3038 0 0
IV. Cash net outflow from financing activities (i1-1) 3039 12,429 262,308}
G. OVERALL CASH INFLOW (3001 + 3013 + 3025) 3040 2,229,861 2,150,034
D, OVERALL CASH OUTFLOW (3005 + 3019 + 3031) 3041 2,366,981 1,688,739]
. OVERALL CASH INFLOW (3040 - 3041} 3042 1] 461,295
E. OVERALL CASH OUTFLOW (3041 - 3040} 3043 137,120 [y
Z. CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3044 740,102 704,127
2. POSITIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES FROM CASH CONVERISON 3045 2,445 9,798}
. NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES FROM CASH CONVERISON 3046 531 619
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS March 31, 2017

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2017
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017
1. FOUNDING AND OPERATION OF THE COMPANY
1.1. General data of the Company:

The Joint Stock Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade (hereinafter: the Company) has been
established for provision of airport services (aircraft landing, take-off, taxing and parking and aircraft,
passenger and cargo handling). Apart from the basic activity of rendering airport services, the
Company, as side activities, provides other services at airport complex, satisfying the needs of service
users, domestic and foreign air carriers.

Operation of the Airport dates back to March 25, 1928, at the location BeZanijska kosa, and operation
on the current location (Surdin) started in 1962.

By a Decision of the Government of the Republic of Serbia of 1992, the Airport was re-registered as
Javno preduzece (public company) Aerodrom ,Beograd” and in 2006, also by a decision of the
Government it got the name JP Aerodrom Nikola Tesla Beograd.

The Government of the Republic of Serbia on 17/06/2010 made the Decision No. 023-4432/2010 on
change of legal form of JP Aerodrom "Nikola Tesla" Beograd from a public company into closed joint
stock company. The change of legal form is registered with the Business Registers Agency on
22/06/2010 by the Rescript No.BD 68460/2010.

After the change of legal form the company continued its business under the full name Joint Stock
Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade.

By the Rescript of the Registers Agency No: BD 7651/2011 dated on 24/01/2011, the Joint Stock
Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade was registered in Business Registers Agency as an open joint
stock company.

Head-office - 11180 Belgrade 59, Serbia
Register number: ‘ 07036540

Tax identification number 100000539

Activity oode and name 5223 - Ai(—trafﬁc sekrvicesk »

According to the classification criteria from the Law on accounting and audit JSC Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade is classified as a large legal person.

1.2. Number of employees and engaged persons

On Balance Sheet date on 31 March, 2017 the Company had 1,994 engaged workers of which 1,336
employees of the Company including 1,084 permanent employees, 252 employees on a definite period
of time, 410 workers engaged through youth organizations and 248 engaged in temporary and
occasional jobs (on 31 December 2016 there were 1,994 engaged workers, of which 1,323 permanent
employees, 822 employed for a definite period of time, 425 workers engaged through youth
organizations, and 246 workers engaged in temporary and occasional jobs).

in I-1il 2017, the average number of employees engaged by the Company at the end of each month was
1,992 of which average number of employees of the Company is 1,331 (827 permanent employees, 503
employees for a definite period of time), 416 workers engaged through youth organizations, averagely
245 engaged in temporary and occasional jobs (during 2016 there were on average 1,916 employees:
1,294 employees, of which 496 permanent employees, 798 employees for a definite period of time, 422
workers engaged through youth organizations and 201 engaged in temporary and occasional jobs).

14



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

1.

1.3.

1.4.

2.

2.1.

3.1

FOUNDING AND OPERATION OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
Management structure

The Company has established two-tier corporate system. The Bodies of the Company are the Assembly,
the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board.

The Assembly comprises of the Company Sharehoiders entitled to participate in Assembly's work. The
Shareholder in possession of 1% of ordinary shares (34,289 shares) is entitled to participate in Assembly
work.

The Supervisory Board has 7 members assigned by the Assembly of the Company. The Supervisory
Board may form different experts committees with at least three members, whereof one has to be an
independent member of the Supervisory Board.

The Executive Board has 5 executive directors including the General Director. The Executive directors
are assigned by the Supervisory Board of the Company. '

Ownership structure

After change of legal form into a closed joint stock company, the Central depositary and clearing house
registered on 07.07.2010, 34,289,350 shares; 100% in ownership of the Republic of Serbia.

On 09/12/2010 the Government of the Republic Serbia made the Decision No. 023-9103/2010-1, by
which citizens of the Republic of Serbia, the employees and former employees of the Company have
acquired the right to 16.85% of ownership of the Company. After transfer of the right to free of charge
shares to citizens, employees and former employees, the Republic of Serbia owns 28,511,988 ordinary
shares, which represents 83.15% of the total share capital of the Company.

By the Decision on admission of shares to Prime Listing 04/4 No. 478/11 dated on 28/01/2011, the

shares of the Company are accepted on 'A’ Listing of the Belgrade Exchange Market. Stock trade on the
Belgrade Exchange Market commenced on 07/02/2011.

2. BASIS FOR COMPOSITION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING METHOD

Basis for composition and presentation of financial statements
The financial statements for the period I-1ll 2017 are prepared in a manner and in accordance with the
legislation, also applied for preparation of annual financial statements for 2016 and which is completely
stated in the Note 2 to the Financial statement for the year of 2016.
The financial statement for the period I-lll 2017 are approved on the meeting of the Supervisory Board of
the Company on 12/05/2017.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Incomes and outcomes

Sales revenue is recognized when the risks and benefits associated with the right of ownership is
transferred to the customer, and that includes the date of delivery to the customer.

Revenue from services is recognized when the service is rendered, or proportionately during the

performance of services if it lasts for more than one accounting period.
Revenue from lease based on operational leasing are recognized evenly over the leasing period.

15



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3.

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Incomes and outcomes (cont'd)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the funds received or receivable, in net amount after deduction
of discounts and value added tax.

Revenue from interest and dividends are recognized in accordance with the principle of the formation in
favour of the accounting period to which they relate, using the effective interest method.

With the date on which revenues are recognized there are also recognized corresponding expenditures
(principle of causality of revenue and expenditure).

Operating expenditures are recognized in the income statement according to utilization of acquired
services or as they are incurred.

Expenditures are accounted for on an accrual basis of revenue and expenditure.

Maintenance and repair of fixed assets are recorded in the income statement in the accounting period
when they arise.

Costs of borrowings

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are included in the purchase value of the asset and until that period when all the activities are
essentially completed, necessary to prepare the asset for the intended use or sale. Assets being qualified
relate to the assets which required a significant period of time to get ready for its intended use.

Income from investments realized on the basis of the temporary investment of borrowed funds is
deducted from the borrowing costs incurred intended to finance assets that qualify.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the income statement in the period to which they relate.

Conversion of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies

Transactions incurred in foreign currencies are converted into dinars at the middie exchange rates
established on the Interbank Exchange Market, valid at the transaction date.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies on the date of the balance sheet are converted into
dinars at the middle exchange rates established on the Interbank Exchange Market, valid at that date.

Gains and losses arising from transactions in foreign currencies and from the recaiculation of monetary
items in the balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies are credited or charged to the
income statement as gains or losses from exchange rate differences.

Non-monetary items in the balance sheet are not recalculated at the balance sheet date but are carried
at historical cost, calculated at the exchange rate on the date of {ransaction, except for non-monetary
items that are measured at fair value, in which case they are recalculated at the exchange rate on the
date of determination of fair value. Revenues and Expenditures based on exchange rate differences and
currency clause effects are recorded in the income statement of the recorded period.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3.

3.3.

3.4.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Conversion of foreign exchange amount (cont’d.)
Middle foreign exchange rates, determined at the interbank foreign exchange market, used in the

conversion of foreign currency balance sheet positions into dinars, for the major currencies were as
follows:

Descripon - 31/03/2017 3111212016
Middle exchange rate of NBS: ‘ Value in RSD

EUR hange rate ¢ o , R i A
Usb R o e e
SR o e 15 8473
e o O iasooss 1438085

Liabilities based on long-term loans from the EIB are converted into RSD counter value at an agreed
selling rate of the bank.

Selling rate of the bank on the date of financial statements preparation is presented in the following table:

T T ™ — ;P
Contactedoxchange rate:  VaemReD
EUR-forEBloan ... M43 1238427

Intangible investment

Intangible investment relate to purchased software and licenses and are carried at purchase cost less
accumulated amortization and are written-off by straight-line method over a period of two to ten years.

3.5. Property, plants, equipment, biological resources

Property, plant and equipment that meet the requirements for recognition of assets are carried at their
purchase price or cost. Purchase price represents the invoiced amount plus all expenses incurred to its
intended use.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment (except tools and inventory for which purchase
price model is implemented) are presented at revalued amount that reflects their fair value at the date of
revaluation, less the total amount of the value correction based on amortization and total amount of vaiue
correction for impairment loss.

The fair value of real estate makes their market value, which is determined by the assessment.
Revaluation is carried out only when the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying
amount. Gains from revaluation are recognized in other gains and losses in favour of the revaluation
reserve in equity. Up to the amounts of previously recognized losses from the revaluation or impairment
recognized in the income statement, gains from revaluation are recognized in the income statement, and
the rest of gains are recognized in other gains and losses. Losses on revaluation are recognized after
valuation or testing for impairment, and are recognized in other gains and losses up to the amount of
previously recognized revaluation reserve in equity and the remainder of osses are recognized in the
income statement. At expenditure or disposal of assets related revaluation reserve is transferred directly
to undistributed profit.

The last assessment of the value of property, plant and equipment was made on 31/12/2016.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Property, plants, equipment, biological resources (cont'd)
Tools and supplies, whose useful life is longer than one year are from 01/01/2016 recognized as fixed
assets notwithstanding their individual purchase cost. These assets are amortized according to the

estimated useful life.

Gains or losses arising from write-off or alienation are recognized as revenue or expenditure in the
income statement.

Amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated

useful life. The depreciation rates that were used in the relevant period of the current year (2017), as well
as the rate of amortization calculated based on the useful life of the assets applied in 2016 are given in

the following table:

DESCRIPTION 2017 2016
Buidings o oy

‘Water and electncntyfacmtles 2, 27 - 7, 14 2,27 - 7 14
'Roads, airports and parking lots  2,22-3333 2,22 -33,33
Other building faciliies B ~ 5,00-25,00  500-2500
Flats given to employees for use - - 149 149
Equ:pment % o

New specific equipment 6,67 - 50,00  6,67-50,00
Equ:pmentfor road traffic 5- 50 00 5- 50, 00
‘Equipment for PTT and TV ~ 7,14-50,00 714-50,00
Equnpmentforazr—trafﬁc ~ 4-50,00  4-5000
'Measuring and control dewces and spemfc de\nces” - 400- 33 3 400-33,33
Laborequment teachmg aids and med devsces 20, OO 25 . 20,00 - 25
‘Electronic, calculating machines and computers 10 50 00 10- 50, 00
Furniture and eqmpment for general purpose 4- 50 00 4- 50 OO k
Equtpment for road trafﬁc under financial leasmg - 8,33- 33 33 8, 33 33 33
"Equipment and plants " 10,00 -25,00 10,00-25,00
Tools and inventory ~ 2000-10000  20,00-100,00
Intanglble mvestmehts e T I | % |
Software and licences 1000-5000  10,00-50,00

Investment property

Investment properties are properties that the Company, as the owner, holds to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both of them, and not for use in the provision of services or for administrative purpose
or sale in the ordinary course of business. Initial measurement of investment property during the
acquisition is carried at purchase value or cost price. After initial recognition, valuation of investment
property is carried at fair value at the end of each business year. Positive and negative effects from
changes in fair value of investment property are recognized through the income statement.

The Company has engaged a certified appraiser, to assess the value of investment property as on
31.12.2016. In the report on assessment, the fair value of the investment property is determined by the
weight of probability of estimated value using the replacement cost method and the yield method.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3.

3.8.

3.9.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Impairment

At each balance sheet date the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that there has been a loss due to the impairment of such
assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is estimated so that the extent of
the impairment loss could be determined. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit, o which
the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is net selling price or value in use, whichever is higher. For the purposes of
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using the
discount rate before tax that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the estimated recoverable amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Losses from impairment are recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is land or
buildings that are not used as investment property carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a reduction in the value of revaluation.

With the subsequent reversal of the impairment, the carrying amount of the asset {cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimated recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined in previous years if there were no
losses recognized in this asset (cash generating unit) due to impairment. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in income, uniess the relevant asset is carried at appraised value, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as an increase due to revaluation.

On 31 March, 2017, based on the Company's management estimates there are no indications that the
value of the assets is impaired.

Stocks
Stocks are disclosed per purchase value, i.e. cost value or net sale value, whichever is lower.

Net sale value is price for sale of stocks in nominal operation conditions after price decrease by sale
costs. Cost includes the invoiced value, transport and acquisition costs.

Calculation of stock output is determined by the method of average weighed purchase price.

Inventories are recorded at the sales price. At the end of the accounting period, their value is adjusted to
cost by allocation of price differences, calculated on an average basis between the purchase cost of
realized goods and supplies in stock at the end of the year.

Charging to other expenses inventory value correction is done in cases where it is determined that it is
necessary to resume the value to their net estimated realizable value (including inventories with slow
turnover, excess and obsolete inventories). Damaged inventory and inventory that does not meet the
standards are written off.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.10. Taxes and contributions

Income tax

Income tax expense in the income statement represents the sum of current income tax expense and
deferred income tax expense not recognized within other gains and losses or directly in equity.

Receivables and liabilities in respect of current income tax or deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and if it intends
to settle on a net basis or simultaneously realize the asset and settle the liability.

Current income tax

Assets and liabilities arising from current income taxes represent liabilities or receivables from the fiscal
authorities in connection with the current or prior periods that are not implemented on the date of these
financial statements.

Current income tax represents an amount calculated by applying the statutory income tax rate of 15% on
the tax base determined in the tax balance, which represents the amount of profit before tax after
deduction of the effects of adjusting income and expenses, in accordance with the tax regulations of the
Republic of Serbia, with the decrease in the statutory tax credits.

The Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Serbia does not envisage that any tax losses of the
current period may be used to recover taxes paid in previous years. However, losses which are included
in the tax balance until 2009, can be used to reduce the tax base in future periods over the next ten
years from the vesting date, and the losses realized and recognized in the tax statement for 2010 and
beyond, can be used to reduce the tax base in future periods, but not longer than five years.

The Law on Corporate income Tax of the Republic of Serbia in the part relating to tax credit provides that
taxpayers who have until December 31, 2013 acquired the right to a tax incentive under Art. 48. of the
previous law and expressed information in Tax balance and Tax return for 2013 may exercise that right
up to the deadline and in the manner provided by that previous law. According to Art. 48 Paragraph 5 of
the previous law, "unused tax credits can be offset against income tax in future periods up to the
prescribed limit of 33% (for large and medium-sized enterprises), but not longer than ten (10) years that
you apply as of the tax balance sheet for the year 2003". In determining the income tax for 2017, the
earliest previous tax period from which they can use unused tax credit is the tax account or PK form in
2007. Transferred tax credit is used in the order of investment.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax effects arise as a consequence of difference between basis for amortization calculation
according to accounting and tax regulations. Also, this difference accrues on basis of existence of
equipment with purchase value in the moment of purchase lower than average gross salary in RS, on
basis of non-used tax loan and in other cases when there is time difference between tax liability arising
and tax payment due date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all chargeable temporary
differences, while deferred tax resources are recognized in extent in which it is possible for chargeable
profits to be available for usage of deducting temporary differences. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets is examined on the financial statement date and adjusted if necessary to comply with the current
assessment of the taxable profits of future periods.

Deferred tax resources and liabilities are calculated at the tax rate of 15% whose use is expected in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability settled.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.10. Taxes and contributions (cont'd)

Deferred income tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax is accounted in balance sheet, except when it refers to the positions accounted directly in
the equity, in which case deferred tax is allocated within equity.

Taxes and contributions independent of results

Taxes and contributions independent of results include real estate and other taxes and contributions in
line with republic, tax and general regulations. These taxes and contributions are disclosed within other
business expenditures.

Tax risks

The tax laws of the Republic of Serbia are often differently interpreted and are subject to frequent
changes. The interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and
activities of the Company may differ from the management interpretations. As a result of the foregoing,
transactions may be challenged by tax authorities and the Company could be assessed additional taxes,
penalties and interest. Period of obsolescence of tax liability is five years. This practically means that tax
authorities could determine payment of outstanding liabilities within five years from the origination of the
liability.

3.11. Benefits for employees

Taxes and contributions to funds for social security of employees

In line with regulations applicative in the Republic of Serbia, the Company pays contributions to state
funds which provide social security of employees. Such obligations include contributions for employees
at cost of employer in amounts calculated at rates proscribed by relevant regulations. The company is,
also obliged to suspend contributions from gross salaries of employees and pay that, in name of
employees, to those funds. Contributions at cost of employer and contributions at cost of employees are
booked as expenditures of related period.

Reserving for terminal wages and jubilee bonuses
Based on the Collective Bargaining Agreement adopted on 12.02.2015 the Company is obliged to pay to
the employees:

Terminal wage for retirement in amount of 4 average month salaries without tax and contributions paid
at the employer’s in the very month before payment of terminal wage

Jubilee awards for total time spent in employment with the employer in the amount of the average
monthly salary without tax and contributions paid by the employer for the month preceding the month in
which the employee is entitled to jubilee awards as follows:

» 10 years — one average month salary

» 20 years — two average month salaries

> 30 years — three average month salaries

» 35 years for women and men - four average month salaries.

Because of the obligations regulated by the Collective Bargaining Agreement, the Company at the end of
each business year assesses reserving for terminal wages and jubilee bonuses in accordance with the
requirements of standard IAS 19- Employee Benefits.

The Company has engaged an authorized actuary to assess provisions for retirement benefits and
jubilee awards on 31 December 2016. The assumptions used for the actuarial calculation and changes in
provisions in the current period are disclosed in Note 49.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3.  PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.12. Leasing

Leasing is classified as financial leasing whenever all the risks and benefits arising from ownership of
assets are transferred to the fullest extent to the lessee by lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Company as lessor

Revenues based on operating leases (income from rents) are recognized using the straight-line method
over the lease period. indirect costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessee

Assets held by financial leasing contracts are initially recognized as assets of the Company at the present
value of the minimum lease payments determined at the beginning of the lease period. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a liability from financial leasing.

Payment of lease instalments is allocated between financial expenses and reduction of the lease liability
in order to achieve a constant rate of participation in the outstanding amount of the obligation. Financial
expenses are recognized immediately in the income statement, except if directly attributable to assets
being qualified for use, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the general policy of the

Company's borrowing costs.

Instaiments of operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis during the lease
term, unless there is another systematic basis that better reflects the time pattern of consumption
economic benefits from the leased asset.

In the event that lease incentives are granted, those are included in the operational leasing and are
recognized as a liability. The fotal benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction in expenses for rent
on a straight-line basis, unless there is another systematic basis that better reflects the time structure of
consumption of economic benefits from the leased asset.

3.13. Information on business segments

The Company performs business activity as single business segment, provision of airport services.
Accordingly, information relating to sales income per products and services, geographical information on
income from sales, represent disclosure at company level.

3.14. Financial instruments

Any contractual right from which arises a financial asset and a financial liability or equity instrument is
recognized as a financial instrument on the settlement date.

Upon initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at cost, being the fair value
of compensation given (in the case of assets) or received (in the case of liabilities).

De-recognition of financial assets is when the contractual rights to the cash flows arising from the
financial asset expire or when substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. De-recognition of
financial liabilities is when the obligation is extinguished, settled, cancelled or expired.

Long term investments

Long-term investments after initial recognition are measured by:
- Fair values, if held for trading,

- Amortized cost, if you have a fixed maturity date,

- Cost, if they do not have a fixed maturity date.
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3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.14. Financial instruments (cont’d)

Long-term investments held for trading and for which, due to the lack of an active market, it is not
possible to determine a market value, are carried at purchase cost.

Long-term loans granted to employees are measured at fair value discounted by applying market interest
rates.

Short-term receivables and investments

Short-term receivables and investments include receivables from sales and other receivables, as well as
short-term loans to employees.

Receivables from sales of goods and services are measured by the cost of the original invoice. Invoiced
interest related to the sale of goods and services are recognized as other receivables and are recorded
in income in the period in which they arise.

Other receivables and investments originated by the company are measured at amortized cost.

Any difference between the carrying amount and subsequent measurement is recognized as a gain or
loss in the period in which incurred.

Devaluation of funds

At each balance date, objective evidences of the value of assets are evaluated, by analysis of expected
net cash inflows.

For all receivables for which there is reasonabie doubt that they will not be collected in @ nominal
amount, corrections shall be made. Direct write-off shall be made only after the end of the litigation or by
decision of the management body.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on current accounts at banks and in hand and highly liquid
investments with maturity up to three months after the acquisition, which can be quickly converted to
known amounts of cash, and which is not subject to significant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include long-term liabilities (long-term loans and other long-term liabilities), short-term
financial liabilities (short-term loans and other short-term liabilities), short-term operating liabilities and
other liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the proceeds received. After initial recognition, financial
liabilities are measured at the amount of initially recognized liabilities, reduced by repayments of principal,
increased by the amount of capitalized interest and reduced by any write-off approved by the creditor.
Interest payable on financial liabilities is charged to financial expenses in the related period, and
presented within other short-term liabilities and accruals and deferred income.
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3.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
The capital, reserves and payment of profits (dividends)
The basic capital consists of the nominal value of the issued shares.

Other components of the capital include:

» Revaluation reserves based on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment
« Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans

+ Other reserves

All retained gains and accumulated losses in this and prior periods are recognized in undistributed profit
and loss.

Distributed profits (dividends) are recognized under liabilities when the Assembly of the Company adopts
a decision on profit distribution.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provision for legal disputes, harmful contracts or other requirements towards the Company is recognized
when for the Company's performance arise a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
when there is a certain outflow of economic benefits from the Company and when amounts of these
outflows can be reliably estimated. Time or the exact amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Restructuring costs are recognized only when there is a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and the
management has announced the main features of the plan to everyone a plan has influence to or the
execution of the plan has already begun. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available on the date of adoption of the report, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. For a number of similar obligations, the likelihood of
outflow for settling is determined at the level of obligations class. Provisions are discounted to present
value, in the event that the amount of discounting is materially significant.

Any remuneration in connection with the obligations for which it is certain that the Company will realize
from third parties are recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset cannot be a larger amount
than the related provision.

No obligation, that is, no provision is recognized if there is not a certain outflow of economic benefits
arising from present obligations. Such situations are disclosed as a contingent liability, except in cases
where the possibility of outflow is small.

Preview of important accounting estimates

Presentation of financial statements requires the Company management to use the best possible
estimates and reasonable assumptions that have effect to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent receivables and liabilities at the financial statements date, as well as
revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions are based on
information available at the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimated.

Shown below are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, which represent a significant risk for material adjustments to the
balance sheet items in the following financial year.
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3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.17. Preview of important accounting estimates (cont'd)

3.17.1. Amortisation and amortisation rate

Calculation of amortization and amortization rates are based on projected economic useful life of
property, plant and equipment. Once a year, the Company assesses the economic useful life based on
current forecasts.

In addition, due to the significance of fixed assets in the total assets of the Company, any change in the
aforementioned assumptions may lead to material effects on the financial position of the Company as well
as the financial result. As an example, if the Company shorten the average useful life by 10%, this would
result in additional amortization charges for the relevant period ended on 31 March, 2017 in the amount of
about RSD 23.498 thousand (and for the period ended on 31 March 2016: RSD 20.502 thousand).

3.17.2. Correction of values of uncollectable receivables

We calculated value correction for receivables older than 60 days, based on the estimated losses due fo
customer inability to fulfil the obligations. Our estimate is based on the ageing analysis of receivabies,
historical write-offs, credit worthiness of our customers and changes in the conditions of sale, in
determining the adequacy of the value correction of doubtful and disputed receivables. This also includes
assumptions about future customer behaviour and the resulting future collections. The management
believes that no additional value correction of receivables is necessary, with the exception of value
correction already reported in the financial statements.

3.47.3. Litigations

QOverall, provisions have largely been subject to estimates. The Company assesses the likelihood of
adverse cases may occur as a result of past events and assesses the amount required to settle the
obligation. Assessment of potential liabilities arising from legal disputes is carried out by internal expert
services or external advisers.

Although the Company respects the precautionary principle when evaluating, considering that there is a
large dose of uncertainty, in some cases actual results may differ from these estimates.

3.17.4. Fair value

The fair value for the purposes of disclosure under the requirements of IFRS 13 is defined as the price
that would be received for the sale of assets, or paid to transfer obligations in a regular transaction
between market participants on the measurement date.

Business policy of the Company is to disclose information about the fair (fair) value of assets and
liabilities for which official market information exist and when fair value is materially different from the
carrying value. In the Republic of Serbia there is no sufficient market experience, stability and liquidity for
the purchase and sale of receivables and other financial assets or liabilities, given that published market
information is not readily available. Hence, fair value can not be reliably determined in the absence of an
active market. The Company's management assesses risk and when it estimates that the value of assets
stated in its books may not be realized, it makes value corrections. In the opinion of the company
management, the amounts in these financial statements reflect the value that is, in the circumstances,
the most valid and useful for reporting purposes.

The Company measures the fair value of assets and liabilities using assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest. The fair value is the price that would be charged or paid for the transfer of responsibilities in a
regular transaction at the primary or most favourable market on the date of measurement, the current
market conditions, and regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other
valuation techniques.

25



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
3.17. Preview of important accounting estimates (cont'd)

3.17.4. Fair value (cont’d)
Valuation techniques that are applied for measuring fair value, should make maximum use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related disclosures the fair
value hierarchy shall be determined, which classifies into three levels inputs for valuation techniques that
are used in determining the fair value according to the structure beiow:

Inputs Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities to which
the entity has access at the date of weighing. Assumptions of level 1 inputs relate to the existence of the
primary market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of the primary market, the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability; and whether the entity can realize the transaction for the asset or liability
based on market price at the date of measurement.

Inputs Level 2 - inputs that are not quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs include the following: quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs that are not quoted prices, if they are visible for assets or liabilities and inputs supported by
market.

Inputs Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability that entity develops using the best
information available in the circumstances. So, all reasonably available information about the market
participants assumptions are considered. Unobservable inputs are considered market participant
assumptions and meet the objective of fair value measurement.

SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES

Art 4 of the Rule book on the provision of ground handling services at airports - Official Gazette of RS
No. 61/2015, stipulates that the airport operator and provider of ground handling services separate
accounts (accounts) for the provision of ground handling services from the accounts for other activities,
in accordance with applicable accounting standards. In the annual financial statements of the airport
operator shall be visible absence of any related financial flows between provision of ground handling
services and its activities as airport operator.

From 01/07/2016 started separate billing of ground handling services from other services of the airport
operator, then determining attributable direct expenditures on the accounting documents of the airport
operator and ground handling activities, as well as allocation of indirect expenditures on airport operators
and ground handling activities on the basis of the adopted keys for allocation of indirect expenditures.
Based on the above, the separation of business results of ground handling activities from airport
operator's activities will in the future be made on the basis of recorded exact data on revenues and
expenditures.

Separation of business operations, i.e. realized revenues and expenditures of the Airport for the period I-
[l 2017, to business activities of the airport operator and the business activities of ground handling
services was carried out on the basis of the adopted Amended Business Plan for 2016 by the
Supervisory Board (Decision No.33 -179/1 dated 24/06/2016), that is on the basis of by plan adopted
parameters for separation of ground handling services from the airport operator's activities and defined
planned participation of related expenditures, and according to the Rule book on the provision of ground
handling services at airports. Based on the above and on the realised business results is compiled
Income Sheet for the period |-l 2017 in which financial results of the airport operator's activities and
activities of ground handling services are shown separately, as follows:
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4., SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES (cont'd)

60 to 55,
except 62 &
63

60
604

605
61

614
615

64

65

50 to 55,
excepi 62 &
63

50

51 except
513

513

52

53

540

541 to 549

55

B, OPERATING EXPENDITURES

for the period from 01/01/2017 untit 31/03/2017

A. OPERATING REVENUES (1002 + 1009 + 1016 +
1017)

| REVENUES FROM SALE OF GOODS (1003 +
1004 + 1005 + 1006 + 1007+ 1008)

5. Revenues from sale of goods in domestic
market

6. Revenues from sale of goods in foreign
markets

I} REVENUES FROM SALE OF PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

(1010 + 1011 + 1012 + 1013 + 1014 + 1015)

5. Revenues from sale of products and
services to otherrelated parties in domestic
6. Revenues from sale of products and
services in foreign markets

111 REVENUES FROM PREMIUMS, SUBSIDIES,
GRANTS, DONATIONS ETC.

1V OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

R G Ry

{1019~ 1020 — 1021 + 1022 + 1023 + 1024 +
1025 + 1026 + 1027 + 1028+ 1029) 2 0

{. PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS
V. COSTS OF MATERIALS

VI. COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY
VIl COS TS UF SALARIED, SALARY
COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL

LI

VI1. COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES

IX. AMORTISATION COSTS
X. COSTS OF LONG-TERM RESERVING
Xi. INTANGIBLE COSTS

V. OPERATING PROFIT (1001 ~ 1018} 2 0

1001

1002

1007

1008

1005

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

6,7,8

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

1,541,957

v
306

306

1,343,181

553,750

789,431

0

198,470

995,990

207
30,724
57,648

514,931
96,479
197,263
0
98,738

545,967

- in thousand RSD -

417,128

417,128

201,667

215,461

375,165

0
43,058
25,705

245,725
9,489
37,723

o]

13,465

41,963

1,959,085

306

306

1,760,309

755,417

1,004,892

0

198,470

1,371,155

207,
73,782
83,353

760,656
105,968
234,986

0
112,203

587,930
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4. SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES (cont'd)

for the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017

-~ in thousand RSD -

66 D. FINANCIAL REVENUES (1033 + 1038 + 1039) 1032 37,679 282 37,961

662 1. INTEREST REVENUE (FROM THIRD PARTIES) 1038 18 21,734 o} 21,734
1. FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS AND

663 & 664  POS.EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE (TOWARD 1039 19 15,945 282 16,227

THIRD PARTIES)

D. FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES (1041 + 1046 + ¥

56 oa 1040 19,001 a4 19,045

11. INTEREST EXPENDITURES (TOWARD THIRD
2 104 2 8,86 ,

>6 PERSONS) 046 0 865 0 8,865
111. FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES AND

563 & 564  NEG.EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE (TOWARD 1047 21 10,136 44 10,180
THI{RD PARTIES)
E. PROFIT FROM FINANCING(1032 — 1040) 1048 18,678 238 18,916
Z. REVENUES FROM VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS

683 & 685  OF OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE 1050 22 95 0 95

THROUGH {NCOME SHEET
1. EXPENDITURES FROM VALUATION

583 & 585  ADJUSTMENTS OF OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT 1051 23 25,158 0 25,158
FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME SHEET

67 & 68,
except 683 J. OTHER REVENUES 1052 24 4,852 22 4,874
& 685
57 & 58,
except 583 K. OTHER EXPENDITURES 1053 25 6,142 443 6,585
& 585
1. OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE TAX
{1030~ 1031+ 1048 ~ 1049 + 1050 ~ 1051 + 1054 538,292 41,780 580,072
1052 - 1053)
M. NET PROFIT FROM CORRECTION OF
1056
MISTAKS FROM PREVIOUS YEARS 05 0 ° 9
. PROFIT BEFORE TAX {1054 — 1055 + 1056 —
NJ. PRO { 05 1058 26 538,292 41,780 580,072
1057}
p. PROFIT TAX
721 . INCOME TAX EXPENDITURE 1060 26 66,238 6,267 72,505
part 722 il. DEFERRED TAX EXPENDITURE 1061 27 0 0 0
part 722 {11. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 1062 27 2,671 2,671
S. NET PROFIT
1064 28 474,725 35,513 510,238]
{1058 — 1059 — 1060 ~ 1061 + 1062}
¥
6 TOTAL REVENUES {1001+1032+1050+1052) 1,584,583 417,432 2,002,015
4
5 TOTAL EXPENDITURES (1018+1040+1051+1053) 1,046,291 375,652 1,421,943
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5. REVENUES FROM SALEOF GOODS ‘ 2017 1112016
' ‘ “ ' ‘ in000RSD  in 000 RSD
Revenues from sale of beverages in catering facilties ' 306 208
Revenues fromsale of fuel in domestic market ‘ h ‘ ‘ 0 13
Revenues from sale of crude oil o 0 o
Revenues from sale of goods in domestic market ' ‘ 306 339
Revenues fromsale of goods - kerosene (re-export) . ‘ 0 21,410
Revenues from sale of fuel in foreign market ' k k' k 0 0
Revenues from sale of goods in foreign market - S ‘ o 21,410
‘ o ‘ - 306 21,749

REVENUES FROM THE SALE OF SERVICES of the Airport in domestic and foreign markets in the period I-1li
2017 were separated on revenues from services provided by the airport operator's activities and revenues
made by the activity of ground handling services on the basis of real income and by the plan adopted
parameters for the separation of ground handling services from the airport operator’s activities, as shown

in the following table:

CRH2017 ; 1l 2016

6. REVENUES FROM SALE OF Total ! Revenues o Revenues

SERVICES IN DOMESTIC Revenues of Revenues 'CVonuesof Revenues = i | revenuas Revenues . ithout

MARKET WITH REVENUES OF airport of ground- | A{rport fromforeign foreign of ._Anrport from foreign  foreign

GROUND HANDLING SERVICES  operator handiing {with for. buyer buyer (with for. buyer buyer

. buyer  branches branches buyer branches branches

. branches) : . branches)

q T 3 dEey 5 6(4-8) 7 : 8 Crey
~in000RSD in000RSD ~ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD in 000 RSD  in000RSD ~ in 000 RSD  in 000 RSD
Passenger servrce 247471 10, 329:5 257,800 20, 280 237 520 246 810 20231 226,579
Security fee 103493 0 103,493 5008 98485 77,939 4023 73,916
Landing 47,593 0 47593 8ges87 38906 42907 9081 33,826
Aircraft handiing * - 518 50518 0466 41052 49,803 12275 37,628
infrastructure 29300 6566 22734 27,581 6944 20637
Air-bridges * 2217 224 3 2,394 2394 o
Lighting 15,147 " 549 14,498 19120 707 1,205
Aircraft abode tax ; Te32 - e3z2 90 0 900,
Aircraft de-icing services * 70,654 3839 66815 30,908 2067 28841
Commercial use of apron 14214 L 142140 1,735 - 11,735,
Usage of the CUTE system 14598 1037 13561 13520 1,019 T12,501
Services on special request * 31,099 53 31046 22,665 180 22,485
Rentlng of advertnsement space R 16 ,614 N T 18 '61‘4::»" o 15 281 e 15 281j
‘Public services S as, 44287 253 44034 38,600 213 38387
Cargo-customserwces “ 39,355:“ 149 39 206‘ 34,02 220 33,8023
e S Rtk S e R sss
~ Lostand found serwces* L ” ”257? o237 ) O 138 38 -
Useof parkinglots 4707 0 407 150 14557 5,526 150 5,376,
Other services * . . R 21,993 126 21,867
:T";:zae!tserwces in domestic 653750 201667 TSEMT 58779 696638 644734 59768 584,966

Revenue from services realized by foreign companies that were registered in the Republic of Serbia as a
"branch”, are recorded in the books in line with legislation as income from domestic customers. Since the
physical scope of services of specified branches is recorded in the Company as a physical volume of
services of foreign companies, said revenue are shown in Note 6 and 7 in the way they are recorded in
accounting, and also in a separate column as revenues from sales of goods and services from registered
branches, for insight in the amount and participation of these revenues, which are recorded as revenues
generated in the domestic market, but the essence is that the origin of these revenues is the foreign
market.
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‘services (I+l)

11 2017 1-lli 2016
7. REVENUES FROM SALE OF Total Revenues = __'otl fe e
SERVICES IN DOMESTIC Revenues of - Revenues  revenues of froer;\ligru:i;n . with : :')?I:i:::; ‘fron\:?grueeiZn withvfe:ru:Sn
MARKET WITH REVENUES OF airport of ground-  Airport (wlo_ buyer . foreign (o for buyer buyerlg
GROUND HANDLING SERVICES  operator handing for. buyer branches buyer buyer. branches branches
branches) . branches
- branches)
L SRR R T M . 5 I 5 . 8@#h 7B 90+
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD: in000 RSD | in 000 RSD in 000 RSD in000RSD. in 0CORSD  in 000 RSD
Passenger service * 359,189 11,644 370,833 20280 391,113 324,091 20,231 344,322
Security fee 97,563 0 97,583 5008 102591 69,565 4023 73588
Landing 147,994 0 147,994 8687 156,681 140,409 9,081 149,490
Aircraft handiing * "0 137,940 137,940 9466 147,406 157,793 12,275 170,068
Infrastructure 96,588 o 96,588 6,566 103,154 92,498 6,944 99,442
Air-bridges * 38,864 4,318 43,182 2,274 45456 41,508 2,394 43,902
Lighting 20260 O 20,260 649 20,909 18,048 707 18,755
‘Alrcraft abode tax 5743 0 743 . 5743 sarT o 5477
Aircraft de-icing services * 0 45318 3,830 49,157, 26372 2067 28439
Commeroil oo of soron o 5 e bl s B
Usage of the CUTE system 20100 0 1,087 21137 47,394 1,019 18,413
Services on special request * 1388 5329 53 6,770 5287 180 5,467
Renting of advertisement space o 0 - B 336 ) 33
Public services ‘ 284 0! 253 537 390 213 603
Cargo-customservices * o 2,000 149 3049 3104 220 3,324
Conauiti sonvicos SR S - S e
DCS services * o "soe0 30, - 3090 5847 0 5647
Lostand found services * o 3451 3451 237 3888 2838 138 2,976
Gonof parting s o e s e e i 50,
\Other services * 1437 1471 2908 131 3,039 5415 126 5541
:L:r";:ise""ces in foreign 780431 215461 1004892 58779 1063671 916,172 59,768 975,940
,lli Tofaul‘revéyh‘ue‘s fi-bm ‘the | B i . 3 .
sale of products and 1,343,181, 417,128 1,760,309 - 1,760,309 1,560,906 - 1,560,906
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8. Revenues from sale of services per geograph.region

Serbia

Germany (Lufthansa+Germanwings +Europi.+Air Berlm+Eurolet)

Montenegro (Montenegro+other buyers in MN)
Austria (branch of Austrian Axrhnes +Niki)
Switzerland (Swis Alr)

Russia (Aeroflot)

Turkey (Turk:sh +Pegasus+/>¢las Global)
Spain (Swn"t Air)

italy (Alitalia)

Abu Dhabi (branch Etihad A|r+Et|had Axr)
Hungary (sz air+Cityline)

‘Romania (Tarom)

Tunisia (Tunis Air)

‘Greece (Aegean)

England (Easyjet)

Norway (Norwegian)

‘Poland (Polskie linie LOT)

‘Dubai (Fly Dubai)

Qatar (Qatar Airways)

israel (Ef Al Israel + Israerlrhnes+Ark|a)
Other foreign buyers

Revenues from sale of services per buyers

Air Serbia - Serbia

Deutche Lufthansa - Germany
Montenegro Airlines - Montenegro
:Branch of Austnan Airlines - Austna
'Swiss International Airlines - Switzerland
‘Turkish Airlines - Turkey

Aeroflot - Russia

Polskie finie LOT - Poland

Alitalia § Societa Aerea |tahana SR. L.-ltaly
' Swift Air Aviation - Spain

European Air - Germany

fNorweglan Air - Norway

Easyjet- England

‘Wizz Air+branch (Hungary)

‘Tarom Romanian Air Transport - - Romania
}Pegasus Airlines - Turkey

‘Tunis Air - Tunisia

'Fly Dubai - Dubai )

‘Aegean airlines - Greece

Iran Air - Iran

Qatar Axrways Q CS.- Qatar

[Etihad Airways PJSC + branch Etihad Airways PJSC - Abu Dhabi

NISAD-Serbia
;JATTechmca Serbra ;

Parking service - Serbxa

‘Alma Quatro - Serbna -
Dufrydoo Belgrade - Serbia
Israir Airlines - Israel

Otherdomesttc buyers Serbsa

QOther fore;gn buyers

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

1t 2017 -1 2016
in 000 RSD “in 000 RSD
696,638 584,966
164,178 142,806
109,741 107,170
58611 59,238
64,780 59,485
94,329 84,603
145,960 117,065
10,891 10,678
41,010 34,296
42,088 38,627
138,478 161,271
11,764 10,288
6,090 5414
21,178 25774
18,077 14,679
17,528 17,956
25251 12,482
30,678 19,438
24,842 28,514
28,897 0
9,300 235,559
1,760,309 1,560,906
-1 2017 -1 2016
 in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
549,814 461,646
142,537 127,380
107,010 106,952
58,316 59238
64,780 59485
92 476 93,782
84,328 84,603
25251 12482
41,010 34,206
10,891 106785
13505 5,600
17,528 17956
e
138478 151,271
11,764 10,288
23557 93283
76,080 "B 414
30,678 19,438
21178 25774
0 3,003
24,842 28514
42088 38627
R PY-7 16,298
5095 6,104
T3 7710
5,342 5,300
13534 13,709
— 55585 s
102971 80,799
55720 43197
1,760,309 1,560,906
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9. OTHER BUSINESS REVENUES

Rewvenues from lease to domestic fegal persons
‘Revenues from lease to foreign legal persons

10. PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS

"Purchase value of sold retail goods
Purchase value of sold kerosene - re—éxport
Purchase value of sold crude oil

Purchase value of sold fuel

11. COSTS OF MATERIALS
‘Costs of production material (basic materials, tools and
-inventory, working and official clothing and footwear)

‘Overhead costs of material (office material)

'Costs of spare parts
Costs of tools and inventory

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

12. COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY
Costs of gasoline and diesel fuel
Costs of oil fuel for heating
‘Costs of electric energy

~ 2017 1181 2016

~ in00ORSD in 000 RSD.

195,220 - 173,864

3,250 3174

198,470 177,038

111 2017 il 2016

in 000 RSD , ~in 000 RSD.

207 210

- 21,988

207 22,198

I 2017 I 2016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD.
66,111 38,604

2,911 1,030 .

4760 7,944

- 2,379

73,782 49,957

~ Hi2017 1t 2016

in 000 RSD. in 000 RSD
o 1esre 15,607

AL 11,289

46,871 45,896
83,353 72,792
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13. COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS AND

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

-1 2017

1-lt 2016

OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Gross salaries and salary reimbursements - employees 425,007 402,655
Gross salaries and salary reimbursements - management 0,497 7,149
Taxes and contributions at cost of employer 77,776 73,355
Costs of reimburs. per service contract and royalties 97 - 320
Costs of reimbursement for youth organisations etc. 155,154 136,275
Costs of reimburs. for member of SB, SA, rev. commitee 2,041 2,058
Transport of employees o o 21,339 13,070
Cots of business trip 1,685 1,200
Terminal wages and Jubllee bonuses 817 4
kD:fference for payment to the budget of RS, based on the Law on 39,693 37.993
reduction of public sector wages
Premiums for voluntary pension insurance 22,250 21,091
‘New Year presents for children of employees - not subjectto taxa . B
Compensation on Contracts for professional development 537 2,449
Solidarity allowance (newborns, treatment natural dlsasters etc.) 4,583 6,854
Other personal expenditures 180 951
760,656 705,424
14. COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES I-IHf 2017 -1l 2016
—_— ' o in 000 RSD ~in 000 RSD
IT services on passenger and baggage check~m 7965 10,235
‘Costs of phone and other PTT senvices 5,297 5,478
‘Costs ofmamtenance sennces o 52531 44,981
Lease costs o 11,204 12,383
‘Advertrsmg costs 19291 ) 17,499:
Costs of catering serwces oftenants (re -invoiced to airlines) 529 - 273
‘Costs of utilities 8,081 6415
Costs of production services 1,070 3,902
- ‘ ‘ 105,968 101,166
15. AMORTISATION COSTS i 2017 - 2016,
;, SRR = in 000 RSD RSP
Amortisation costs for intangible investments 7458 5,210
/Amortisation costs for property 116,403 107,921
Amortisation costs for eqiuipment 111,125 91,885
234 986 205 016
16. COSTS OF LONG-TERM RESERVING 2017 -1 2016

Costs ofreservmg fortermmal wages e et e
Costs ofreser\nng for)ubalee awards ’ ‘ B ; o - -
‘Costs of reservmg for h’ugations ’ - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

17. INTANGIBLE COSTS 1111 2017 I-1it 2016
- ' ' o 'in 000 RSD " in 000 RSD
‘Costs of health services ‘ ‘ 3,981 3,563
‘Costs of cleaning services o ‘ 15,245 ‘ 12,203
Costs of consulting services ‘ ‘ S - 23,763 ‘ o
Costs of difierent kinds of assessments ‘ 11,274 ‘ 9
Costs of professional development o - . ‘ - 6897 1958
Costs of services for the current accounting software 3,456 3,366
‘Costs of other non-production services ‘ 3760 ‘ 3,336
Costs of representation ‘ ' 825 1,072
‘Costs ofinsurance o ‘ 8605 6,296
Costs of payment system N R I 468 4190
"Memberships ’ ‘ 635 ‘ 4,094
Property taxand other reimbursements o 20,131 19,764
Other intangible costs ‘ o 12,223 4408
‘ - ‘ 112,203 B 61,259
18. INTEREST INCOME 1-if 2017 1012016
: ‘ ‘ ' ‘ ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Interestin term deposrts in RSD ‘ h 7,611 9, 364‘
;Interestfor RSD depos:ts in currentaccounts - - a2 828,
Interest in term deposits in forelgn currency - ) 1 3,115 ) 14 092
‘Interestforfore:gn currencydeposﬂs in currentaccounts o - 330 “ 1,020
Intereston housing loans o - 203 - 163
‘!nterests upon courtdecxstdns - ” k 49 k —
. e B 73 T
‘19. POSITIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES AND POSITIVE 1 2017 - 2016§
'EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE TOWARD THIRD PARTIES) j
= v e T T 000 RSD )
Revenues from realized exchange rate differences o 8,240 33,021
:Revenues from non- reahzed exchange rate duﬁerences ) k ' 7 185 k 995
Revenues from effects of contracted currency clause (reahzed) ‘ i » 8 e 16?
;Revenues from effects of contracted currency clause (non-realized) 794 2, 099
16,227 36,131
:20. INTEREST EXPENDITURES -t 2017 -1 2016
b edietion it S 000 RSD 500 RSD
Interests for Iong-term EIB loan o - k 8, 791 \ 9 8331
flnterestfor financial leasing k ‘ . o ) - - - “ -
'Defaultmterestmthe country e - . | e | . o R 161
?Interestfor unttme!y paid public revenues 3 96
; . . - o gaeE T 10,080
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21. NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES AND NEGTIVE

EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE Hil 2017 i 2016
o o ' in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Negative exchange rate differences-realized ‘ ‘ 1222 1,817
Negative exchange rate differences - non-realized ‘ o 8,915 14,512
Expendrtures from effects of contr. currency clause - realised ‘ 43 ‘ 3
‘Expenditures from effects of contr. currency clause - non- reahsed ‘ - B
: 10,180 16,332
f22. INCOME FROM VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF OTHER ASSETS -1 2017 1111 2016
, in 000 RSD in 000 RSD.
~from natural persons for housing loans (cancellation of ‘ R ' 95‘ o
‘impairment on collection basis and fair value basis)
‘Other non-mentioned revenues - ‘ -
g 95 -
23. EXPENDITURES FROM VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF OTHER 1111 2017 1l 2016
ASSETS
o - in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
‘Imparmentofrecervables fom housmg oans e |
\Value adjustment of receivables from buyers ' 25158 o 7
25,158 7
54 OTHERREVENUES ~— ~ T T T 5616
phieaioielomnl it en e ; R —SGRSD mOOORSDZ
"Revenues from sale of equipment and materials S 242 ‘ 143
§Revenues of collected, corrected receivables from buyers R h “ - 198
'Revenues from cancel.of reserv. for htrgatrons and empl. benefts . ‘ 643
f‘Revenues from mdemmty from legai and natural persons o h 1 505 k 870
'Revenues from charged court costs o - 112 - - 38
'Revenues of previous years . - ‘ - I
;'Posmve octs ofcontracted révaluatron S e
‘Other non- mentroned revenues ' - 3005 ‘ k 2
S . asa : e
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25. OTHER EXPENDITURES 11 2017 Il 2016
; i B ; in 000 RSD ~in 000 RSD.
Loss from sale and write-off of biological resources 15
Litigation costs - 503 202
Costs for humanitarian, health and screntlﬁc purposes ‘ 4,508 1,100
‘Expenditures of previous years \ 92 383
Other non-mentioned expenditures 243 347
Expendltures from trade umons ‘ 1,239 1,500
6,585 3,547
26. PROFIT TAX
a) Components of profit tax 1-Hi 2017 I-i11 2016
S Tn000RSD —in 000 RSD
Period tax expenditure ; ‘ ‘ , 72,505 64,057
Correction of period tax expenditure B - -
Period tax expenditure after correctlon‘ , , ‘ ‘ 72,505 64,057
Deferred penod tax expendlture ; ‘ ‘ . - 13,937‘
Deferred income tax ; - ; 2671 -
Correctlon of deferred income tax ; ; ; - -
e , 69834 77,994
Effective taxrate 1204%  1356%
b) Reconciliation of profit tax and product of result from !
‘operation before tax and prescribed tax rate Hil 2017 -1 2016
- - in 000 RSD ~ in 000 RSD
Profit before tax 580,072 575,197
Proft tax calculated atrate of15% ‘ 87, 010‘ ) 86,280;
Taxeffect of expendltures notacknowledged in tax balance 1 042 1,892
Correction in tax effect of amortisation expendltures not acknowledged in tax ‘
balance o 189 7,436
“Tax credit for investment in fixed assets ofprewous years - B - (22,736) (31,551)
Correc’uon ofusmg taxcredlts from prewous years - -
Period tax expendtture v 72,505 64,057
v) Achieved, unused and unrecognised tax credit (TC) in 000 RSD
Year of Amountof - Correctlon of Outstahding
. transferred Used TC
expiry T TC TC for transfer.
Year of recognition of taxcredit ‘ from 2015 - © in2017  31/03/2017
2013 2023 22738 0 22736 :
Balance of tax credit 22,736 0 22,736 .




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017
27. DEFERRED PERIOD TAX REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Changes on account of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets as of 31/12/2016 and as of
31/03/2017 are shown in the following table:

Recognised _ . |
: in other Recognised
a) Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities) 01/01/2016  gains & ;nhgweiolﬁ 3112/2016

;2016 losses |-Xli

o e 2
Long-term assets ;
Intangible assets, property plant, equupment and

investment property (267,075) (80,517) (79,326) (426,918)

fLong-term liabilities

Provisions for retirement and other employee ‘ 16’536‘ o (é7i) o ‘3,682’ " 1 9,547
benefits
"Provisions for litigations - ; 17,312 - (5,237) 12,075
Shortterm liabilites T ——
‘Liabilities for taxes, contributions and fees 186 - 12 198
Calculated, but not paid employee eamings, art 9, ‘ - B
‘paragraph 2 of the Law - - 2,079 2,079
Unusedtaxoredts  tagmmo - aziesn 2273
| (88,308)  (81,188) (200,787) (370,283)
e pses
b) Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities) 01/01/2017  gains & in income 31/03/2017 .
12017 losses Ml sheet it ;

A

éLong-term a&eeis

/Intangible assets, property plant equ:pment and

(426,918) 27,081  (399,837)

investment property - )
Short-term assets
Rocataties fomedle Lo
Shorttom fnancial mestments Ll ]
'Long-term e T
"Provisions for retirement and other employee h w19’547 o '(1"170) ‘ 1"8’377;
benefits \
Prodsions o7 Tigations el iz
S e T e . s
Liabilities for taxes, contributions andfees 198 - 2 200
Coiatad Bt ot oaid smpioTes samines B e 0
‘paragraph 2 of the Law 2079 - (5086) 1,573
Pkl e B e
Uused Ta Toggas
Usedtaxoedts mm R
(370 283) - 2,671 (367,612)
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017
DEFERRED PERIOD TAX REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (cont'd)

Balance of recognized deferred tax assets as of 31/03/2017 amounts RSD 32.225 thousand and all
refers to deferred tax assets on 31/03/2017 calculated with the applicable corporate income tax rate of
15% on the balance of the provisions for retirement provisions for jubilee benefits, provisions for
litigation and on the balance of unpaid public revenues, as well as for the amount of unpaid and
recognized expenditures for employees' salaries from article 9, paragraph 2 of the Law on corporate
income tax, as the same relate to temporary differences that will be recognized in tax period in which
the same are paid. The balance of recognized deferred tax liabilities as of 31/03/2017 amounts to
RSD 399.837 thousand.

After application of the requirements of IAS 12 that is offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities on the balancing date, the balance of deferred tax liabilities as of 31/03/2017 amounts to
RSD 367.612 thousand (on 31/12/2016 RSD 370.283 thousand).

Effects from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities in relation to the initial balance, in the
amount of RSD 2.671 thousand, are recorded at the account of the deferred period tax revenues.

28. PROFIT PER SHARE ' 12017 -1 2016
- in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Netprofitforowners 510288 497,203
Net profit correction - -
Netpl‘-dfi'tafte‘r‘b“orréction B ; : e : 510',23'8“ ;;4‘9‘7’20;3 |
Awraged weighted number of shares 34289350 34289350
‘Basic earnings per share in RSD 14.88 14.50

29.a. INTANGIBLE PROPERTY

DESCRIPTION 31/03/2017 31/12/2016 t
[Initial balance, 187042 102871
Procurements during theyear 430 84171
Alienation, removal fom inventoryand sale b T -
Finalbalance o ‘ e 191,392 187,042
Value correction
Initial balance . 5132 22348
Amortisation in currentyear 7458 28964
Alienation, removal from inventoryand sale o e
Final balance 58,770 51,312
Netpresentvalve 132,622 135,730

Total investment into intangible assets amounts RSD 4.350 thousand.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

30. SHARES IN CAPITAL OF OTHER LEGAL ENTITIES AND OTHER

SECURITIES 31/03/2017 31/12/2016.
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD!
Privedna banka a.d. Belgrade - ‘ 392 o 392
Minus: value correc.of partic. in capital of banks in bankrupicy (392) (392)
Participation in capital of banks in liquidation ;
Union banka a.d. Belgrade in liquidation ‘ 667 667
Beogradska banka a.d. Belgrade in hqurdatron - ” R 18,988 o “1'8,9‘881
.Beobanka a.d. Belgrade - in liquidation ' ' ' 38 - 38
iadotiadahathe S . T ages . 16,603
‘Minus: value correc.of partic. in capital of banks in liquidation ‘ (19, 693) (19,693)
Pamclpatton in cap:tal of fore:gn Iegal entrtles
‘Mondial Bodrum - Turkey k 358,598 358,59‘8V
Societe Internatrona! de Telecom unic. Aeronautrques Swisse (SITA) ‘ 1 1
‘Minus: value corr. ofpartlcrp in caprtal ofMondtal Bodrum Turkey (358,598) ‘ (358,598)
1 1
1 1
31.a. OTHER LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 31/03/2017 31/12/2016.
e | e in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
‘Membership in Societe International de Telecomunications ‘
EP«eronar.xtiques Swisse (SITA) 6,306 6,360
Long-term oans to employees e e 282 o5 84562
‘Receivables for sold socrallyowed housmg k - N S 1 165 ‘ B 1,168
Receivables for purchase of solidarity housm‘g‘ - - 2275 o 2,196
Total gross 202401 204276
Currentmatuntnes oﬂong-term investments in SITA (692) ' a (‘698)‘
Current maturities of long-term loans to employees (11,598)  (14,233)
Ad;ustment offarr value of long-term Ioans foem ployees N o (1‘38,400) o k (138, 400)
. 141,711 140,945

Receivables from employees for long-term loans for purchase and tenant purchaser of apartments
as of 31/03/2017 amount to RSD 286.095 thousand ((including current maturities in the amount of
RSD 11,598 thousand). Effects of adjustment to fair value amount to total of RSD 138.864 thousand
(RSD 138.400 thousand for the part of long-term receivables from employees and RSD 464
thousand for the part referring to current maturities of long-term receivables). The aforementioned
relates to loans to employees for meeting the housing needs granted for a period of 20-40 years.
The estimate of the fair value of housing loans as of 31/12/2016 is performed by a certified assessor
by projection of future cash flows from collection of receivables for housing loans using discount
rates (built-up method): from 5.5% to 20%, depending on whether and in what intervals housing
loans are revalued or contracted with currency clause, whether they have contracted interest rate or
are contracted without interest rate.

31b. OTHERLONG-TERM RECEIVABLES - ADP 0041  31/03/2017  3112/2016
e k, " WO00RSD 000 RSD
Receivables from buyers based on an Agreement on debt rescheduling V 83,819 ; 83 819;

83,819 83 819
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

31/03/2017 3112/2016

32. MATERIAL, SPARE PARTS, TOOLS AND SUPPLIES - ADP 0045
‘ ‘ ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Basic material ' h k - 61,736 46,906
Spare parts ‘ ' ‘ 10,835 10,502
Tools and supplies ‘ 4,337 4,926
Value correction ofmatenal and spare parts stock ‘('62)‘ - (62)
76,846 62,272
33. GOODS-ADP 0048 - - 31/03/2017  31/12/2016
1 - ‘ - ' ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
‘Goods in warehouse-kerosene S V 4,786 4,786
‘Goods in retali trade o ’ 49 30
200d A e ; T P Y 1"
‘34. ADVANCES FOR SUPPLIES AND SERVICES ADP 0050 31/03/2017  31/12/2016
- ‘ N in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Advances for services in the country o ‘ 41,975 17,603
Advances for foreign services ‘ ) 1,091 946
Advancevaluecorrectlon i ; e e e e
43,066 18,549
35. BUYERS IN THE COUNTRY ! 31/03/2017 311 2/2016:
| - ' - o in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Total balance of recelvables from buyers in the country-gross o 609,658 f‘ 638,795
—Value correctnon of the previous period o (278,284) (116,263)
~—Value correctlon ofthe currentperiod - - e k ; ‘(21,‘674)? ' ; - (162,021)
Total balance of value correction - - (299,958):’ (278,284)'
' 309,700 360,511

Receivables from the buyers in the country on 31/03/2017 amount RSD 609.658 thousand, of which
to undue receivables refer RSD 225.086 thousand, due receivables up to 30 days RSD 18.602
thousand and due receivables over 30 days RSD 365.970 thousand.

Total value correction of receivables from buyers in the country in the amount of RSD 299.958
thousand mainly relates to value correction of receivables from sued domestic buyers in the amount
of RSD 176.529 thousand and other domestic buyers RSD 123.429 thousand.

36. BUYERS ABROAD :~ 31/03/2017  31/12/2016

| - N ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

Total balance of receivables from foreign buyers-gross 769,404 672826

Value correctlon ofthe previous penod N (12,901) (12,411)

—Value correctlon ofthe previous period a k o o k (9) - ; ‘(4éO)f

Total balance of value correction e (12,910) (12,901)
‘ 756,494 659,925

Receivables from foreign buyers on 31/03/2017 amount RSD 769.404 thousand (undue receivables
RSD 596.226 thousand, due receivables up to 30 days RSD 93.000 thousand and due receivables
over 30 days RSD 80.178 thousand). Total value correction of receivables from foreign buyers in the
amount of RSD 12.910 thousand relates to value correction of receivables from sued domestic
buyers in the amount of RSD 6.707 thousand and other foreign buyers RSD 6.203 thousand.
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37. OTHER RECEIVABLES 31/03/2017 31/12/2016
- ‘ O in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Receivables from buyers inthe country for default interest 23,987 24,905
Receivables for interest on term deposit ‘ ‘ 42 414 42136
Receivables from employees ‘ ‘ 2650 1,347
Other receivables - 41473 k 84518 .
Receivables for overpaid income tax - 338,823 238,912
Total receivables - gross ' - o 449,347 391,818
- Value corr.from buyers for default interest of previous ye‘a‘rs ‘ (385) (385)
- Value corrfrom buyers for default interest of the currentyear - (3.485) R
-Value correction of the earlier period - ﬁ ‘ (6700  (570)
-Value correction of the current period ' k ‘ - - - -
- Value corr.of other receivables ; o ' (2.452) (2,452)
Total balance of value correction (6,892) (3,407)
442,455 388,411
38. SHORT-TERM CREDITS AND LOANS IN THE COUNTRY 310032017  31/12/2016
o ‘ N - ‘ h i in 000 RSD. in 000 RSD
Short-term loans to employees (wint‘.sto‘r‘e‘s,‘heating‘me‘an's‘ -6 mor ' 26‘,227““ - 50,953
' ' 26,227 50,953
39. OTHER SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 31/03/2017 311212016
f o ” o - in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
S B daposis T S 620,657
‘Cuyryrén‘trﬁat‘driﬁes‘ of Idngfterm ‘hbg‘sihg ‘Ioa‘n,s té emp’lyyc‘)yees,:u; ; k 11 ,'598" 1“‘4,233
Current maturities of long-term investmentin SITA 692 698;
; 3,938,198 3,934,958
“AQJUSTMENT OF TAIF VAIUE OT CUTTenT Maturities or Housing 10ans 1o - R
employees 7 (464) (464)
? 3,937,734 3,934,494

Short-term time deposits with balance on 31/03/2017 are disclosed in the amount of RSD 3,925,908
thousand, and relate to foreign currency and dinar deposits, for the period of six months.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

41. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31/03/2017 31/112/2016
‘ ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

Current account~ in RSD ‘ S o o o ' o 71,054 '1 58,6’29
Currentaccount - in foreign currency o o 531,456 578,893
Treaeuny ‘ . , ; . ) e e L
Other funds ; 2380 2,567
Total cash-balance 604,896 740,102
42. PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME 31/03/2017 311272016
' ' o o o in 000 RSD in 000 RSD.
Prepaid VAT + overpaid VAT ' - ‘ B 1,165 33856
Prepaid insurance costs for the future period . 17,432 21,680
Prepéid other costs for the future périod Consultservices for the fuft 70,262 93,682
Prepaid other costs for the future period ‘ . 25609 34,286
Calculated and non-invoiced revenues fot the current period 49,029 51957
Pre-calculated costs ; - ‘ 3,640 170
167,137 235,631

43. CAPITAL ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ - - 31/03/2017 31M12/2016
A e e e e
Share capital R o 20,573.610 120,573,610
R e 4150358 4155955
Revaluation reserves ‘ S 601,813 601,827
P e o TEEe TS 565
Non-distributed profit of previous years I 1775247 303
Non-distributed profitof the currentyear 510,238 1,774,932
27,597,757 27,087,521

44. SHARE CAPITAL

On the basis of the Law on amendments and supplements to the Law on right to free shares and
financial compensation realized by the citizens in the privatization process, the Company was
obliged to carry out a change of legal form until 30 September 2010 and disclose its capital in
shares of a certain nominal vaiue of the based on the adjusted carrying value of equity. In 2010, on
the basis of Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Serbia N0.023-448/2010-1,
recommendations were made to the Company, to make a selection of the best consultant who will
assess the market value of equity and provide assistance in preparing and carrying out the legal
changes of the form from a public company into a stock company.

The Government of the Republic of Serbia on 17 June 2010 adopted the Decision No.023-
4432/2010 on the legal form of the Company from a public company into a closed joint stock
company.

The change is registered at the Business Registers Agency by Decision No. BD 68460/2010 dated
22 June 2010, subscribing capital in total amount of EUR 214,556,965, which on the date of entry
was RSD 20,573,610 thousand.
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44. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d)

in the Central Securities Depository, on 7 July 2010, was registered 34,289,350 shares with a
nominal value of RSD 600 per share, which were on 31.12.2010 in the property of the Republic of
Serbia.

In accordance with the Law on right to free shares and financial compensation realized by the
citizens in the privatization procedure ("Official Gazette" no. 123/07 and 30/10) on 09 December
2010 based on the Decision of the Government of the Republic of Serbia No. 023- 9103/2010-1,
right to transfer 16.85% of the Company ownership acquired citizens of the Republic of Serbia,
employees and ex-employees of the Company.

On 21 January 2011, the Company's Assembly adopted the Decision No. 21-2/1 on the conversion
of the Company from closed into open joint stock company. The change was registered at the
Business Registers Agency by Decision No. BD 765/2011 dated 24 January 2011.

The capital structure after the transfer of ownership of the data from the Central Securities
Depository and Clearing House on 25 January 2011, was as follows:

- Share capital 25/01/2011 (transition to open joint Value in thousand % of

_stock company) RSD Number of shares particip.
RepublicofSerbla 17,107,193 28511988 63.15%
‘Employees and ex-employees ofthe Company 574004 956673 2.79%
Citizens of the Republic of Serbia 2,892,413 4820689 14.06%
‘ ‘ 20,573,610 34,289,350 100.00%

The capital structure on 31/03/2017 and 31/12/2016 was as following:

31/03/2017 i 311212016

Shareholder - Valuein : Numberof % of : Value in . Number of % of
thousand shares particip. thousand | shares partici

RSD parucip. RSD particip.

Republic of Serbia 17,106,322 28,510,537 83.15% 17,106,321 28,510,535 83.15%

Domestic and fdreigh

2,023,012 3,371,686 9.83% 2,040,253 3,400,421 9.92%
natural persons ‘ : ;

‘Domestic and  foreign 695488 1159146 3.38% 716,733 1194555 3.48%
legal persons ; . . o e e
Custodyentiies 748789 1247981 364% 710303 1183839 345%

20,673,610 34,289,350 100.00% 20,573,610 34,289,350 100.00%
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Revaluation
reserves based on:
45. OTHER COMPONENTS OF THE CAPITAL Reserves @ the revaluation of
‘ property, plant and
equipment

Actuarial
gains

“kBaIkanucekon 01/01/2016 ; ‘ 2,842,810 148,390 12,788
Legalreserves R - T o - .
Sawtoyresenes 1274 - -
Revaluation reserves for land ; ; ; . 278,348 ; .
Revaluation reserves forbuildings - 59,468 .
Revaluation reserves for equipment - w4 -
Decrease of revaluation reserves based on estimation - (2,170) -
Decrease of revaluation reserves based on alienation B o S
ofsupplies = . (856

Actuarial gains on reserves for retirement benefits ‘ - - 4473

Recognition of DTL (deferred taxliabilities) charged to
revaluation reserves S . ost)  (671)

‘Balance on 31/12/2016 4,120,259 601,827 16,590

legalreserves =
Statutoryreserves s s
Rewaluation resenves forland - , ]
Revaluation reserves forbuildings ; , B .
Revaluation reserves for equipment i ; - ) - - -
‘Decrease of revaluation reserves based on estimation - - -
Decrease of revaluation reserves based on alienation T o .
Actuarial gains on resenws for refirementbenefits - - R
Recognition of DTL (deferred taxliabilities) charged to B ;
Tevaluation reserves o e R T

.Balance on 31/03/2017 4,120,259 601,813 16,590

Reserves are created in accordance with the Company Articles of Association.
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46. NON-DISTRIBUTED PROAT - B 31/03/2017 31/12/2016
| | - ~ in00ORSD  in000 RSD
Imtlal balance 01/01 B ‘ ; 1,775,235 2,120,386
Correction of initial balance . -
Corrected initial balance 01/01 ' ' 1,775,235 2,120,386
Distribution of undis ributed profit for dividend o - (750,937)
Transfer to statutory reserves - H - - (1,277,449)
Partncnpat:on ofemployees in proﬁtdxsmbutlon k - (‘92,000)7‘
Net proflt of the current penod k ‘ k ‘ 51 0,238 ' 3,1 90,739
Net proft cormoction e B , S ) ; -
Total net profit of the currenf period k ‘ a k v 510,238 " 3,190,739
Decision on distribution of interim dividend - ‘ 0 1415,807
Undistributed profit of the current period ' 510,238 1,774,932
‘Profit of the previous 'years, resulting from transfer of revaluation
reserves into profit at selling ﬁxsd assets in the current year ; 12 303
Correction of undistributed profit of earlier period 0 0
‘Total undistributed proflt of earlier years 12 303
Undlstnbuted proﬂt 2,285,485 1,775,235

Total balance of undistributed profit on 31/03/2017 in the amount of RSD 2.285.485 thousand is a
result of the part of realized and non-distributed net profit for the period {-XlI 2016 in the amount of
RSD 1.775.235 thousand and realised net profit from the current period, i.e. I-lll 2017 in the amount
of RSD 510.238 thousand, increased for RSD 12 thousand on the bases of transfer of revaluation
reserves into revenue for alienated fixed assets.

‘47.LONG -TERM RESERVES 31/03/2017  31/12/2016
. ” - - in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Reserves for termmal wages - h - 42,946 42,946
gReserves forjubnee awards S ' o 79,569 82,890
Resenves forh’ugatlons | e e . ‘ R . ,‘ "':’840,496' : UHHSQA%‘:

203,011 206,332
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48. CHANGES ON LONG-TERM RESERVES

Changes in long-term provisions for retirement benefits, jubilee awards and litigations in the period
I-1il of 2017, compared to 31/12/2016 are shown in the following table:

7 B - ‘ in 000 RSD
CHANGES ON LONG-TERM RESERVES T:;';L":' t;'ol:'::'se:s Total Litigations
Balance on 01/01/2016 - ’ 41,934 68,305 110,239 114,781
Resewes during the year , o o 7,7133’ 21‘,384‘ ; 28517 - 8,300:‘
Actuarial gains B 1) I ) B
Cancellation durmg the year ; (340) (364) (704) (32,824)
Pay—off during the year (1,308) (6,435) (7,743) (9,761):
Balance on 31/12/2016 N 42,946 82,890 125,836 80,496
Balance on 01/01/2017 42,946 82,890 125,836 80,496
Reserves during the year V , 0 0 0 0
Actuarial gains . .
Cancellation during theyear e e
Pay-off during the year - (3,321) (3,321) -
Balance on 31/03/2017 ‘ ‘ 42,946 79569 122515 80496

49. THE ASSUMPTIONS USED WHEN MAKING CALCULATION OF RESERVES FOR
RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND JUBILEE BONUSES AND CALCULATION OF RESERVES

a) The assumptions used when making calculation of reserves for

retirement benefits and jubilee bonuses 2016 2015
Discount rate . k o ‘ B ‘ ; ; - ,4‘.50%‘ 550% -
Estlmated growth rate ofaverage eammgs \ - ) - 1.00% 2 00% -
F‘“Ct“at'O"pememage , e e 1.50% ,,,;300%,&
Amountcfthe neteammg XI/ ......... e - 73 724 76,360
Total number ofempioyees on 31/12 1323 1253

: . . . . 5 11
LNF‘;”Tbe,’ ofretired workers who received terminal wage atretrement

; Retirement Jubilee h
- b) The calculation of the reserves for employee benefits on 31/12/2016 bonuses bonuses

_in000RSD _ in 000 RSD

1. Reserves on 31/12/2015 - - 41,934 68,305
2.Interestexpense .23 3757
3.Costofcurentwork S .. As2 11521
4.Costofpastwork S B W y
5. Actuarial (gain)foss . .. (4473) 6,106
6. Cancellation of provisions during 2015 in the business books of the (1 648) (6.799)
Company e ; N
7. Total net change in the amount reserved in 2016 (1 +2+3+4+5+6) 1,012 14,585
8.Balance of reserving on 31112/2016 (147) 42946 82,890
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50. LONG-TERM LOANS 31103/2017  31112/2016
‘ - ‘ in 000 RSD in OOO’ RSD'

Abroad | B | 795624 804,828
‘Current maturities ‘ ; ‘ B (90,898) (102,819)

704,726 701,909

Annual Remaining

. Date of amount 31/03/2017 31/12/2016

51. LONG-TERM LOANS interest maturity  31/03/2017  in000 RSD  in 000 RSD
rates (EUR)

‘Long-term credits abroad

-
European Investment Bank 4,07-5,16% 2025 6,398,790.38 795,624 804,828
Total long-term credits (atb) - 6,398,790.38 795624 804,828
Current maturities of long-term credits: o o -731,048.38 -90,898 102,919

5,667,742.00 704,726 701,909

Long-term loans abroad reported on 31/03/2017 in the amount of RSD 795.624 thousand (EUR
6.398.790,38, of which in 2017 it is due for payment EUR 731.048,38 or RSD 90.898 thousand),
relate to the remaining obligations under the Agreement on financing the project of urgent
rehabilitation of transport concluded on 13.12.2001 between the EIB and the Republic of Serbia.
Under the said contract, the Company was granted a loan in the amount of EUR 13.000.000 for
investment and rehabilitation of the Airport infrastructure. The loan was granted with a repayment
period up to 2025, with an interest rate of 5.16% for the first tranche of 3,000,000.00 EUR, 4.85%
for the second tranche of EUR 3,000,000.00 and 4.07% for the third tranche of 7,000,000.00 EUR.
Repayment of the first tranche of the loan shall be made in 31 equal semi-annual instaiments
starting from 05/12/2007; the second tranche is repayable in 30 equal semi-annual instalments
starting from 20/02/2009, while the third tranche began to be repaid from 20/06/2010 in 32
instalments.

Receivable maturity from long-term laons 3110312017 31/12/2016  31/03/2017  31/12/12016
~ inO0ORSD in00ORSD  in0OOORSD  in 000 RSD.

upto oneyear S 90898 102,919 30,423 34,506
one to two years - 103,332 102919 = 29984 29,864
two to three years ‘ 103,332 102,919 25323 25222
three to four years 103,332 102,919 120662 20,580
four fo five years ‘ 103333 102919 16,002 15937
five to ten years “ 201397 290233 23863 23,767
S
795,624 804,828 146,257 149,876

52. OTHER SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 31/03/2017 31/112/2016
e ST RSD Lt
‘Current maturities of long-term loan EIN o 90,898 102,919
e e R {65 518
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53. RECEIVED ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND BAILS 31/03/2017 3112/2016
o - “ ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Advances received from domestic buyers ' ‘ ‘ 46,139 44216
‘Advances received from foreign buyers - 15,952 14,669
Subscriptions from domestic buyers 6,076 ' 5,774
Subscriptions from foreign buyers - ‘ 15,024 18,004
83,191 82,663
54. SUPPLIERS IN THE COUNTRY k '  31/03/2017 31/12/2016:
R N o 000 RSB e
Suppliers in the country-for services ' - ‘ o 82,543 132,618
‘Suppliers in the country- for investments in progress - 45219 94,596
Suppliers in the country-for equapment , k 88,164\ ‘169,‘366
215,926 396,580
55. SUPPLIERS ABROAD 31/03/2017 '31112/2016
‘ ' ‘ ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Suppliers abroad-for services - 131,364 ' 2,278
Suppliers abroad-for equipment o N ) - 147,542 ’ 48 962
' 178,906 51,240
56. OTHER LIABILITIES FROM OPERATION  31/03/2017 311212016
... in000RSD in 000 RSD
Liabilities for charged purchase on behalf of other companies TEnt ) 14 219
-Other liabilities from operation o - ; 663;
21,272 14,882
57. OTHER SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES 31/03/2017 3112/2016
M . . R 00 RSD FOIRSD
Liabilities from salaries S 387 316
Liabilities from parhcupatlon in the proﬁts-gross ' - o 3 o 3‘
Liabilities from interim dividend of RS for 2016 877200 877,200
Liabilities from interim dividend of other shareholders for2016 238607 238,607
Othershon term habmtles - - - - 21, 890 22 268
1,141,387 1,138,394;
58. Liabilities for VAT 31/03/2017 31/12/2016
DY Hapmres e, S e s 600 RS0
Gabiitos orvAT s e
13,423 57,398

51



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

59. LIABILITIES FOR OTHER TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND FEES 31/03/2017 31/12/12016

- . N . ~ in000RSD —in 000 RSD.
Liabilities forincome tax o ‘ 0o 0
Correction of liabilities for income taxfrom prev.years ’ ’ 0 0
Liabilities for taxes, custom duties and other levies 720 ’ 721
Taxes, contnbutaons and other Ievues o ‘ ; 894 1,215

1,614 1,936
60. LIABILITIES FOR INCOME TAX - structure ‘ - © 31/03/2017 31112/2016
- ; R B .JnO00RSD ~ in000RSD
Balance on 01/01 of the current year ‘ , ; 0 ‘ 94 850:
Correction ofincome tax R 0 0
Corrected initial balance 0 94,850
Speciﬁed income tax Iiabi!ities for the current year 72,505 393,279
Correctlon ofmcome tax habllmes ; - -
Specuﬁed income tax hablhtles for the current year—total 72,505 393,279
Paid income taxliabilities - (94,850)
Pre payment ofmcome tax 99, 911 238 912
Advance payment ofmcome tax untll 31/12 ; - (172 416) (632 191)‘

Llablllty for payment of income tax or overpand tax . .

61. ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME 31/03/2017 311 2/2016f
DR A ; : 000 RSD 000 RSD
Accrued expenses for the reporting period - 88525 71,446
Accrued acquisition of software and equment for which mvouce is o 8675 47 885
Calculated revenues for the future period k 26 569 k 17,241 :
‘Other accruals and deferred income o o . 1029 2,503
Taxes contnbut:ons and other le\nes - ; ' - o 234
124,798 139,309
62. OFF-BALANCE REGISTER 31/03/2017 31/12/12016
T bt S ‘, ; — TG00 RSD 500 RSD
Received blankbills -piece 1959 1,922
‘Given blank bms domestlc preces k ' ; : ; ' k B 13 ' k 13
Receaved guarantees RSD ' B ‘ N B : A - ) 423 944 k \ 357 885;
Received guarantees - forengn currency‘ - 119,166 158,544
Given guarantees - RSD h - 7500 - 7,500
Given guarantees - foreign currency I o - -
Solidarity funds from employee salaries 824 625
‘Total off-balance assets and liabilities " 551,236 4 524,556

Received guarantees in Dinars in the amount of RSD 423.944 thousand mainly relate to guarantees
received from suppliers for good performance or guarantee for fault repair within the warranty period.
Received foreign currency guarantees in the amount of RSD 119.166 thousand mainly relate to
guarantees received from foreign suppliers for good performance, for fault repair within the warranty
period or for recovery of advance payments as well as to guarantees received from foreign buyers
for the safety.
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63. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS

Accounting value . Fair value in Accounting value ' Fair value in : Hierarchy of'
ASSETS in 000 RSD 000 RSD in 000 RSD 000 RSD fair value- Valuation techniques and inputs
31/03/2017 31/03/2017 31/12/2016 31/12/2016 Lewels

1 e 5 v 3,:’ g ‘, 5 R . 7

|Assessment was carried out by
-certified assessor with balance on
131/12/2016 {the Institute for economic
5research—Be|grade). During
‘assessment of the property the
{following methodology were used: for
‘apartments - methodology of direct
price comparison; for properties of
'specific purpose, functionally
‘connected and used for business
-activity - cost method, i.e. substitution
‘method, for the objects built in recent

Fixed assets 22,792,038 22,792,038 22,199,928 22,199,928 Lewel 3 )
; ; years-construction costs,; for older
‘ ‘buildings-experience method depending
‘on construction type and leve! of
equipment. Equipment is assessed by
market method and by a method of
ksubstitution of amortised value. For the
_equipment of with reliably indicated
market value by direct comparison with
achieved sale prices in the market,
assessment is made by market
method, i.e. by a2 method of direct price.
comparison;
'in\éétmenf : ‘ . :A'ss“éssmyehkt of a certified assessor
: | 26,525 26,525 26,525 26,525 lLewel 3  31/12/2016 (the Institure for economic -
property : : ,
; : . : ‘research-Belgrade)
‘_Pa::'if:';n . { | [Estimation the management is that
in cap 1 1 1 1i Lewel2 they are not refundable-banks in
other legal |
bankruptcy
persons S
Assessment of a certified actuary with |
a balance on 31/12/2016 - Discounting
‘ of cash fiows as follows: 20% for
Long-term and housing loans which gre not bemg
i revalued ; 7% for housing loans with
short-term \alue adjusted lty and with
financial - 147,231 147,231 149,052, 149,052 Lewel3 e adjustec annually and with
. ; : : interest rate 0,5%, 5,5% for housing
investments - : ) ;
housing loans - :' . loans with currency clause and interest
fiousing loans . ;rate 0,5%; 7,25% for housing loans with,
: value adjusted semi-annually and 7,5%
for housing loans with value adjusted
annually
Otherlong- | — I
term : 83,819 83,819 83,819 83819 Lewl3 CSumation of collectibility by
: X i : ‘management according to IAS 39
receivables / ]
econabios B e N e e P e e Rt Iity‘ by
1 1 1,020,436 020,436 1,020,436 :
from buyers noceTsa  TOmA® 10206 L0204 LRI management accoring to IAS 39
| Otner 103,631 103,631 149,499 149,499 Lewel 3  CStimation of collectibility by
recehables o ; B - {management according to IAS 39

The above table includes only financial resources, because the Company has no financial liabilities that are
disclosed after initial recognition at fair value.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives

Financial risks include market risk (foreign exchange, interest rate and price change risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Financial risks are reviewed on a timely basis and are preferably avoided by
reducing the Company's exposure to these risks. The Company does not use any financial
instruments to avoid the impact of financial risk to the business operations because such
instruments are not widely used, and there is no organized market for such instruments in the the
Republic of Serbia.

I - MARKET RISK

In its operations, the Company is exposed to financial risks from changes in foreign exchange rates
and changes in interest rates. Market risk exposures are examined through sensitivity analysis.
There were no significant changes in the Company's exposure to market risk, or in the manner in
which the Company operates or measure this risk.

a) Currency risk (foreign exchange risk)

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through cash and cash equivalents,
shori-term financial investments, accounts receivable from buyers, liabilities from long-term loans
and liabilities to foreign suppliers.

The Company does not use special financial instruments to protect against risk, considering that in
Serbia such instruments are not in common use.

The stability of the economic environment in which the Company operates, largely depends on the
measures of government in the economy, including the establishment of appropriate legal and
regulatory framework.

Accounting values of financial resources and liabilities in RSD thousand, disclosed in foreign
currency on date of reporting in the Company are the following:

o ... INOOORSD

Total assets ; Total fiabilities g

Cumonoydescrption | STORENT SR
N 31/03/2017 3111212016

T gross  met  gross  met
EUR | 4,037,757 3,879,001 3979299 3827536 9731133 854,799
usD 622870 622870 626857 626,857 o 160
CHF 367 367 363 363 o 0
GBP i 9 o 9 9 o 66

Total dinar counter-val.of ; : i
‘assets and liab. stated in 4,661,003 4,502,337: 4,606,528 4,454,764 973,1 33; 855,025
for.currency : { i

Value of assets and liab.

o 2140517 1461876 2325860 1665485 238595 412505
stated in dinars IS D | S T U F R

Total 6,801,520

. 6,932,388
5964213

| 6120249 1211728 1,267,530

By analysis of the currency structure of financial assets and liabilities as of 31/03/2017, along with
the balance as of 31/12/2016, it can be concluded that currency clause are higher than the
confracted financial liabilities in foreign currencies Financial liabilities contracted in foreign currency
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’'d)
a) Currency risk (foreign exchange risk) (cont'd)
are generally of long-term nature.

The Company is sensitive mainly to changes in the exchange rate of the Euro (EUR) and U.S.
Dollar (USD).

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of the Company fo increase and decrease in RSD
rate of 10%, in comparison to the foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding receivables and liabilities in foreign currency and shows their change of 10% at the end
of the reporting period in exchange rates. A positive number in the table indicates an increase of the
result in the current period when RSD strengthens against the currency in question. In the case of
weakening of RSD by 10% compared to the foreign currency, the effect on the current period would
be negative.

in 000 RSD
EUR influence USD influence =~ CHF influence GBP influence
Changes 10.00% -1000% 10.00% -10.00% 10.00% -10.00% 10.00% -10.00%
: P T |
‘Gain/loss -290,596 -62,287 -37 -1
in 000 RSD
; L I 3111272016
: EUR influence USD influence CHF influence GBP influence
Changes 10.00% "-10.00% 10.00% ' -10.00% 10.00% ' -10.00% 10.00% ’-10.00%
‘Gainfloss -297,274 - 62,670 36 6

b) Risk of interest rate change

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on assets and liabilities with fioating interest rate.

The Company has placed cash and cash equivalents in the group of interest-bearing financial assets
with variable interest rates, because it contracted with banks "a vista" interest of variable character,
depending on the amount in current accounts and the reference interest rate.

The risk of changes in interest rates on the Company does not represent a significant risk, because
the categories of financial instruments that have contractual interest are generally defined with fixed
interest rate.

Financial instruments classified by categories of interest and non-interest resources are disclosed in
the following summary:
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’'d)

b) Risk of interest rate change (cont'd)
L . __ in00ORSD
) 31/03/2017 . 31/12/2016

Financial assets-net !

Total val.correction netamount.  Total val.correction netamount
Non-interest
Share in capital of 378684  (378,683) 1 378684  (378,683) 1
oth.leg.enties ; N
Other long-term 83,819 - 83819 83,819 . 83,819
receivables it ;

1,379,062 (312,868) 1,066,194 1,311,621 (291,185) 1,020,436
Receivables from buyers !

Receivables forinterests 444 553 (6,892) 103,631 152,906 (3.407) 149499
‘and Othfrecelv' s . ’ N : . N e —
26,227 - 26227 50,953 - 50,953
Shortterm fin. invest o o ; ; :
Non-interest-total 1,978,315  (698,443) 1,279,872 1,977,983  (673,275) 1,304,708

Fixed interest rate

Long term 280,111  (138,400) 141,711 279,345  (138,400) 140,945
fin.investments I , . L .
Short torm 3,938,198 (464) 3,937,734 3,934,958 (464) 3,934,494
‘ﬁn.mvestments i
Fixed-total 4218309  (138,864) 4,079,445 4214303  (138,864) 4,075439
Floating interest rate e | S R
. 604,896 ; 604,806 740,102 - 740,102
Cashandcashequiv. "~ » B
'Aloating-total 604,896 0 604896 740,102 0 740,102

6,801,520 (837,307) 5,964,213 6,932,388 (812,139) 6,120,2495

Financial liabilities

Non-interest

Liabilitles from operaton 416104 =~ 0 ;4,1;5-,194; 462702 0 462702
Non-interest-total 416404 0 416,404 462702 = 0 462702
Fixed interest rate
WLongterm e oo B TS
ﬁf::::_“tmat”“ﬁes offong- 4498 0 90,898 102,919 0 102919
Fixed-total 795,624 0 795624 804,828 0 804,828
:Floating interestrate , ,
ff::;fntmaturities of long- 0 0 O 0 0 O
Floating-total 0 0 0 0 0 0
o o 1,211,728 0 1,211,728 1,267,530 0 1,267,530
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
v)  Risk of price change

The Company estimates that there is no risk of price change, because financial instruments of the
Company are not subject to price change on the market.

The Company does not operate with securities that are subject to price change in securities market.
Furthermore, the Company has no turnover of goods subject to price change. The greatest item in
turnover of goods is kerosene which has a transit goods treatment.

Il - CREDIT RISK
The Company estimates that the greatest of the risks affecting financial instruments is credit risk,
representing the risk that debtors will not be in position to settle their debts in full and in due time,
which would result in the financial loss for the Company. The Company's exposure {o this risk is
limited to the amount of receivables from buyers at the balance sheet date.
The Company performs the reconciliation of assets and liabilities annually, with balance as of 30/11
of the current year, or more times during the year for specific clients, if the need arises.

Structure of receivables from buyers mw www
; in00ORSD  tion in 000 RSD fon
Air Serbia " - 136,904 9.93% 147,816 11.27%
JatTehnka 15209090 11.09% 157,448 12.00%
Dufrydoo - . 65254 473% 65347 4.98%
International CG “ - T 41492 301% 41492 3.16%
Air Serbia-Catering Itd 45577 3.30% 45561 347%
iogane , N T R T T
Austrian-branch 13,993  1.01% 14172 1.08%
Other domesticbuyers ‘,102628 744%7 116139  8.85%
Total domestic buyers 609,658 44.21% 638,795 48.70%
Montenegro Airlines T 248957 18.05% 193,036 14.72%
e S N ¥ L
Bha L e o180 4 81%
Turkish Airlines S 35217 255% 34942 266%
e e e e T e s 4T
Aerofot 45844 331% 33341 254%
Altalia o e 19480 141% 20599 157%
Qa'a'A"WﬂYS y ... 10794 074% 10703 0.82%
Swiss Ar .. 23966 174% 29004 222%
FlyDubai - - § 31,920 2.32% 23440  179%
Pegass , R I BTV R e e
R S -1 - 1 e by
Otherforeignbuyers 109158 S 7.92%7 99753 761%
Total foreign bwers ﬁ 769 404 55 79% 672 826§ 51 30%‘
Total gross receivables from domestlc and forelgn buy 1,379, 062 100 00% 1 311 ,621. 100 00%’
Total value correction ) 312 868 ) 201 185f '
Total net recelvab!es f 1 066 194 ! 1,020,436

Receivables from domestic and foreign buyers on 31/03/2017 amount RSD 1.379.062 thousand
(RSD 1.311.621 thousand on 31/12/2016), so the credit risk remains constant. To reduce this risk,
the Company regularly monitors the realisation of the collection, analyses the value of the collection
achieved within the contracted period, collection with exceeded contracted period, and the balance
and age structure of outstanding receivables as per buyers.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
1l - CREDIT RISK (cont’d)

The greater the percentage share of individual buyers in total receivables the higher credit risk,
especially if the buyers with great share in the balance of receivables also have unstable liquidity and
on that basis, exceeded contracted payment deadline.

Receivables from _domestic buyers for goods and services on 31/03/2017 in the amount of RSD
609.658 thousand, accounted for 44,21% of total receivables from buyers for goods and services.
Total balance of value adjustment of receivables from domestic buyers was RSD 299.958 thousand
(accounted to resuits of previous years RSD 278.284 thousand and charged to result of the current
year RSD 21.674 thousand), so the net value of receivables from domestic buyers amounts to RSD
309.700 thousand.

Receivables from foreign buyers for goods and services amounted to RSD 769.404 thousand, which
makes 55.79% of total receivables for goods and services. Total balance of value adjustment of
receivables from foreign buyers was RSD 12.910 thousand (all charged fo results of previous years),
so the net value of receivables from foreign buyers amounts to RSD 756.494 thousand.
31/03/2017 participati  31/12/2016 participat

Age structure of receivables ek hbesiomtutiullit e
N B c S inOOORSD = on  in00ORSD = lon
Undue receiva‘bl‘es from buye‘rs~uncorrec‘t‘ed” ‘ ) 821,312 ’59.56%, 728,5,24’ ’55,54%;
Wuereceivab'es from buyers-corrected . 0 000% 0 000%
Totalundue receivables 821312 5956% 728,524 5554%
1Due rec‘eivab|es‘upt‘q 60“days~uncgrre‘cted - B 136/,974 M9.93% ; \144,1104 1‘0’.99%5
Due receivables up to 69 days-corrected 0 000% 0 000%
“Total due receivables up to 60 days 136974 993% 144,110 1099%
Due receivables over 60 days-uncorrected 107,908  7.82% 147,802 11.27%
Due receivables over 60 days-corrected 312,868 2269% 291,185 2220%
fTotaldue receivables over 60 days ; 420,776 30.51% 438,987 3347%
‘Total receivables-gross 1,379,062 100.00% 1,311,621 100.00%.
Total value correction 312,868 291,185

 Total receivables - net (gross-correction) 1,066,194 1,020,436

Undue receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 31/03/2017,
amounted to RSD 821.312 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to RSD 728.524 thousand).
Due receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 31/03/2017 not older
than 60 days, amounted to RSD 136.974 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to RSD
144.110 thousand).

Due receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 31/03/2017 older than
60 days, amounted to RSD 420.776 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to RSD 438.987
thousand).

Due corrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services older than 60
days as at 31/03/2017 amounted to RSD 312.868 thousand, of which for value correction of
receivables of the current period was placed RSD 21.674 thousand, and at the cost of the results of
previous years RSD 291.185 thousand (due corrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers
for goods and services older than 60 days on 31/12/2016 amounted to RSD 291,185 thousand).

Due uncorrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services older than 60
days, on 31/03/2017, amounted to RSD 107.908 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to
RSD 147.802 thousand). These receivables are not corrected due to the assessment of certainty of
collection of those receivables.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

{ll - LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK

Liquidity is the ability of the Company to settle its liabilities on the terms of their maturity.

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management is on the management of the company,
which has established appropriate management system for short-term, medium-term and long-term
financing of the Company as well as liquidity management. By continuous monitoring of planned and
actual cash flows, the Company maintains adequate cash reserves, and also maintains adequate
maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables present details of outstanding contractual maturities of financial resources. The
amounts shown are based on the undiscounted cash flows arising on the basis of financial resources
based on the earliest date on which the Company will be abie to collect receivables.

Maturity of financialassets _31/03/2017 31/12/2016
: in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Less than 30 days - 1595915 1754695
S A e Vesoae i 54a
3-12months - B 2,282,831 1,897,689
1-5years ) ‘ ‘ 111,207 130,547
oo b vears S s 1130ms
‘ ‘ ' - 5,964,213 6,120,249

The average time to collect receivables from customers in the period I-1ll 2017 amounted to 57 days
(2016: 62 days).

-Maturity of receivables for interests - ‘ 31/03/2017 31/12/2016
ﬁ . ... InO0ORSD in0CORSD
Less than 30 days ‘ ‘ ' 3371 - 3983
A mente S S . S ; 30 464
3Azmonths 28820 32209
62,531 66,656

The stated maturity of interest receivables are contained within disclosure of maturity of financial
assets.

The following tables present details of outstanding contractual maturities of the Company. The
amounts shown are based on the undiscounted cash flows arising on the basis of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company will be required to settle such obligations.

Maturity of financial liabilites a 31032017 31112/2016
S — e RED —— 50 RS

oss o o e T
e 1
B e
o S S . stro arierr
overfive years ' ‘ ‘ 291396 290,232
’ - ‘ h o 1,211,728 1,267,530
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
lil - LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK (cont'd)

In the total liabilities of the Company the largest share have liabilities based on long-term loans in the
amount of RSD 795.624 thousand, of which in 2017 becomes due RSD 90.898 thousand.

Liabilities towards suppliers on March 31, 2017 are disclosed in the amount of RSD 416.104
thousand (December 31, 2016: RSD 462,702 thousand). Suppliers do not charge interest on arrears
to due liabilities, whereby the Company, in accordance with the policy of financial risk management,
settles due liabilities to suppliers within the agreed period. Average time of settlement of liabilities
towards suppliers in the period I- Il 2017 is 27 days (in 2016 it was 46 days).

Maturity of liabilities for interests (for loans) - 31/03/2017 31122016
' ‘ ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD '
Less than 30 days k - - - -
1-3 months 13,684 4204
3-12months ‘ ‘ ' 16,740 30,302
1-5years ; - 91,970 91,603
over five years o 23,863 o 23,768
' ‘ 146,257 149,877

Capital risk management

The aim of capital risk management is provision of such a structure of capital that will secure safety
in operating, liquidity and solvency, at the same time maximizing profit increase of the owner,
through the optimization of debt and equity. In addition to its own capital, which consists of core
capital, reserves and undistributed profit, the Company uses the borrowed funds in the form of long-
term loans. Free cash flow from current accounts, the Company invests in the form of short-term
deposits.

Indicators of indebtedness of the Company as at the end of the reporting current period of 2017 and
the end of 2016 were as follows:

31/03/2017 31/12/2016

e - _— o . _in000RSD in 000 RSD
1 Indebtedness (ADP432+ADP443) = =~ 795624 804,828
2 Cashand cash equivalents (ADP 068) 604,896 740,102

I GROSS INDEBTEDNESS (1-2) o 190,728 64,726
™3 Ratio indebtedness/capital (15 ) - 0.0069 0.0024
4 Short-term financial investment (ADP 062) ' 3,963,961 3,985,447
i NET INDEBTEDNESS (1-4) T (3,773,233) (3,920,721)
Capital (ADP 401) - 27,597,757 27,087,521
6 Ratioindebtedness/capital (/5) B . 0A367 -0.1447.

65. MANAGEMENT EARNINGS

The Company paid remuneration (salaries and contributions) to key management, including
members of the Supervisory Board, members of the Audit Commission and the General Assembly of
Shareholders and Executive directors and Department directors (on 31/03/2017: 23 members; on
31/03/2016: 21 member). In the period | - 1l 2017 it was paid in the gross amount RSD 11.538
thousand (in the period I- lll 2016: RSD 9,207 thousand).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2017

65. MANAGEMENT EARNINGS (cont'd)

Management earnings 31/03/2017 12017  31/03/2016 i 2016
Amountin k Amountin 000
Management Number 000 RSD Number RSD
Eamings 14 eser 12 748
Participation in profit distribution ’ 0 ; 0
Total management 14 9,497 12 7,149
:Compensations to members of the Supenvisory Board 7 1,580 7 1,5372
Compensations to members of the Commission for Revisior 1 159f 1 227
Compensations to members ofthe Shareholders Assembly 1 302 1 294
Total for members of the Supenvisory Board, the 9 2,041 9 2,058
Commission for Revision and the Shareholders Assembly. ;
TOTAL: 23 11538 21 9,207

66. TAX RISKS

The tax laws of the Republic of Serbia are often differently interpreted and are subject to frequent
changes. The interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and
activities of the Company may differ from the management interpretations. The management
believes that tax liabilities are adequately calculated and recorded.

67. LITIGATIONS

On March 31, 2017, against the Company there are litigations in the amount of RSD 118.848
thousand (excluding the effects of default interest). Amounts of final losses on litigations can be
increased on the basis of default interest up to the completion of the settlement, or until the date of
final payment by disputes. On March 31 2017 the Company has made provisions for potential losses
on these litigations in the amount of RSD 80.496 thousand (on 31/12/2016 it was RSD 80,496
thousand) (Notes 47 and 48). According to the assessment of the Company's management on this
basis they does not expect additional significant losses in the future period.

68. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
In accordance with IAS 10 "Events after the reporting period”, we found no existence of other events

that may influence or affect the truthfulness and objectivity of the financial statements for the period
that ended on March 31 2017, or would require adjustment of the financial statements.

Belgrade, May 03, 2017

62



JOINT STOCK COMPANY

BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

- h#o 168 JRal¥

/3,05 - R01¥

BUSINESS REPORT FOR THE PERIOD
11l 2017




CONTENTS

1. GENERAL DATA OF THE COMPANY .....oooiiiiiiiiiiieereniieen ettt sieree e s eaarases sveees 3

2. MANAGEMENT DAT A ...ttt ee et e ettt r e s e s st e e sasbeeeseasbbaeeessneessnses 5
2.1. Review of corporate governance rUlES................c.cccvuveeeseiiiesiiiiiiiii et e s 6

3. AIR TRAFFIC TURNOVER .......oooi ittt ettt s bt e e e ta e s e esaae e s e snane s eanee 7
3.7 AIr MOVEMENT HUINIOVET ...ttt ettt et ee e e e s e reeteeeessen areees 7
3.2 PASSENQEI LUIMOVEN ........cuiieeeiiiiieeeieecceeeeneees ettt eeesaae e s e anee e s e nas e s ssenaeeons 10
3.3 Cargo and Mail HUIMOVEL ...........uuuueiiiii ittt ettt e s et e e e e ae e eee s 11

4. REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES ........coiiiiir ettt ettt e s et e e e s e e e seva e eas 14
4.7 REVEINUEBS ..ot eeee e ettt e et esaee s e e ettt e e e e e s s asbe bt et e eesaesanuasansbeaaeassanaennans 14
4.2 EXPEONATIUIES ...ttt et st e e e e e sttt e e e s e s reseaseseraareneeeenaareeas 17
LG Y - Ty 1 1 SOOI 20
4.4 FINANCIAI FESUI ... vveeveeeeieeeeeetr ettt ieee et e eeceeetveeaeeeesesstrarsaesasasesessssensssesanessnsarsrsennin 21

5. OU GROUND HANDLING DEPARTMENT IN ANT ... 22
5.1 REVENUES GH ...ttt as et aess st et es e nesesensnna 22
5.2 EXpenditures GH...........cocooiuieiieeeiieeeccciee ettt

5.3 Financial reSUIE GH ......oooo e e s s eerie s s anas
. INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS FOR PROTECTION OF IRONMENT ............ 27

~N o

DESCRIPTION OF ALL SIGNIFICANT OCCURENCE D -0 2017
.................................................................................... .Y
-
NN U R 51
8. | : ,
THREE MONTHS H INES T A 57
9. FINANCIAL INST : 5 OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT......... 59
9.1. Man?<et riskK... 59
9.2. Credit risk . R - I S 59
iquidity and cash flow risk........... 59
THE COMPANY 60
istence.of branches gy — e 60

Business report for the period [-III 2017



1. GENERAL DATA OF THE COMPANY ‘

. AKCIONARSKO DRUSTVO AERODROM
Business name NIKOLA TESLA BELGRAD

web site and e-mail address www.beqg.aero; kabinet.abnt@beg.aero

! Activity (code and description) 5223 - Air- fraffic services

RSD 20,573,610,000

Core capital value (on 31/03/2017)

Number of ordinary shares 34.289.350
(on 31/03/2017)
CFl code ESVUFR
ISIN number RSANTBE 11090

Number of issued shares, ISIN number and CFI COD

Business report for the period [-1IT 2017



Ten largest shareholders on 31/03/2017

REPUBLIC OF SERBIA 28,510,537

RAIFEEISEN BANK AD BEOGRAD —
CUSTODY ACCOUNT - KS 375,314

SOCIETE GENERALE BANKA SRBIJA - 136,610
CUSTODY ACC - FO '

RAIFFEISEN BANK AD -
CUSTODY ACC - KS

SOCIETE GENERALE BANKA SRBIJA -
CUSTODY ACC - FO
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' - 2. MANAGEMENT DATA , ‘

Management members on 31/03/2017

Shareholders Assem

Maéier of Economic Sciences, Director of Legal Affairs
and real estate management of Public Enterprise
,Posta Srbije”

1 Vesna Stankovi¢ Jevdevic,
Belgrade

Ljubiga Dejkovi¢, Cuprija

Goran Mirkovi¢, Belgrade

Dragoslav Stankovi¢, Doljevac

Bachelor of Economics, Assistant Director of the
Procurement Directorate at the National Bank of
Serbi

Master of Electrical Engineering and
Telecommunications, Head of telecommunication
projects in the Sector of Investments — PE
ElektromreZa Srbije

Master of Economy, Senior Associate for completion of
documentation and coordination of monitoring of
contract mplementat:on instztute for Manufacture cf

Professional manager, Officer for customer care in

Elektro distribucija Ni$, office in Doljevac

The Executlve Board

Specialist Professional Engineer of Agriculture,

JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, Executive Director

Bachelor of Law, JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport,
Executive Director
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21. REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RULES

JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, as a member of the Chamber of Commerce of Serbia adopted
the Code of Corporate Governance that was published in the Official Gazette of the Republic of
Serbia, No. 99/2012, as well as on the Company's website www.beg.aero

The rules of this Code are supplement to the current legislation, so that no provision of the
Code abolishes the legal rule that governs the same question differently. Also, the Code does
not in any way change the meaning, or proper interpretation of the legal provisions. The Code is
within the limits of the law, because it covers matters that are not regulated by law (the so-called
Legal vacuum), or is regulated by dispositive legal norms.

The Code contains two types of rules:

1) Recommendations - rules that a for-profit corporation has to accept and act upon
them, and which can be recognized in the Code by the use of the word "should";

2) Proposals - rules that are considered desirable practice in corporate governance,
which in the Code can be identified by use of the words "may," "should," and so on.

The recommendations contained in this Code outline minimum standards which
public joint stock companies (members of the Serbian Chamber of Commerce) sh id
accept and act on them, and if they do not do so or do not do so in the manner
by this -Code, it is necessary that they provide an explanation for discrep
the statement on implementation of the code of corporate governan
the Law on companies.

with
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' ‘ ' ‘ 3. AIR TRAFFIC TURNOVER

In the period I-11l 2017 it was achieved total air traffic turnover, as follows:

- 12.111 air movements;
- 955.988 passengers and
- 4.826 tons of cargo and mail.

3.1. AIR MOVEMENT TURNOVER

Achieved number of air movements per traffic types in the period I-1ll 2017 is shown in the

following table:
Number of air movements per air-traffic types

Alr-traffi Achievement Plan Achievement Ind Ind Participation| Participation
r-traffic types 1411 2016 141 2017 1 2017 ndex | Index 1\ 2016 1411 2017
7 2 3 4 5(4/2) | 6(4/3) 7 g
Domestic air-traffic
25 25 13 52 52 0.21 0.11

International air-traffic-
domestic carriers

6,477 6,602 6,437 99 98 53.76 53.15
International air-traffic-
foreign carriers 5,547 6,121 5,661 102 92 46.04 46.74
TOTAL: 12,049 12,748 12,111 101 95 100.00 100.00

from |11
rescribed

s+

The data from the table indicate total number of air movements |
2017, which is 1% higher than last year in the same period and 5% |
in the Rebalancing plan for the period I-11l 2017.

Within carrier pattern of the total traffic in the pe
ic cartiers in international air traffic with 5
affic with 46.74% and at the e

rgest share is of
"?QF?igun carriers in
mestic air traffic with

In comparison t
international air traffic

hare of domestic carrier in
rnational air traffic.

37 air movements

In internatio “of d turnove
is achieved which is b wer compared to it f the previous year and by 2%
lower in comg ebalancing.Plan fo 17..The domestic carriers in

international followiné: Air Serbia, L Aviation and Air Pink.
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13,000
12,000
11,000
10,000
9,000
8,000
7,000

017 we arriers (31 foreign
air carrier ‘ '
n international-air traffic-of foreig r : total turnover of
5,661 air movements is achieved-wh ‘ ~
previous year and by i ing Plan for the period I-lT 2017.
In the pattern-of forei in ' : ificant roles are of:
Lufthansa.with 11,78% of share, then Mogtenegro Airlines with 11.22% and Wizz Air with 10.60%

of share. These three air carriers achi
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Number of air4novements in international airtraffic of foreign carriers

With the shs

(7.35%), Turkish_Airi

(4.31%), with

Swiftair, Eurog

Cargo

prtant Low cos
Wizz Air and P

hsporter. Leipzig Gmbt
t carrie
egasus

Air-carriers Achievement Plan Achievement Index Index Participation| Participation

I-iil 2016 1-ill 2017 1t 2017 1111 2016 I-Hi 2017

1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6(4/3) 7 8

1 IMontenegro Airlines 654 654 635 97 97 11.79 11.22
2 |Lufthansa 630 671 667 106 99 11.36 11.78
3 |Wizz Air 576 662 600 104 91 10.38 10.60
4 Austrian Airlines 444 462 416 94 90 8.00 7.35
5 |Turkish Airlines 395 395 371 94 94 7.12 6.55
6 1Swiss International 226 242 244 108 101 4.07 4.31
7 |Aerofiot 364 363 359 99 99 6.56 6.34
8 |Alitalia 156 180 176 113 98 2.81 3.11
9 |Easyjet 64 66 70 109 106 1.15 1.24
10 |Etihad Airways 182 182 180 99 99 3.28 3.18
12 |Polskie Linie LOT 108 108 180 167 167 1.95 3.18
14 {Tarom Romanian Air 146 182 166 114 91 2.63 2.93
15 {Aegean Airlines 130 130 100 77 77 2.34 1.77)
16 |Qatar Airways 168 166 102 61 61 3.03 1.80)
17 |Pegasus 108 108 102 94 94 1.95 1.80,
18 |Flydubai 78 84 108 138 129 1.41 1.91
19 |Raf Avia 154 154 0 0 0 2.78 0.00
20 [Norwegian Air Shatl 64 62 52 81 84 1.15 0.92)
21 {Tunis Air 26 28 26 100 93 0.47 0.46
23 |Belavia 52 52 54 104 104 0.94 0.95
24 {Aircairo Company 0 12 26 0 217 0.00 0.46
25 | Swiftair Aviation 255 255 248 97 97 4.80 4.38
26 |lsrair Airlines 0 78 82 0 105 0.00 1.45)
27 |Arkia 0 54 26 0 48 0.00 0.46
28 iTransavia 0 78 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
31 |Vueling Airlines 2 2 0 0 0 0.04 0.00,
32 |Adria Airways 0 0 4 0 0 0.00 0.07
33 |Gazprom - GZP 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0.02
34 |Swiftair HELLAS S.A. 132 132 126 95 95 2.38 2.23
35 |Niki Luftfahrt 2 0 0 0 0 0.04 0.00
36 |Corendon Airlines 0 0 4 0 0 0.00 0.07|
Atlasglobal Airlines 0 0 34 0 0 0.00 0.60
38 |Bora Jet 0 0 2 0 0 0.00 0.04
40 |European Air 0 128 130 0 102 0.00 2.30
41 |Ural Airlines JSC 34 34 0 0 0 0.61 0.00
42 |Air Horizont Ltd. 0 0 1 0 0 0.00 0.02
45 {Other 397 397 369 93 93 7.16 6.52
TOTAL: 5,547 6,121 5,661 102 92 100.00 100.00

iSS ..

 Austrian Airlines
International

rkish Airlines,

. Easyjet, Flydubai,
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3.2. PASSENGER TURNOVER

In the first quarter of 2017 a total passenger turnover of 955,988 passengers was
achieved, which led to 10% increase in comparison to the first quarter in 2016 and it is 7% higher
than in the Rebalancing Plan for the period I-11l 2017.

Passenger turnover per air-traffic types

Air-traffic types Achievement Plan Achievement Index Index Participation| Participation
p 1-H1 2016 141 2017 -1l 2017 1111 2016 1-81l 2017
1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6(4/3) 7 8
Domestic air-traffic 34 34 33 97 97 0.00 0.00
International air-traffic-
domestic carriers 431,464 443,090 465,729 108 105 49.59 48.72
international air-traffic-
foreign carriers
438,516 446,633 490,226 112 110 50.40 51.28
TOTAL: 870,014 889,757 955,988 110 107 100.00 100.00

The greatest participation in passenger turnover per air traffic types for the period I-111 2017
is of foreign carriers in international air traffic with 51.28%, then domestic carriers in international

air traffic with 48.72%.

The number of passengers transported by foreign carriers in international air traffic in the
period I-1ll 2017 is by 12% higher compared to the same period last year, and by 10% higher
compared to the Rebalancing Plan for |-l 2017.

Rebalancing Plan for I-1ll 2017.

The number of the passengers transported by domestic carriers in internati affic

is by 8% higher compared to the same period last year, and by 5% higrk to the
‘\‘"‘ §§§na§?§uh

10
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3.3. CARGO AND MAIL TURNOVER

In the period I-lll 2017 total cargo turnover of 4,826 tons is achieved which is by 26%
higher compared to the same period of the previous year and by 1% higher in comparison to the
Rebalancing Plan for the period I-11l 2017.

In international air traffic of domestic carriers, cargo turnover in the period I-lll 2017 was
75% higher than the turnover for the same period of 2016 and by 42% higher than in
Rebalancing Plan for the period I-11l 2017, while in international air traffic of foreign
turnover in the period I-llf 2017 was 11% higher than the turnover for the-
previous year and by 11% lower than in the Rebalancing Plan for the

Cargo and mail turnover in tons

cipation| Participation

Achievement Plan Achievem

o 4 H1- 2046 1-2017 141 4112016~ 1-tH 2017
2 3 7 8
D ic air-traffi ‘
omestic air-tra g”:c 0.0 0.00
International air—ﬁ'afﬁc-
domestic carrlers 142 23.52 32.80

International alr-izraff {2
foreign carriers

: 76.37 67.20
TOTAL: . 100.00

11
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PHYSICAL VOLUME OF AIR-TRAFFIC 1Il 2017

Aiaffc tpes A°:’_:;"2°0"1‘:”t Plan 11 2017 AC:‘_:ﬁV;OT;"t "
Participation ~ Participation ~ Participation

1 2 3 4 5(412) |6(413)
Domestic air-raffic
Air movements B 0 2% 0 13 0 5 9
Passengers o0 Moo0 B0 9 o
Cargo and mail air (f) 4 0 4 0 o0 0 0 0
International air-traffic - domestic
carriers
Air movements 6477 54 6,602 52 6437 93 % %
Passengers 431464 50| M30000 50| 465729 49] 108 105
Cargo and mail air+ruck () 0y A4 IR R RERE
International air-traffic - foreign carriers |
Air movements 7| 46 6121 48 5061 47 102 9
Passengers 438516) 50| 446633 50 490226 51 112( 110
Cargo and mail air+ruck (1) 2932 T4 36| 16 33 e 11 89
Total
Air movements 12,049' 100] 12,748' 1000 12111 1000 101) 9§
Passengers sro0a] 100 seorsr 100]  osseee| 100] to] 107
Cargo and mail air+truck (¢ 3,839) 100) 4,756( 000 4382 100| 126/ 101

13
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: 4, REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES '

The Company performs business activity as single business segment. Accordingly,
revenues and expenditures are disclosed at company level.

4.1. REVENUES

In the period I-1ll 2017 JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport achieved the total revenue in
amount of RSD 2,002,015,404. Thus achieved total revenue is 10% higher in comparison to the
achieved revenues in the same period of the previous year and 3% higher in relation to the
Rebalancing Plan for the same period.

The pattern of the achieved revenues for I-lll 2017 is shown in the table Revenue pattern
by service types.

In the pattern of achieved revenues for the period I-1ll 2017 business revenues have the
greatest participation amounting to RSD 1.959.085.256 which is 98% of the total revenues. Thus
achieved business revenues are 11% higher than the same in the same period of the previous
year and 4% higher in relation to Rebalancing Plan for the period I-1il 2017.

Part of business revenues generated by providing air services in the amount of RSD
597.173.314 makes 30% of the total revenues. These revenues are 1% higher than in the same
period of the previous year and at the same level as it is predicted in the Rebalancing Plan for the
period -1l 2017.

Revenues from passenger service and security fees were RSD 829.708
111l 2017 which makes 41% of totally realised revenues, were 15% higher thar
on this basis in the same period of the previous year and 8% highe
for the period I-1ll 2017.

ancmg Plan

warehouse are
nues achieved on
ebalancing Plan for

In the penod I-Ill 2017 the revenues from servic
of RSD 42.255.
riod of 2016,

the period I-11I

higher than in the
eriod I-11l 2017.
e-first quarter in
s to® revenues from de-
"spécial request-work order,

In the period -
same period last year and by 39
They amount RSD.291.171.34
2017 in comparison ta the fir
icing services
revenues from

m utilities, revenu

PR B
altu vl |U!

; ‘ m sale
ey amount to RSD 306
In the
198.470.440 and il
refers to lease of b

:>f goods refert es in restaurants

e of business :
penod 2016 The most part of these
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Financial revenues ( group 66) in the period I-1ll 2017 are achieved in the amount of RSD
37.961.077.

In the pattern of financial revenues for I-lll 2017, the most part refers to interests in the
amount of RSD 21.733.924, then to exchange rate differences-realised in the amount of RSD
8.248.366 and non-realised exchange rate differences in the amount of RSD 7.978.787.

- Other revenues (group 67 and 68) in the period i-lll 2017 are achieved in the amount of
RSD 4.969.071. They are 3 times higher in comparison to the same period of 2016 and the
increase of other revenues in the period I-lll 2017 is mostly influenced by the revenue from
purchase of tender documentation - foreign.

Major foreign buyers from the point of their participation in revenues from sale in the period
I-lll 2017 are: Deutcsh Lufthansa RSD 142.537 thousand (8.10%), Wizz Air RSD 138.234
thousand (7.85%) and Montenegro Airlines RSD 107.010 thousand (6.08%).

15
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REVENUE STRUCTURE I-Hl 2017

1+

Total air services {international carrier):
Total air services

Achievement Rebalancing Achievement
No: Service type Service description Pian indexes
2018 1412017
2017
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 (6/4) | 8 (6/5)
Alr services of domestic carrier

614000+614004+614300+614302+614303+614304 Landing 33,828,414 42,065,548 38,805,388 115 92
6§14010+614014+614310+614312+614313+614314 Lighti 13,205,331 13,462,158 14,498,050 110 108
614030+614034+614330+614332+614333+614334 GH 37,627,694 45,601,669 41,052,568 109 90
614040+614042+614043+614044 Infrastructure 20,636,850, 25,137,183 22,733,941 110 90

614050 Alr-bridges 0 0 3,470 0 0
614020+614024+614320+614323+614324 Alrcraft abode revenue 899,605 982,957 631,572 70 64
1 Total air services (domestic carrier): 108,195,904 127,249,615 117,824,998 111 53|

Air services of foreign carrler

615010+615011+615012+615013+615014 Landing 149,489,645 149,946,633 156,681,201 105 104
615020+615021+615022+615023+615024 GH 170,067,955, 157,934,851 147,405,511 87 93
615030+615031+615032+615033+615034 Lighting 18,754,676 15,251,165 20,909,179 111 137
815040+615042+615043+615044 Infrastructure 99,441,762 99,385,680 103,153,829 104 104

615060+615062 Air-bridges 43,902,217 44,014,360 45,455,400 104 103
615000+615001+615002+615003+615004 Aircraft abode revenue 5,476,506 5,852,774 5,743,198 105 98

AR AR, 761‘ 4?’2,385.4821 479,348,316 ssi 101
593,328,665 599,634,978 597,173,314/ 101 100

Passenger service

614400+614404 - domestic carriers - domestic airtraffic | Passenger service d.c/i.c. 8,706 3,237 0 0 0
614181+614182+614183+614190+614192(BRS and
PRM)+614410+614412+614413+614414 Passenger service d.at/i.at. 226,569,846 242,750,334 237,520,269 106 o8
615150+6151562+615200+615210+6156212+6156213+615214+
615215+615862+615864+615896-PRM nger service international ca 344,322,143 322,348,086 391,112,765 114 121
614420+614430+614432+614433+614434+615230+6156232+
615233+615234 Security fee 147,503,528 201,018,106 201,075,710 136! 100
i Totalpassengerservice |
CCM service
614500+614510 CCM service dom.market 33,801,634 42,968,459 39,205,651 116 91
615300 +615310 (foreign) LM service international mary 3,323,799 3,776,540 3,049,754 92 81
7 TomibeMsenviees T 1 38438 46744908 42255406 144 90
: = 348,858,321 1.412,499.741 ‘

Other services
1 1614360+615100+615102 DCS sepices 5,647,086 6,109,927
614110+614112+614115+614116+614170+814173+614180+
2 [B814184+614391+615872+615873+615874+615875+615876+ Work order 27,952,376
615877+615891+615892+615895 135 a7
3 1614130+614131+615071+615072 VIP lounge 130 1089
4 1614140+614142+615090+615082 CUTE (dom.+intl) 112 76
5 1614380+615080 Lost and found 124 78
6 [6146+615120+615400+615401 Public senices 114 108
7 |814820+615170 Catering senices business cla 0 8}
| Advertising space 16,613,653 106 94
. Commercial ugage of the ,550 14,213,773 121 91
10 |614160+61 : 0+615112+615113+615114 Alrcraft de-t % ,239 L 760 115,972,405 199 638
11 |Other non-mentioned s , 364 ° 50,101 18,783,855 101 a5
Vi [Otherservices(itotly ~ | wizoarazs)  ess7Tizerl  2e1A7i310]  137] 139
Vil | Total 61 - Revenues from sale of sarvices (V+

i ] "

| | 15600908749 1522071468  1,760,308,772] 13| 109

Vil
L
~
X V17,037,930 265,154,158 dosA70.440) 112 75
- 1 1 1 ] ]
Xi 80+61+62+64+465 1,769,693,301]  1,888,835,720{  1,959,085,256
] ; , L L1 i 1 1
X 66 - FINANCIAL REVENUES . 81,598,484 43,411,467 37,961,077 62 87
1 interest 25,467,472 25,618,757 21,733,924 86 85
2 exchange rate differences - realised 33,036,774 17,792,711 8,248,366 25 46
exchange rate differences - non-realised 3,094,238 .,0,978,787 258 0
1,683,809 11,773,268 _ 49s907T1] 293 42

B7 AND 68 OTHER REVENUES

Tétai reven;iéé(_xn}mﬂull

H I — “ i —_»zv
1,827,085,704|  1,944,020,448]  2,002,015,404]  116]  103]
i i i i i Ny
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4.2. EXPENDITURES

In the period I-1ll 2017 total expenditures were achieved in the amount of RSD
1.421.943.572. Thus achieved expenditures are 14% higher than in the same period of the
previous year and 2% lower in relation to Rebalancing Plan for the period -1l 2017.

The costs of material and energy (group 51) for the first quarter of 2017 amount to RSD
157.134.881. They participate in total expenditure with 11% and mostly refer to: costs of basic
material, costs of electricity, costs of heating oil, costs of fuel for cargo vehicles and costs for
working clothes and shoes.

Hugest amount within total expenditures refers to the costs of salaries,
reimbursements and other personal expenditures (group 52) amounting for the period I-ll|
2017 RSD 760.655.752 and they are 8% higher than in the same period last year. It is necessary
to notice that change of the employment status of employees in the Company on the account of
permanently employees affected on increase of the costs of salaries and reimbursements.

The costs of salaries of employees (gross Il - groups 520 and 521) in Airport Nikola Tesla
amount RSD 512.280.076, while costs of persons engaged through youth organisations (account
524000) amount RSD 96.874.115 (youth organisations Fan, Beograd, Knez, Medijator and
Europa).

Apart from salaries, the group 52 also includes reimbursements per temporary and

occasional jobs, other personal expenditures (transportation costs for employees, costs of
 business trips, joint assistance and jubilee bonuses, etc.), reimbursements for members of
governing and supervisory bodies, reimbursements by contracts (service contracts).

The costs of production services (group 53) in the period I i 201
105.967.822 and they are 5% higher then in the same period of the pr :

The pattern of cost of production services consists of:

13.277.613 and
 ITT support for

,Mgcosts of information and |
e reglstratlon and other.

. unt. RSD 52.530.737 and
they are 17% higher than the costs of the current

maintenance of iT eqmpment

- costs of re;ntmg w?nc i ' I 11.203:941 and mostly refer to
renting of business facili asing of web structures and
servers. The costs r-than-in-the same period

wa%tering, g
& same period in 2016.

stly refers to
% lower than

RSD 9. 664 695 and they are
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The costs of amortization and reserving (group 54) for the period I-1ll 2017 amounted to
RSD 234.985.611 and they are 15% higher than in the same period of the previous year, due to
significant investment to fixed assets and 10% higher than in the Rebalancing Plan for the period
I-111 2017.

Intangible costs (group 55) for the period I-11l 2017 amount to RSD 112.203.463 and are
higher in relation to intangible costs realized in the same period last year mostly due to the costs
of consulting services.

The pattern of intangible costs (group 55) consists of:

- costs of non-production services are the most significant in the group of intangible costs and
are achieved in the amount RSD 68.375.845 mostly referring to consulting services in the amount
of RSD 23.763.094.

- costs of taxes (RSD 20.131.465)

- other intangible costs (RSD 12.223.543)

- costs of insurance premiums(RSD 8.604.696)

- costs of money transfers (RSD 1.407.889)

- costs of representations (RSD 825.010)

- costs of membership fees (RSD 635.014)

Financial expenditures ( group 56) in the period I-lll 2017 are disclosed in the amount of
RSD 19.045.662.

Realised negative exchange rate differences are achieved in the amount of RSD
1.265.149 and participate with 7% in the pattern of total financial expenditures.

In the pattern of the financial expenditures, expenditures realised from interests participate
with 47%, amount RSD 8.864.833 and are lower 12% than in the same penod last yea
noted expenditures from interest mostly refer to interest from long-term lo :
reconstruction of the Terminal building).

Non-realised negative exchange rate differences in the first
in the amount of RSD 8.915.680 and participate with 47%
expenditures.

achieved in the
hey amounted RSD

penditures (group. 57, 58 and 59
amo 2.906, while ir :

3.554.179.

other expenditures in the
pstly from the fact that the
e ction of domestic

It is necessary to
period |-l 2017 in compariso
greatest part of-Other ex
buyers, (Jat Tehnika).

at differe
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i Rabafanciny

Achievement

~ ~ it wa ; ~
-—-—-—“-
50 [PURCHASEVALUEOF SOLDGOODS | _ S0 zorars 1] 3
Eﬂ"ﬂ
51 |COSTS OF MATERIAL ANDENERGY 18713
11 |COSTS OF MAKING MATERIAL 38,603,505 38,257,842 66,111,220
I512  |cOSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS 1,030,132 2814234 291150 283 103
I513 |cOSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 72,792,284 56,030,318 83352487 115 149
I514  |cosTs OF SPARE PARTS 7,944,043 17,816,582 470838 60 7|

(COSTS OF SINGLE WRITE-OFF OF TOOLS AND INVENTORY R
COSTS OF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES

%0 |COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS (GROSS) v
521 looSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 73,354,837 75,579,226| 176208 108] 103
[s22  |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS - GROSS 319,532 95,860! 96,500 0
[524  |coSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 136,275,403 138.412,017| 155154136 114 112
I525  |COMPENSATION TO NATURAL PERSONS FOR OTHER CONTRACTS - GROSS 0| of 0
152 |COMPENSATION TO DIRECT, LE. MEMBERS OF MANAGEM. AND SUPERVIS. BODES - GROSS 2,041,138

OI}ER PEFB(NAL E)PEM.’!TLRES MD WPENSATCNS

190&641

(COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
Is2  lcosTs OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 44,981,365 3,645,621 5073 111 e
[533  lcosT OF LEASE 12,332,378 18,629,074 11,203,941 20
[535  |ADVERTISING COSTS 17,496,999 16,510,000 19200835 110, 117

0%1‘5 OF OTPER SERVICES

: |COSTS OF NON-PRODUCTION SERVICES

I551  |COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 1,%8,138|
Iss2 |COSTS OF INSURANCE PREMILMS 295, 8,788,606
1553 |COSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 1,189,569] 1,310,636
Iss4  lcosts oF MEMBERSHPS 4,094,361| :
COSTS OF TAXES 19,763,616

o

25,158,072] 365226]
[} 0
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4.3. SALARIES

In the period I-ll1 2017 the total amount of RSD 434.503.872 (gross 1) was paid for salaries.
it is 6 % higher than in the same period 2016 and 3% higher than the planned figures for the first

quarter of 2017.

Month | Achlevement | Rebalancing Plan | Actievement | inges
5 6
1 2 3 4 (42) | (4/3)
January 148,211,040 140,743,437 141,135,782 95 100
February 132,265,745 140,743,437 136,689,966 | 103 97
March 129,326,788 140,743,437 156,678,124 | 121 111
Total salaries 409,803,573 422,230,312 434,503,872 | 106 103

In the period I-1ll 2017 salaries of employees are paid off per individual work contracts.

In the period I-1ll of the current year the average Gross | salary in the Company amounted
RSD 112.975 and it is higher than in the previous year by 8%. In the period I-1ll 2017 the average
net salary in the Company amounted RSD 80.378 and it is 8% higher than in the same period last
year.

AVERAGE SALARY GROSS | AVERAGE SALARY NET

74,185

Average |-l 2016 104,187 Average I-ill 2016

I-111 2017/1-111 2016 I-1i1 2017/1-111 2016 108%

108% ;
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4.4. FINANCIAL RESULT I-lll 2017

In the period I-lll 2017 gross profit of the Company were achieved in the amount of RSD
580.071.832.
Thus expressed gross profit is 1% higher than gross profit in the same period 2016.

. Rebalancin .
No. Position Act:;vzeol?: nt Plan ’ Act;ﬁv;ol?; nt Index
14l 2017

1 2 3 4 5 6(58) | 7 (54)
1 |Operating revenues 1,759,693,301 1,888,835,7201  1,959,085,256 111 104
2 |Operating expenditures 1,217,811,705 1,4:"5]_,____546,619 1,371,155,004 113 95
3 |Business profit (1-2) 541,881,596/ 451,289,101 587,930,252 108 130|
4 |Financial revenues 61,598,484 43,411,467 37,961,077 62 87
5 |Financial expenditures 26,422,218 13,967,956 19,045,662 72 136

) /76,266 294351 18915415 &4
7 |Other revenues 1,693,509 11,773,258 4,969,071 293 42

Other expenditures 3,554,179 5,529, 677 31,742,906

12a [Total grossloss (11-10)
13 |Period taxexpenditure 113 0
14 |Deferred period tax expendi 0 0
15 |Deferred income t 0 0
16 |Earnings pai

| 17_|Net pr 510,238,280  103] 10§

e Company were achieved in the amoUnt of RSD
% higher than net profit in the same period 2016.

510.238.280. Thus expressed net profiti
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5. OU GROUND HANDLING IN AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

According to the Regulation on the provision of ground handling services at airports
(Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia no. 61/2015-hereinafter the Regulation) Belgrade
Nikola Tesla Airport drew up the Business plan of OU Ground handling within ANT, no. 33-
179/2 dated on 24/06/2016.

According to the Regulation on the provision of ground handling services at airports,
Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is responsible for accounting records of the business activities of
the airport operator and the activity of providing ground handling services so as to ensure
complete separation of accounts specified activities.

The Regulation defines the types of services that Ground Handling provides to third parties
as follows:

1) Aircraft ground handling on apron;
2) Ground handling of hold baggage,;
3) Supply of aircraft with fuel and lubricants;

4) Ground handling of mail and goods, in part related to the physical handling at arrival,
departure or transfer between the cargo terminal and the aircraft.

Determination of achieved revenues and expenditures in the period I- IH 2017 f
Ground handling is in accordance with the Business plan of OU Ground han
179/2 dated 24/06/2016.

OU-GH-in ANT in the
in the realised business

period I-1ll 20
revenues of A

NT for 2017

Financial revenu , or the period I-11l 2017

and they refer

O r the period [-1ll 2017 and

le of se¢
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REVENUE STRUCTURE ANT/GH 111 2017
1 3 6 (5/4)
Air services of domestic carrier

614000+614004+614300+614302+614303+614304 Landing 38,905,398 (%} 0
6140104614014+614310+614312+614313+614314 Lighting 14,498,050 0 0
614030+614034+614330+614332+614333+614334 GH 41,052,568 41,052,568 100
6§14040+614042+614043+614044 Infrastructure 22,733,941 0 0
614050 Air-bridges 3,470 347 10
614020+614024+614320+614323+614324 Aircraft abode revenue 631,572 G 0
i Total alr services ([domestic carrier); 117,824,996] 471,052.915] 3_§{
0
Air services of foreign carrier 0
615010+615011+616012+615013+615014 Landing 156,681,201 0 0
615020+615021+615022+615023+615024 GH 147,405,511 147,405,511 100
615030+615031+615032+615033+4615034 Lighting 20,909,179 0 0
615040+615042+615043+615044 Infrastructure 103,153,829 0 0
615060+615062 Air-bridges 45,455,400 4,545,540 10

615000+615001+615002+615003+615004 Aircraft abode revenue 0

Total air services (international carrier):

Passenger service

: Total air services :

5,743,196

597,173,314

161,951,081
193,003,966

614400+614404 - domestic carriers - domestic air-traffic Passenger service d.cli.c. 0 0 3
614181+614182+614183+614190+614192(BRS and 4
PRM)+614410+614412+614413+614414 Passenger service d.at/i.at. 237,520,269 9,824,997
615150+615152+615200+615210+615212+615213+615214+61 3
5215+615862+615864+615896-PRM nger service international cg 391,112,765 12,147,203
614420+614430+614432+614433+614434+615230+615232+61 0
5233+615234 Security fee 201,075,710 0

; Tatai passenger service
Tutai air sewices and passenger service

< 1 BB 21,972,200

~ [Total services related o air rathe o V)

CCM service
614500+614510 CCM service dom.market
615300 +615310 (foreign) M service Internationai mar
_ Total CCM services L ‘ .

Other services

mter est

1 |614360+615100+615102 DCS senices 3,090,031 100]
614110+614112+614114+614115+614116+614170+614173+61
2 |4180+614184+614391+615872+615873+615874+615875+6158 35,077,607 93
76%615877+615891+615892+615895
614130+614131+615072+615071 0 0
614140+614142+615090+615092 CUTE (dom. +inti) 0 0
5 |614380+615080 Lost and found 3,688,040 100}
6 |6146+615120+615400+615401 Public senice 44,570,917 0 0
7 |614820+615170 busi 0 0 0
8 |614870+615810 Adwertising 16,613,653 0 0
9 1614883 i 14,213,773 0 0
10 [614160+614164+615110+6151 14+ 15,972,405 115,972,405 100
11 Other non-mentioned senices dg 2, 068 501
emmawscesﬁ 1o 11}: -

31,733,504

exchange rate differences - realised

8,248,366

exchange rate dﬂferences non-reahsed
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5.2. EXPENDITURES OF OU GROUND-HANDLING

In the period I-lll 2017 total expenditures of GH were achieved in the amount of RSD
375.651.520, which represents 26% of realised expenditures of ANT on this bases for the relevant
period of 2017.

Total realised business expenditures based on services provided by OU GH in ANT in
the period I-111 2017 amount RSD 375.163.636 and participates with 27% in the realised business
expenditures of ANT for 2017.

Financial expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 45.059 for the period I-1ll 2017
and they refer to negative exchange rate differences.

Other expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 442.825 for the period -1l 2017.
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1 ‘ - EXPENDITURE STRUCTURE ANT/GH 1411 2017 ; ‘

Uil |Achievement 1|
maorzon | N9

AC’%Q wmem
2017 I\NT

5(453)

COSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS
513 COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY
COSTS OF SPARE PARTS

COSTS OF SINGLE WRITE-OFF OF TOOLS AND INVENTORY
COSTS OF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES

20 |COSTS OF SALARES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS (GROSS) 32
21 |COSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 77,776,204 24,617,656 32
522 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS - GROSS 96,500 0 0
524 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 155,154,136 56,909,773, 38
525 |COMPENSATION TO NATURAL PERSONS FOR OTHER CONTRACTS - GROSS of ) 0
526 | COMPENSATION TO DIRECTOR, LE. MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 2,041,138| 248,104 12

OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES AND COMPENSATIONS 7

24,417,745

‘oosws‘ OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

532 COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 2,082,031 4
533 COST OF LEASE 389,770 4
535 ADVERTISING COSTS O 0

COSTS OF OTHER SERVIGES

Reserving for costs of resfr.
545 RESERVES FOR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
OIHER LON&TERM RESERVES

COSTS OF REPRESENTATION
552 COSTS OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS
553 COSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM
554 COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS

355 COSTS OF TAXES

OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS

s =
NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES

T-T. FIN. INVEST
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5.3. FINANCIAL RESULT OF OU GROUND HANDLING

No. Position Achievement ANT Achlecll:ment index
-1 2017 -1 2017
7 2 3 4 5 (473)
1 |Operating revenues 1,959,085,256 417,128,154 21
2 |Operating expenditures 1,371,155,003 375,163,636 27
3 ]Business profit (1-2) 587,930,252 41,964,518 7
0
4 |Financial revenues 37,961,077 281,590 1
5 |Financial expenditures 19,045,662 45,059 0
Financial profit (4-5) 18,915,415 236,531 1
0
7 |Other revenues 4,969,071 22,163 0
8 Other expenditures 31,742,906 442,825 1

[ %2 [Other toss (87 . 7
-——-a

Tata! revenues (1+4-¥7) - ~ 417 431 907
m -
. %

expenditure

15 |Deferred nco
Earnings paid

{ 172017 GFound Handling
ditures in the amount of
).387.

it can be concly
in the amount of RSD 417,
0SS p

nerate gr@s%v

OU Ground handiing in the perio
35.513.329"Whick is"7% of the-generat

2017 ach!eved net proflt in the amount of RSD

‘profit-of ANT:
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6. INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS FOR PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT

Joint Stock Company Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is actively involved in solving the
problems of environmental pollution and raising the environmental awareness of all employees
and other persons ANT has direct and indirect contact with.

7. DESCRIPTION OF ALL SIGNIFICANT OCCURENCES IN THE PERIOD I-1ll 2017

By its Decision no. 952-02-859/2011 dated 23/03/2017 the Republic Geodetic Authority,
Basic geodetic tasks Surcin adopted the request for amendment of the list of real estates no. 2348
CM Surcin, by registration of coholders right on cadastral parcel no. 3739/1 of the area 161 ha
20a 90m? in such manner that it is registered with share of 727/1612090 of "Airport Catering”
d.o.o. Belgrade, Belgrade-Surcin, address Airport Belgrade 59, register number 20047976 as
holder of rights on private property. By the same Decision it is registered with share of
1611363/1612090 JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade, Belgrade-Surcin, address Airport Belgrade
59, register number 07036540 as a holder of the right of use at state property of the Republic of
Serbia.

Training of employees in the Employees Training Centre

Staff who indirectly affects the safety of air traffic must be trained in a Training Centre
authorized by DCA and must have certificates of training (Article 187 of the Air Traffic Law
("Official Gazette of RS" nos.73/2010, 57/2011 and 93/2012). In accordance with the stated, the
Employees Training Centre is authorised by DCA for training of employees performing the
following experts’ jobs:
aircraft, passenger and cargo handling on the airport;
fire-rescuing;
transport of dangerous goods in air traffic;
safety control of surfaces for aircraft maneuvering, of airpo
Aircraft fuel supply
Training of aircraft staff on air traffic security

ations;

2 e

Undét staff performing aircraft, - ing:the f taff.is. considered:

(ramp dis
contro

HPOWON =

cargo handling
J, cargo loading

worker in Cargo W
aircraft balancer;

oo

uipment airport

. ) ewardslstewardess passenger and baggage
check:-in‘agents;-passenger-ant age-supervisors):
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Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 -31/03/2017

1.

2.
3.
4

ANT third
persons
Steward/-ess (level 1) 24 1
Ground handling controller (category 3) 8
Marshaller (level 1) 2
Airport equipment operator (level 1) 10 2
Foreman of cargo transshipment 21
Transport worker - transshipment of cargo on aircraft
Transport worker in sorting area 2
Winter maintenance service
Under staff performing fire-rescue operations the following are considered:
Commander,
Professional fire-rescuer (fire-rescue unit and fire prevention section);
support staff (primarily employed on other duties);
. instructor (practical training instructors).
Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 —-31/03/2017
third
ANT persons

Under employees performing transport of dangerous go

Support staff

Support staff - practice

considered:

Number of\rtrain_ed persons in the peridd

Categ‘ry 5 staﬁ -
Categ@ry 6 staé‘f staff

Categ@ry 1 staff a sender or a person undert

ggage,

017 —31/03/201 7

following is

OUS. materlals)

ding dangerous
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AT i
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 7 3
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 10 6
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 9 10
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 5 and 8 64 17
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 8 3

Under staff performing safety control of maneuvering area, aircraft facilities and installations is
considered Maneuvering areas, airport facilities and installations safety controlier.

Under staff performing aircraft fuel supply operations the following are considered:
Loader (cistern driver and fuel operator);
2. support operator,
3. storekeeper (fuel storekeeper).

1.

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 -31/03/2017

ANT

third
persons

Storekeeper

Loader

Under staff performing security screening at the airport the following staff categories are
considered:
State body staff at the airport;

1.
2.

Nog how

15.
16.

17. Staff responsxble for response to

Persons other than passengers, allowed to move without compa
access to critical facilities, infrastructure and systems;
Persons performing X-screening of persons;

Persons performing X-screening of hand baggage
persons carry,

Persons perfor

Persohs perfor

’ ~mg X=screening

X»screemr

ers, in

ming se
ming ¢o

. Persons perfor
. Persons perfor

port Suf

ming airc
mi

curity c@ntrol of

atrols;

“ethods oth

acce
ming se
plies by

curity cc
methoo

>ss to cargo anc

ir transport;
ir-carriers

ontrol of
s othe

. Supen

Head ¢

Jisor;
Yfficers-

?f’ise*ﬁﬁ’ﬁ ‘

Instru

tors:

-flight supplies

er than X-ray

5, in-flight supplies

ncy situations.
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Training certificate for employees performing X-ray screening is issued for the following
categories:
- Persons performing security check of vehicles;
- Persons performing access control, surveillance and patrols;
- Persons performing X-screening of people;
- Persons performing X-screening of hand baggage and other items that checked persons
have with;
- Persons performing X-screening of hold baggage;
- Persons performing X-screening of cargo and mail;
- Persons performing X-screening of mail and materials of air-carriers, in-flight supplies
and airport supplies;
For other staff who, in line with the National aviation security programme, must be undergone
appropriate security training the training certificate are issued.

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 -31/03/2017

ANT third
persons
Security awareness training 19 1

Apart from the listed trainings prescribed by the national regulations the Employee training centre
also performs a great number of internal trainings prescribed by internal training programmes
(in line with international ICAO and /ATA standards) according to employment needs of the airport
and requests of air-carriers. Furthermore, it is necessary to notice that these trainings are not
organised in any other existing training centre in our country, while their rendering through foreign
training centres is above all very expensive and their implementation is arguable (our trainings
are real working conditions and position-driven). Internal trainings which are performed within the
Employee Training Centre in AD Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade;

v" Foreman of cargo transshipment

v" Foreman of the sorting area

v" Transport worker - cargo transshipment into aircraft / ba

CCw.

shipment in

yees and persons
Aviation security:

ANT third

. persons
Basi ie-safety; 19
ent operation of vehi 4

o~ e
Chiuchit Vpeial

In accordance wnthth

disabilities an awafeness on disabiliti
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Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 -31/03/2017

ANT

Training on equality of persons with disabilities and awareness on

disabilities 127

In accordance with the Law on air traffic, the Centre for professional development is subject to
inspection and audits of the Civil aviation directorate.
The Centre for professional development is also subject to external audits of air-carriers.

Number of inspections/audits in the period 01/01/2017 —-31/03/2017

CAD | Companies

Inspections 5

The Centre for professional development also organizes pupils visits for primary, secondary
schools, as well as professional visits of the pupils of the Aviation Academy and students of the
Faculty of transport and traffic engineering.

Number of visits in the period 01/01/2017 —31/03/2017

Faculty of
transport
and ftraffic
engineerin

Schools

Visits

Analysis, planning and development of human resources

velopment of
ation, i.e. the new
C BNTA, no. 32-

In the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017 within anal

: dates were invited for an
/ment;

14 inte
interview, and

o 26 external.recruitments ing ndi vere.invited for an

ator of airporteq
Expert assdcxat_g

Driver ofmeequmentfor hygiene.
Storekeeper
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Coordinator of passenger and baggage check-in 2
Supervisor of passenger and baggage check-in 7
Worker on maintenance of building construction, cat | 1
Driver on baggage delivery outside of the airport complex 10

Foreman of the sorting area 5
Business secretary in OU Technics 10
Driver on passenger transportation 8
Driver on baggage delivery within the airport complex 4

Table review of external selection for the period from 01/01/2017 until 31/03/2017

Date of . v Number of recruited = Number of selected

selection Selection for positions candidates candidates
18/01/2017 Ground stewardess 2 2
18/01/2017 Transportation worker 1 1
18/01/2017 Operator of ambulance 1 1
27/01/2017 Transportation worker 11 6
03/02/2017 Transportation worker 2 2
07/02/2017 Ground stewardess 1 1
20/02/2017 Ground stewardess 1 1
20/02/2017 X-ray screener 1 1
24/02/2017 X-ray screener 1 1
24/02/2017 Transportation worker 1 1
07/03/2017 X-ray screener 1 1
02/03/2017 Electronics engineer 10 0
03/03/2017 Car electrician 7 1
03/03/2017 Transportation worker 6

06/03/2017 Transportation worker 17
06/03/2017 Transportation worker 12
09/03/2017 X-ray screener 19
09/03/2017 Ground stewardess 2

Transportation worker
Electrician....
er on wmter

08/03/2017

14/C

17/0312017  X-

21/03/2017 21
22/03/2017 —Trans| 16
30/03/2017 | 1
31/03/2017 1

Labour relatio

ablie fui aveits abpmval“
51 number 112-12436/2016-1..dat
1628/2017 dated” Feb?
indefinite period-of-time-totally-600 empl
months must have been cancelled due
maximum term of 24 months.

whose -employment- fora- deﬁmte period of 24
of the employment term, defined in the statutory
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We would like to remark that by signing the contracts for an indefinite term the employment status

of long time employees of the Airport was finally solved.

Safety and health at work

previous

periodic

Total

Enabling employees for security and health at work
at employment and at movement to other positions.

Periodic enabling of employees already working at
positions with higher risk, performed latest after one
year from the previous check.

11

397

408

Organizing of previous, periodic and targeted health
examination for employees on positions with higher
risk

82

136

218

Training for operating, keeping and maintaining of
scaffolds

30

Injuries at work report on injury at work, reporting to
the relevant Inspection, National health insurance
fund and the Pension and disability insurance fund,
the Directorate for safety and health at work,
accident investigation and corrective measures.

Measurement and examination of conditions of
working environment: micro climate, lightening,
noise, aerosols, gases and vapours

Publishing of texts for the Bulletin on activities in
OU SHaW February, March

Remarks and irregularities:
Taking corrective measures in purpose of
imination of irregularities and prevention of furthe

Brochures for thir
Introduction of . SHa

on access to the critical p\‘a
area at ANT.

Detour of construction sites”
works. Completing of
construction works
SHaW measu

8tS, M
ol of img

ment on mutual
ementation.of safety and. he:
measures between Air Serbia and=ANT ™

Elimination of cld"content from first a

35

replacement with new content-and-ins
use

locations
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Trainings of employees in the field of security X-ray screening

In accordance with regulations from aviation security field Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade is
obliged to perform training on aviation security, i.e. ensure appropriate initial, periodic and
additional training. Persons must successfully pass the relevant training before they got
authorised to independently perform security controls.

The trainings are carried out according to a curriculum approved by the Civil Aviation Directorate
of the Republic of Serbia.

OU X-ray screening continued performing trainings for X-ray screeners as follows:
- Training of persons performing X-ray screening of hand baggage, hold baggage and
cargo and mail.
- Training of persons performing X-ray screening of passengers, persons other than
passengers and items they have with them.

The contract (per lots) was concluded with Jugoscan d.o.0. on 14/03/2016.
The last group trained within this tender was in March 2017.

Walk-through metal detector, 6 pieces

The X-ray Sector needs walk-through metal detector of standard 2 for new staff only access
points.

6 (six) walk-through metal detectors for screening of passengers at gate waiting rooms need to
be purchased. Airport Nikola Tesla has 4 (four) walk-through metal detectors of standard
can be upgraded. Walk-through metal detectors will be of the requested stal
advanced features such as:

- More localised zones of detection;
- Smaller dimensions of the door;
- Count function;

- Outputs for CCTV;

laptability during installat

the positii)n

Walk-through met
etector wi

baggage is screene! L
of those devices in use, to
of passengers, emp;joyees a

urrently only hand
re.device in.case of failure
s and slowing down the flow

Public procu?frement publ

yees an

loyees for the foll

(fonducted procurement of total-+1"cor (
rs, one is double

OU Operations and safety management - 2.
OU Security - 3 containers, 2 are double
OU Logistics:= 4-parking-booth :
OU Commercial and Marketing - 2 conté
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Public procurement published on 09/12/2016
Contract concluded: on 28/02017 with a group of tenderers Dunex d.o0.0. and Tehnix Beo d.o.o.
for the amount of RSD 6.570.000,00, VAT excluded.

The goods from the public procurement delivered in the period 07/04-18/04/2017. Modern robots
are used for neutralising of diversion-terrorist devices, for reconnaissance and surveillance,
convoy, transport and fire-rescue, as well as for checking of people and vehicles.

Drone detectors and jammers

Drones, primarily intended for use in civil purposes, are more and more used in criminal activities.
Drone usage started with spying of private, industrial activities and advanced technologies, and
went on with smuggling of narcotics and weapons, first cross-board and then farther. Ever since
potential risks have increased intensively.

Drones may appear above critical infrastructure, governmental bodies. They may cause public
restlessness (for example at football match Serbia - Albania, on 14/10/2014) which can lead to
violence. Several tests prove that armed drone may kill from the air. In recent years drones started
appearing in airport area and, as they are comparatively small, it is difficult to spot them on the
CCTV system. In this way they endanger safe air traffic as aircrafts are the most vulnerable at
landing and take off and from the point of statistics most of aircraft accidents happens then (80%).

Systems for protection from drones have a unique approach, based on radio-controlled link, of
high reliability and with low rate of false alarms. They have option of early warning, meaning high
speed of response, even before take off of the drones. They provide a review of all activities of a
drone and automatic alarm on a threat emerging in a defined defended area. They have ag :
geographical location with identification and precise direction of a drone and a perso
it. Effective counter-measures may be applied, primarily such as usag
of low power (reactive and selective jamming).

Public procurement published: on 10/02/2017
The Decision on contract award was adopted on 29
System Integration B

ct is awarded to
VAT excluded.

extinguishing was
ehicle we.have reached
n categories 8 and

In the period Jant
delivered to OU.Secto {
and secured sustainability o
9 as needed.

to place the tugs
ircraft without nose

An annex for pushbac¢
under the nose gear i
landing gear.

| documentation
runway end safety area in front of tt hold of 12th runways of A
Belgrade
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Status: The public procurement is conducted according the procurement plan from the
year of 2015. The contract for service provision is signed with the Institute for roads jsc
Belgrade. Contract value is RSD 1.500.000,00. The technical documentation is made and
delivered to the Purchaser, whereby the contract is executed. Preparation of security
documentation (risk analysis for performance of works) is in progress and it will be send
to the Civil Aviation Directorate for approval.

Investment "Performance of works on rehabilitation of the sorting area in T1"

Purpose: Due to procurement of a new transportation system it is necessary to adapt the
facilities of the old sorting area, which will functionally comply with the new system. The
procurement plan involves change of the floor surface and, if needed, construction
reinforcing.

Status: The contract for work performance is signed with PC Inzenjering d.o.0. and
Termomont d.o.o. from Belgrade. The Contract value is RSD 24.942.474,60, VAT
excluding for a turn-key project. The works were finished on 02/03/2017. The Minutes on
works handover is signed on 06/04/2017. The warranty period of five (5) years for the
works in subject has been counted since this date.

Investment "Rehabilitation of plants for fuel storage and decanting”

Purpose: Based on the project of the existing state and suggested measures for
rehabilitation of the fuel tank, works on rehabilitation of plants for fuel storage and
decanting at Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade are planned. The works are necessary t
exploitation permit.

Status: The public procurement according to the Procurement plar
is terminated. The same public procurement is planned in.t
year of 2017. The Public procurement is launched ac
adopted by the Supervisory board. Tender docum

“"Draw__out of investment-technical . docu : or__analysis _of
onstruction of maneuve 5 ort Nikola Tesla

of 2016
plan for the
on investment
ration.

| riant solutions for
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rights. The most favourable tender rejected to sign the contract submitted by ANT. The
Public procurement commission is preparing documentation for further operations.

Investment "Draw out of project documentation with technical control for rehabilitation

and fixing up of pedestrian underground passage between arrival part of the Terminal 2

and the parking"

Purpose: Passengers and people who are welcoming passenger intensively use the
pedestrian passage between the terminal building 2 and the parking. Arranging of the
passage with advertising space in line with modern trends and technical solutions is
planned

Status: The contract is concluded with the service provider "KEJ" d.o.0. Belgrade.
Contract value is RSD 348.000,00. Technical documentation is under preparation.

Investment "Draw out of technical documentation with technical control of reconstruction

of the fence around perimeter”

Purpose: The final phase of works on rehabilitation of the existing fence alongside the
whole perimeter of the Airport for the purpose of increase of security level and adjustment
of the characteristics of the fence with new regulations.

Status: The contract on drawing out of technical documentatio
Tenderer "EUROZNAK" d.o.0. Belgrade. The contract value is R
VAT. The technical documentation has been delivered to th

D

volume of !
buckled: Thep
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performance of works
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characteristics of the fence with new regulations. With this, fourth phase changing of the
old fence alongside the whole perimeter of the Airport Nikola Tesla would be finished.

¢ Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment has been approved by a decision of the Supervisory
Board. Tender documentation has been published. Tender opening session was
scheduled for 14/03/2017. The submitted tenders exceeded the planned budget. The
procedure was cancelled. A new position in the plan.

Investment "Chiller for server room"

e Purpose: The server room currently has air-conditioning system with one chiller as a
primer air-conditioning system and two split units installed as a support in case of failure
of the primer system. Procurement of another chiller enhances reliability level of air-
conditioning system. Parallel connection is made between two chillers, so in case of failure
of one of them, the other takes over operating function.

¢ Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment is approved by a decision of the Supervisory Board.
Tender documentation is under preparation.

Investment "Changing of the fence on parking areas P5, P6, P7 and the fence around
power transformer station 35/10"

e Purpose: For the purpose of uniformising of appearance of the fence and improvement
of functionality of the parking change of the fence is intended. Newly installed fence will
improve appearance of the access road to terminal buildings from Novi Beograd and
Surcin.

e Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing p it plan
for the year of 2016. Investment is approved by a decision of the, :
Tender opening session was carried out on 20/01/2017. One f ik
for protection of Tenderer's rights. The Commission for p
given a guidance for additional consultation with com

sent to the Instltute for standardlsatlon for constr

ter-lodged seating
in the outdoor
supposed to be

alancing procurement plan
of the Supervisory Board.
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s Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General. This
procurement provides replacement of the doors at gate accesses, which will enable
implementation of card access control. Design elaboration for access control doors is
under preparation and the initiator of this procurement is OU ITT. Specification for
replacement of the doors will be done based on the project solution.

Investment "Toilet adaptation”

o Purpose: The toilet in the transit area by the Dufry coffee bar (by A1 waiting room) is one
of the mostly used toilets at the airport. This toilet also has a shower. Currently, there is
an additional space before the toilet. The entrance is next to the Dufry coffee bar. Provided
that the change of appearance and position of the Free shop, coffee bars and other shops
in the vicinity is envisaged, the toilet adaptation is planned. The adaptation includes
change of the entrance (entrance from the transit corridor C) and change of the interior
design of the toilet.

e Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment is approved by a decision of the Supervisory Board.
Project task with variant solutions of the site plan has been prepared. Tender
documentation has been adjusted. The procedure of invitation to tender is in progress.

Investment "Replacement of inner branch of stormwater sewage in T2"

¢ Purpose: During the reconstruction of the Terminal building 2, a branch of storm
sewage, placed in the dropped ceiling of the central part of the termm | bui
replaced. In the course of time, material deteriorated and sto
Replacement of the inner branch is planned.

e Status: The public procurement is planned accordin ‘ curement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment is approved by a dec General. Tender
njentatioq is under preparation. :

of air-c
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with vibratory plate. These machines are necessary for regular and quality work of
maintenance services.

¢ Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General. The public procurement
has been launched.

Investment "Provision of equipment for facilities of state bodies at the airport"

e Purpose: Within fixing up of spaces for state bodies in the Terminal building 1, adaptation
of the facilities with architectural and construction works, as well as installation works has
been finished. It is planned to equip it with build-in furniture and equipment, movable
furniture and equipment and small wares.

Equipped facility will form a unigue functional complex responding to user's needs and
which will aesthetically and qualitatively comply with representation of the Airport Nikola
Tesla in the best manner.

o Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General. The public procurement
has been launched.

Investment "Draw out of technical documentation for the existing infrastructure
systems”

e Purpose: During the regular maintenance of the existing infrastructure systems, it is
ascertained that some parts of the equipment and installation must be replace
replacement cannot be considered as regular maintenance. For the pu :
of the scope of works and finding adequate problem solution,
technical documentation with work-out in detail. Based on t
works and replacement of equipment will be planned ir

an for the year of 2017.
Investment-is e-public- procurement
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documentation for rehabilitation of the bomb-shelter, for fixing up of economy passage
and rehabilitation of the part of the roof of the terminal building is planned.

e Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Supervisory Board. The public procurement
has been launched.

Investment "Construction of temporary fence around Airport property"”

o Purpose: The land that was purchased in the period between 2006 and 2008 for the
purpose of expansion of the Airport,was vested in property in December 2016. The total
area is little above 51ha. Temporary fencing is planned to disable unauthorised access to
and use of the parcels.

o Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.

investment is approved by a decision of the Supervisory Board. The public procurement
has been launched. Tender documentation is under preparation.

Investment "Segment doors of the sorting area”

¢ Purpose: The procurement has been conducted and the most favourable tenderer has
been selected. The contract is signed on 29/02/2017, under no. UJNM 9/2017 with the
company HOUSEMATIC DOO Belgrade in the amount of RSD 1.842.500,00, excluding
VAT. Replacement of industrial door of the sorting rooms-total 4 doors is planned by the
procurement. Replacement is carried out due to deterioration of the doors and. due
necessity to work in special conditions in the sorting room of the termi

Status: Up to the end of the reporting period, the old doo . Installation

~t0 introduce a
stations from one
ill be monitored
timely information
itoring and control
ighly importan of the system for
”i‘n ragemerit of po s from-duty power centre, in

place, where
_constanﬂy by-a-duty st

Public..procuremen -on investment

adopted by the Supervisory
10/10/2016
The procuremem contract was” he Institute Mihajlo Pup in from“Belgrade.
Contract value, including VAT i 958.740,00.. Preparation phase for realisation.of
the project is underway.

=ning
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Investment "Service of adaptation of public lighting”

* Purpose: In order to enhance lighting and decrease electric energy consumption at the
airport complex, it is necessary to adapt a part of public lighting, entrance road to the
parking for the police and rent-a-car agencies in front of Terminal 2, parking in front of
connecting part and Terminal 1 (used by rent-a-car agency) and entrance road from the
city (gate of the building of the new regional control SMATSA) to Terminal 1.

e Status: The Public procurement is launched according to the decision on investment
adopted by the Supervisory board. Public tender opening session was carried out on
06/10/2016.

The contract is signed with the tenderer MANES DOO from Topola on 14/12/2016 and the
value of the contract excluding VAT is RSD 6.091.500,00. The works were underway till
the end of the reporting period.

Investment "Replacement of DG4 with UPS and diesel generator”

e Purpose: Provision of reliable and safe work of critical consumers who are supplied from
power transformer station TERMINAL. 2

o Status: Public procurement procedure is conducted. Public procurement contract is
signed with a group of tenderers VITREUM DOO, Belgrade, TEHNIOUNION-EXIM,
Sremska Kamenica and TEHNOLINK DOO, Cenej on 09/06/2016. Contract value,
including VAT is RSD 113.061.600,00. The works were underway till the end of the
reporting period.

Investment "Machine for maintenance of the system of lighting and marking"

¢ Purpose: Procurement of dedicated machines for performance on road constru
maintenance of the system of lighting and marking.

vestment
rocedure was

e Status: The Public procurement is launched according to t
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Status: The public procurement was commences and published on the web site on
04/04/2016. Tender opening session was carried out on 10/05/2016. The contract is
sighed with a group of tenderers PREMAR SERVICES AG, Zug, Switzerland and
PROFLUSS GmbH, Leichlingen, Germany in the amount of EUR 6.299.985,50, excluding
VAT. The Contract is recorded in the Archive of the Airport on 15/06/2016. Realisation is
underway.

Investment "Procurement of passenger vehicles for apron”

Purpose: Passenger cars used to support aircraft handling jobs, apron management jobs
and operational sectors for maintenance of Airport Nikola Tesla. The aim of this project is
procurement of passenger cars which will be used on maneuvering areas of the airport.
Status: The Public procurement is launched according to the decision on investment
adopted by the Supervisory board.

Investment "Vehicles for winter maintenance of aprons and maneuvering areas"”

Purpose Pro
includes procurem
Without telecommunig .
airport could not work. Consi
telecommunication servi
important for airport

continued, unimpeded

Procurement. Servnces of Iandlme telephonv, mobi

Purpose: The purpose of this project is improvement of the existing working technology,
through procurement of mechanisation equipment as support to the jobs of maintenance
of maneuvering areas in winter conditions and removal of snow from maneuvering areas,
as well as maintenance jobs under regular conditions. The aim of this investment project
is procurement of multifunctional device with ports and the following options and functions:
Transfer of cargo, atmospheric depositions, materials, equipment and etc, transshipment
of cargo, material, equipment, removal of atmospheric depositions (snow), preventwe
chemical applications on maneuvering areas to prevent icing and forming of black.ice”

the winter.

Status: The Public procurement is launched according to t vestment
adopted by the Supervisory board.
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Aircraft de-icing and anti-icing apron

Purpose: The investment in subject includes construction of the aircraft de-icing and anti-
icing apron, together with accompanying installations and facilities. JSC Airport Nikola
Tesla Belgrade financed apron construction, whose value is over RSD 557 million, from
its own profit.

The area of the constructed apron is about 21.000 m?, whereof 16.500 m? is for aircraft
movement,

Status: Works on the apron construction has been finished.

The apron has been used since January 6, 2017, following announcement of appropriate
aviation information, based on previously performed technical inspection and obtained
certificate of the Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia.

Reconstruction of the existing hot water system and construction of a new branch of the

system

Arrangement of the ¢

Purpose: The existing hot water net system in the part from the restaurant for employees
to the substation in the facility of the Terminal building 2 is older than 25 year and partly
goes under the terminal building. From the point of security it is not a good solution that
hot water system goes under a building, because in case of leakage safety of the object
would be endangered and access to the leakage point would be difficult. For that reason,
and due to the age of the installation, it was necessary to move the hot water system which
goes under the Terminal 1 and under connecting part between Terminal 1 and Terminal
2.

By installation of pre-insulated pipes loss of heat is decreased, as well as ) er
(which was also achieved by construction of a new main branch of he n from
the boiler house to the restaurant for emp!oyees Further planned

: ing apron, it
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e Purpose: Due to increased number of passengers, a greater number of check-in counters
for departing passengers is needed. Increase of the registration capacity has the purpose
of unobstructed traffic in peak hours and higher standard of comfort for departing
passengers.

Adaptation of the existing facilities at the ground floor of Terminal 1 and reconfiguration
and increase of capacity for passenger and baggage check-in are planned to free the
existing check-in counters in Terminal 1 and Terminal 2 from work overload.

Apart from the indicated, it is provided to arrange the facility for passenger and baggage
check-in in the hall and the baggage conveyor system and facilities in the sorting room of
the Terminal 1.

The concept of facility arrangement is adjusted to temporary trends of arrangement of
passenger terminals and it will encompass most modern solutions from this field in aviation
industry.

« Status: Works are underway and it is expected to be finished in the second quarter of

2017.
The works were contracted based on conducted public procurement procedure and the
Contract was concluded on 22/12/2016 with a group of tenderers Energoprojekt Industrija
and WD Concord West. Dynamics of the works in subject are in the accordance with
technological processes of the Airport Nikola Tesla and in line with the dynamics of
performance of other works.

Procurement of the Visual Docking Guidance System

¢ Purpose: By installation of the system on the parking positions A6-A10 the aircraft
handling system will be completed and improved on all contact positions. Procurement
and installation of the Visual Docking Guidance System enables technical aSSIsta
pilot during aircraft parking, whereby safety level in realisation of criti
increased and the time of engagement of active employees an
decreased (Marshallers and Follow me vehicles). Also time. perations is
decreased.
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e  Status: Public procurement procedure had been performed and on 01/11/2016 the

contract was concluded with a group of tenderers WD Concord West, Masinoprojekt
Kopring, Dabicom and Interfast; The group of tenderers commence the works on
13/12/2016.
Realisation of the first phase of work performance - enforcement of the construction in
the basement of the Terminal 2 has been finished, and the next phase and finalisation of
works - in the departing sorting room are planned for the second quarter of 2017, a period
following start-up of new passenger check-in counters, baggage handling system and the
sorting room of the Terminal 1.

Drawing out of Detailed requlation plan

e Purpose: The plans currently in effect, based on which it is possible to plan new contents,
buildings and infrastructure at the airport complex dates back to 1989. Up to now the
Airport Nikola Tesla has utilised most of its capacities provided by these plans and its
development in accordance with current trends in aviation is disabled and it cannot make
appropriate infrastructural improvements which should accompany significant increase in
air movements and number of handled passengers and goods.

o Status: Drawing out of the Detailed regulation plan is in progress.

The Airport Nikola Tesla Capacity Assessment Study

e Purpose: The study should indicate necessary technological and technical capacities of
the airport infrastructure, operating technology and capacity utilisation during peak traffic
For that purpose, service provider should carry out comprehensive monitoring of airport
processes and necessary analysis of collected data. Following the analysis, serwce
provider should indicate in the Study existing capacities which could be utilised
efficiently in accordance with international standards and recommend i
points in airport processes with suggestions for their meliorati
on further development of airport capacities and on traffic f

o Status: The procedure of public procurement has be
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Status: Drawing out of the technical documentation and performance of works have been
contracted in the public procurement procedure with a consortium RAS inzenjering and
the Highway Institute. The concept design has been made and a request for issuing of a
decision on construction certificate has been submitted to the Ministry of construction,
traffic and infrastructure.

The expected deadline for the commencement of works is May 2017 and for completion
is September 2017.

Arrangement of the parking lot P10

e Purpose: The existing car parking - P10 (parking next to the "Red building") need to be
rearranged to relocate taxi parking, and in order to free the existing location for other
contents, as well as in line with increased demand for parking capacities at the ANT
complex The existing area comprises of 3950 m? with road constriction in bad condition
with visible damages/cracks. Rearrangement works will divide the existing car parking into
two independent functional parking lots of total surface of 3950 m2. The parking lot of
around 1850 m2 should be used for employees (74 parking places) and the lot of about
2100 m2 should be used for taxi vehicles (84 parking places). Access to each of the lots
will be controlled by an appropriate access control system, connected to automatic ramps.

e Status:

o Technical documentation: Selection of the most favourable tenderer, based on the
submitted tenders, as a part of the launched public procurement procedure, is in
progress.

o Performance of works: Expected deadline for performance of w
quarter of the current year.

Purpose: The at the Airport Nikola

Tesla complex
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boiler TPK-20 M .
maintenance wor| ) rkmg parameters were
; cates low driving reliabi boilers: Due to deterioration of the
and other devicefffs, fre during heating season are

ct_new is..necessary to

reconstruct and mproveamegtf:aﬁf :

g iechmcal documentation: the public
out and on 09/11/2016 the contract for drawing

o Status For the purpose of drawing.-
procurement procedure has been

47
Business report for the period I-III 2017



out of the technical documentation for construction of a new boiler house was concluded
with the tenderer Kolssing.

Adjustment of the selected conceptual design with the suggestions received from the
Ministry of construction, traffic and engineering is in progress, in order to obtain location
requirements for construction of an additional facility and decision on construction
certificate for reconstruction of the facility in accordance with regulations and based on
technical documentation.

Legalisation of facilities

Purpose: For certain number of facilities at Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport documentation in
relation to property status is unsatisfactory despite a course of actions taken in a previous
longer period of the time. In line with the valid regulations and in order to overcome existing
situations in this area, legalisation procedures have been commenced for the unsatisfactory
documentation. Total area of 11 building constructions for legalisation is 4.700 m2 (de-icing
garage, fire-fighters' garage, auxiliary buildings, locksmith workshop, fire water supply
reservoir P-264, a facility - aircraft handling drivers, crematory building, kennels for dogs, a
building for technical maintenance, the heating facility, the restaurant "Borik"). Total area of
8 civil engineering facilities for legalisation is 57.150 m2 (roads, parking in front of the
terminal building, parking in front of the barrack for technical maintenance, parking no. 9 in
front of the barrack, Parking T-2, Parking P4, Parking P7, Parking P8, Parking P10).

Status: Upon the filed request, the Ministry of construction, traffic an
addressed us with a request to submit documentation necessary for le
to prove fulfilment of pre-conditions in legalisation procedure for {i
JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade filed a plead for extens:o “

realised and the procurement for the service of drawing
legalisation 1s provuded

atlon, as a necessary
for legahsataon procedure
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for protection of competition and it will be implemented on the first day of the month
following the Decision of the Commission. Up to the date of obtaining of the Decision of
the Commission, the Basic Agreement remains entirely effective with application of all of
its provisions. In the new agreement the airport diminished obligations and liabilities
related to guarantees in the agreement, as well as areas dedicated for operations of the
lessee-Dufry, but it increased revenues. The Lease Agreement (revised text), no.14-
61/2016 dated 20/12/2016 provides consequences in case the Commission for protection
of competition does not approve exemption. The request has been filed together with the
lessee-Dufry.

. On 10/02/2017 the Public invitation for the granting of a concession for the financing,
development through the construction and reconstruction, maintenance and management

of the infrastructure of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade and the performance of the

activity of airport operator was published. The public invitation was published in the Official

Gazette of RS no. 09/2017 on 10/02/2017.

Thus the procedure for granting concession of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade was

launched.

. On 01/03/2017 the Stimulation plan became effective, including the following reliefs for
the companies fulfilling prescribed conditions: introduction of new scheduled lines (short-
haul and long-haul traffic) and volume base reliefs (reliefs for frequency increase, reliefs
for increase of departing passengers number, reliefs for increase of transfer passengers
number, reliefs for total departing passengers number, reliefs for airlines with based
aircraft or aircrafts with night abode.

Introduction of the Stimulation plan has a purpose to increase attractiveness of the airport
as a regional hub, its transparency and competitiveness.

The Stimulation Plan is applied to all airport users which increase air-traffic vo

Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, initiate public air-transportation on a new sg¢l ht,
annually increase either number of flights or number of passen
. On 15/03/2017 first daily flights of the Turkish air-carrie te Belgrade

- Istanbul commenced. The flights are operated with
operates on this route as code-share partner wi i
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7.1. DESCRIPTION OF ALL SIGNIFICANT OCCURENCES AFTER THE PERIOD I-1ll 2017

Analysis, planning and development of human resources

In the period after 31/03/2017 until today there were two internal advertisements and one external
selection published in the field of analysis, planning and development of human resources at
Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade.

Table review of internal selections after 31/03/2017

Internal advertisement Applicants
Fire-fighter - rescuer 83
Brigadier on maintenance of construction 1

building

Table review of external selections after 31/03/2017

Date of selection Selection for Number of recruited Number of
positions candidates selected
candidates
10/04/2017 Cleaning jobs 4 4

X-ray screening devices per lots

Lot 1 X-ray screening devices for items had with by persons other than passengers 60X40 2is,

(3 pieces),
Lot 2: X-ray device three pieces:
- one with the tunnel opening of 180X180 2uc,
one with the tunnel opening of 145X180 2uc,

Delivery is expe

X-ray screeners usin

The contract is-concluded-wi
Delivery is expected ir

losi

Liquid ex

Walk-through metal-detector......
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The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.o.o.
Delivery is expected in the second quarter of 2017.

Explosive trace detectors

The contract is concluded with the company Analysis d.o.o.
Delivery was in April 2017.

Detector of prohibited items hidden in shoes

The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.o.o.
Delivery is expected in the second quarter of 2017.

X-ray screener for the sorting area in Terminal 1 (from 2016)

In 2016 OU X-ray screening planned procurement "X-ray screener of standard 3" for security
screening of hold baggage in Terminal 1 within reconstruction of the sorting area in the Terminal
1. This is a procurement for the year of 2016. Realisation commenced in 2017 and the planned
deadline of completion of works is the end of May (second quarter)

Also, within the reconstruction of the Terminal 2, a device for screening of oversized baggage
with opening 130x130xm, brand Smiths Heimann GmbH has been procured.

X-ray screening devices per lots (from the plan for 2016)

LOT 1: X-ray screening devices for security screening of employees and persons other than
passengers at official accesses, with the opening 60x40 (5 pieces).

The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.o.o.

Delivery was in February 2017.

LOT 3: Mobile x-ray-screenin
The contract is concluded wi

Delivery was i
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Automotive robot-vehicle for explosives

Possessing of this device maximally increase solution of suspicious situations, thus it decrease
potential losses of the airport due to longer closure of operations because of blockage or laboured
passenger handling. It provides higher safety of participants in the security action as they act from
distance. Modern robots are used for neutralising of diversion-terrorist devices, for
reconnaissance and surveillance, convoy, transport and fire-rescue, as well as for checking of
people and vehicles.

Public procurement published: on 21/02/2017

The Decision on contract award was adopted on 25/04/2017 and the contract is awarded to
JUGOSCAN for the amount of RSD 54.625.000,00, VAT excluded.

Fire-fighting vehicle

Public procurement procedure for fire-fighting vehicle 6x6 with fire-fighting hand. Delivery is
expected in the mid-December of 2017, which will secure and strengthen readiness for fire-
fighting category 10. Value of the public procurement is EUR 989.000.00.

Investment "Service of adaptation of public lighting”

e Purpose: In order to enhance lighting and decrease electric energy consumption at the
airport complex, it is necessary to adapt a part of public lighting, entrance road to the
parking for the police and rent-a-car agencies in front of Terminal 2, parking in front of
connecting part and Terminal 1 (used by rent-a-car agency) and entrance road from the
city (gate of the building of the new regional control SMATSA) to Terminal 1.

o Status: Realisation of the complete contract was completed on 19/04/20°

Investment "Replacement of DG4 with UPS and diesel generat

¢ Purpose: Provision of reliable and safe work of critic
power transformer station TERMINAL 2

supplied from
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procurement. Replacement is ct ut due to deterioration of the doors and due to
necessity to work in special cong s in the sorting room of the terminal 1.
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e Status: Due to necessity for adjustment of operations on installation of new doors with
other kinds of operations at the location of the sorting area, activities on installation of new
doors commenced in April 2017.

Procurement of Enterprise Resource Planning system (ERP)

Purpose: Enterprise Resource Planning system (ERP) represents a platform of integrated
applications which provides integration and optimisation of operating processes.

The basic purpose of the ERP system is to facilitate information flow between all operating
functions in the organisation, as well as with external associates and business partners.

Future information system should completely integrate operating processes, eliminate manual
processes and introduce automatic control at all fields of application.

The procurement includes procurement of licences of applicative software, service of analysis of
business processes, implementation and adjustment of the system to the operational needs of
the airport, as well as service of preventive and corrective system maintenance upon system
launching.

Introduction of the new Enterprise Resource Planning system will significantly contribute to
development and improvement of information technology of the airport and provide simple and
efficient integration with other information systems directly used in operational processes of the
airport (specific airport systems and other business systems)

Procurement opening session for ERP was completed on 21/04/2017 and drawing up of the
Report on experts' assessment of tenders is in progress.

Procurement Equipment for passenger and baggage self check-in

Purpose: /ATA StB initiative (FAST TRAVEL PROGRAM, Simplifying the
aiming to enable service users self check-in per individual travel -
procurement is equipment for passenger and baggage self che
initiative and within the indicated procurement of applic
:mplementatlon support and maintenance.
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Preparation of Tender documentation |
self check-in is-in-progress:
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Project of land division/re-division at the airport complex

Audit:

15, 2017.
results of ANT.

Procurement of 2

Purpose: With the purpose of regulation of right of use of land, adjusting with the existing
conditions, regulation of relations with other entities at the airport complex and the need
of airport development, it is necessary to make changes in cadastral state and the relevant
documentation.

Status: Preparation of the Tender documentation for obtaining the service of project
preparation for the land division/re-division in the procedure of public procurement no.
16/2017 OP (Decision on commencement of PP no. DNJN -371/2017 dated 19/04/2017)
is in progress.

. Aegean audit 20-21/3

Eurowings 27/3

. On 16/03/2017 a part of the debt upon executive judgement was charged from the

company "AS Catering“ RSD 4.473.777,26 (the principal debt with interest and costs of
enforcement before the Court) while the other part was charged on 21/04/2017 in the
amount of RSD 34.299.839,58 (the principal debt with interest and costs of enforcement
before the Court).

On 04/04/2017 low-cost company "Transavia“ launched its flights from Belgrade to
Amsterdam. The company operates Boeing 737 on its three flights per week.

On 27/04/2017 the Agreement on repayment of a debt with the Company Jat Technlca
which regulates debt of this company based on rendered services which
of legal action before the Commercial Court in Belgrade, with the
based on access to and use of service roads and auxiliary servic
Tesla Belgrade as well as the Agreement on repayment of-

rrier Atlas Global to Serbian > first” s operated on March
greement of ANT a five impact on business

veyers - €

levators

J - Increase of ¢
aircraft handling during
Value: RSD.11.5006:600,00, VA
Provider: CENTUM.d.c.0, Publ

apacity r carriers in relation to

no UJVN-3/2017 dated 13/02/2017
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Procurement of 6 dollies for unit load devices

¢« Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation to
aircraft handling during baggage, cargo and mail embarkation and disembarkation.

e Value: 17.800,00 €

e Provider: "MILOCO PRODUCTION", Public procurement contract no UJVN-12/2017
dated 28/02/2017

o Status: The dollies were delivered on 06/04/2017.

Procurement of 3 tug vehicles for dollies

» Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation to
aircraft handling during baggage, cargo and mail embarkation and disembarkation.

¢ Value: RSD 11.700.000,00, VAT excluded

e Provider: "EUROPLAST INTERNATIONAL", Public procurement contract no UJVN-17-
37/2016 dated 29/02/2016

o Status: Baggage dollies were delivered on 06/02/2017 and on 07/03/2017.
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8. DESCRIPTION OF THE MOST SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
THE PERIOD I-1ll 2017

In the period I-1ll 2017 there was a risk of spreading of terrorist attacks from 2016, more and more
often aiming airports. That indicated necessity of increased vigilance and control at Airport Nikola
Tesla Belgrade. In the public area, where security checks are not carried out, great importance is
attached to video surveillance and frequent security patrols.

Based on risk assessment carried out by security authorities in 2106, it is recommended to
introduce additional security measures amounting to procurement of new equipment and devices,
as well as engagement of greater number of persons who will be trained for the indicated
positions.

The additional security measures encompass training procedures for employees and public
procurement of equipment and those cannot be completed in short period of time, which can
cause vulnerability of security system at the Airport.

In relation to OU Sector for fire rescue and protection, in the period January - March 2017 the
Airport risk fines from CAD and the Emergency Sector for non-performance of the procurement
of professional examination in the field of Fire protection, servicing of fire extinguishers and fire
hydrants and servicing of breathing apparatus as taking these measures is an obligation.

Internal risks:

o Fulfilled projected airport capacities in terms of number of passengers er
with rising demand and parking positions,

o Deterioration of the part of the existing infrastructure (part
capacities of the Terminal building, part of primary heatj
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e Seasonality and demand fluctuation, which may represent a challenge in future capacity
planning

1. Opinion of the Commission for protection of competition. On 02/02/2017 based on the filed
Request for disclosure of information, submission of data and documentation to the
Commission for protection of competition of the Republic of Serbia for individual
exemption of the Lease agreement (revised text) no. 14-61/2016 dated 20/12/2016 with
the Lessee Dufry, the most significant risk and uncertainties refer to the part of the
agreement, where, at Dufry's insistence are added provision on indemnification in case of
a negative decision of the Commission for protection o competition, according to which all
term sheets of the Agreement, including lease price will be negotiated, but the Airport will
not be liable for missed profit or possible fines prescribed by the Commission upon this
Agreement, and for possible finds for the period from 2006 until 2016 provisions of the
Basic Agreement will be applied, proscribing that Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade is liable
for all fines.

2. Procedure for granting concession for JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade, which was
published on 10/02/2017, is in progress and numerous factors can impact the outcome of

the procedure.

Lower number of employees in the GH in comparison to the needed number provided in the
analysis of necessary number of employees.

57

Business report for the period I-III 2017



9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Due to market risks influencing financial instrument, the management of the Company
monitors in detail movements leading to risks and takes necessary risk management measures.

9.1. MARKET RISK

During analysis of the market and its impact on Company operations, primarily on financial
instruments, the Company considers exchange rate changes risks (currency risk), risk of interest
rate changes and risk of service price changes.

Currency risk (foreign exchange risk)

Considering balance and sources of resources of the Company on 31/03/2017 and
primarily cash and cash equivalents, receivables from buyers, liabilities per long-term loans and
similar we could say that the Company is not imposed to foreign exchange risks.

By detailed analysis of currency structure of the assets and liabilities on 31/03/2017, we
can ascertain that the financial assets are contracted with currency clause and that they are higher
than currency financial liabilities. Financial liabilities contracted in foreign currency are generally
of long-term nature. Based on the above facts it results that Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade does
not operate with high currency risk.

a) Risk of interest rate change
Risk of interest rate change is not significant risk for the Company. Most of the financial
instruments categories contracted with interest are defined with fixed interest rate.

9.2. CREDIT RISK

ments can be
from domestic
arly monitors the
hin the contracted

The company estimates that beside market risks to whi
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and foreign buyers so there is credit risk. To reduce this risk,
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9.3. LIQUIDITY A

Liquidity risk managem i nti agement of the Company
which established busi its. own resources. Borrowed
resources are mainly | be covered with long-term

receivables.
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10. MAJOR ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES

JSC Airport Nikola Tesla does not have any associated persons in terms of the
Company Law (Official Gazette of RS nos. 36/2011, 99/2011, 83/2014 and 5/2015, article 62
and accordingly there are no business operations related to associated persons.

10.1. BRANCHES

JSC Airport Nikola Tesla does not have any branches within the Company.

Belgrade, May 2017

President of the Supervigof Director of Finance

Acting Director "neral .
Sasa Vlaisavljevi¢/BSc (Eng.) ¥ |
i

A
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Director General’s Office

11180 Beorpaa 59, Cpbuja T:+381 11 209 4802 E: kabuHet.abHT@6er.aepo
CWUTA: BETOWXX ®: +381 11 2286187 www.6er.aepo
STATEMENT

Hereby we state that, according to our best knowledge, the quarterly report for the thirst
quarter, which contains data for the first three months of the business year 2017 is drafted in
line with appropriate international standards of financial reporting and that it shows true and
impartial data on property, obligations, financial position and operating, profits and losses,

cash flows and changes on the capital of the Company.

£

Finance Director

- et g
¢ Pobrila Pejovié

Head of Accountancy

Zorka Latinovié






